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Vision
Proud to be Mosman
Protecting our Heritage
Planning our Future
Involving our Community

Mission
To protect and enhance the distinctive qualities
of Mosman in a responsive, friendly and caring way

Customer Service Policy
Our Commitment: quality and friendliness
in the provision of service

Message from the Mayor
A new Council was elected in September 2017 with a re-purposed mandate to deliver on our common
vision and aspirations as an independent and self-determining community. During 2017/2018 Council
immediately focused on consolidating both our future and our healthy financial position through strategic
planning, strong leadership and sound financial management. This Annual Report demonstrates Council
has delivered on its 2013-2023 Community Strategic Plan commitments by responding to the aspirations of
the Mosman community and its elected Council via four major themes - Social, Environment, Economic and
Governance.
Some of the highlights of the year have been the upgrades to Centenary Circle outdoor space, Memory
Park playground, completing Balmoral promenade and bus shelters. The bi-annual 2017 Festival of
Mosman delivered 10 days of festivities which started with HMAS Penguin’s Freedom of Entry parade
through the streets and the Opening Concert at Balmoral before ending with the ever popular Pet’s Day
Out. Council’s innovative MyMosman resident app was formally recognised by winning its category in the
prestigious RH Dougherty Awards for Excellence in Communication.
Council’s commitment to regional cooperation and resource sharing initiatives has been strengthened by its
membership and participation in the Northern Sydney Regional Organisation of Councils. Council has
successfully negotiated an additional 30 public parking spaces in the former cinema site on Spit Road as
well as $1.8m funding for a range of active transport projects from the State Government’s B-Line project
team.
Our State of the Environment scorecard for 2017-2018 summarises Council's environmental initiatives
alongside highlighting areas where we can continue to improve our ecological footprint and local
environment.
During the year, Council also developed the 2018-2028 Community Strategic Plan which set a new revised
Vision beyond 2018 and informed the associated 2018-2021 Delivery Program which laid the ground work
for important decisions and projects. All our projects are now seen through the framework of our Disability
Inclusion Action Plan. Projects include the refurbishment of the Civic Centre and customer service
initiatives, creation of Mosman Library indoor garden reading zone and the transition of the Mosman Rider
to an on-demand community transport service.
These achievements would not be possible without Council's committed, hard-working staff, contractors
and the many volunteers who are committed to our Vision. I look forward to continuing to work closely and
collaboratively with my fellow Councillors and Mosman Council’s staff to consolidate our position and push
further ahead in addressing residents’ aspirations through community engagement, collaborative
leadership, sound management, and innovation.

Councillor Carolyn Corrigan
Mayor of Mosman

Message from the General Manager
It is very satisfying for Council to present a 2017-2018 Annual Report to the community which highlights
delivery of excellent outcomes under its 2013-2023 Community Strategic Plan. Council has now put behind
it the distraction and hindrance of the council amalgamation proposals which were put to rest in 2017,
allowing it to concentrate on our Vision, Strategic Directions and service delivery. Council has consolidated
its position during 2017-2018 through the commitment and dedication of Councillors and staff in tandem
with strategic planning, sound management and community engagement to continue to deliver on
objectives, projects and quality customer service committed to under the Plan.
Sound and strategic financial management is a linchpin to success in achieving these outcomes. Council’s
Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2018 discloses a surplus operating result before capital
grants and contributions of $0.868M. Council continues to operate a vigorous capital works program (works
in progress total $9.423M), an outstanding achievement considering the total was half this amount only
three years ago and demonstrates Council’s commitment to improving the infrastructure backlog through
application of additional Special Rate Variation funds and the rolling borrowing program as planned in the
adopted Long Term Financial Plan. The success of this strategy is reflected through the majority of
Council's infrastructure assets continuing to have a condition rating of 3 or better, with only 0.8% rated at
condition 4.
Council continues to embrace innovation and technology. Investment in technology and mapping of
systems and procedures to deliver better customer service and operational efficiencies is reflected in the
success of the MyMosman app which was developed by staff in-house and acknowledged as a leader in
the industry. The app provides quick access to news, events, reporting, waste information, recreational
activities, community consultations and much more. More projects are in development and will be delivered
across the 2018-2021 Delivery Program and include a Tree app and digital parking permits together with
the implementation of many new operational systems throughout the organisation.
This use of innovation and investment in technology is just one strategy in delivering excellence in service
delivery that we commit to in our adopted Customer Service Charter and the efficiencies in our operations
to create value for the community. This focus by the administration together with ongoing collaboration with
the elected Council has achieved excellent outcomes in the past year as detailed in this Annual Report
which I commend to you. It also promises an exciting future for Mosman residents and visitors alike.

Dominic Johnson
General Manager
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INTRODUCTION
Mosman Council’s Annual Report for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 is prepared in compliance
with section 428 of the Local Government Act 1993, clause 217 of the Local Government (General)
Regulation 2005, and the Office of Local Government’s integrated planning and reporting guidelines
provided for under section 406 of the Local Government Act 1993. The report also meets the
requirements of other legislation including the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979,
Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 and Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act
1998.
Mosman’s Community Strategic Plan, MOSPLAN 2013-2023, is the plan for Mosman’s future. It
responds to the aspirations of the Mosman community and its elected Council, and ensures that services
are provided to the Mosman community effectively, efficiently and sustainably. The Plan is divided into
four themes - Social, Environment, Economic and Governance. These themes link directly to the
Delivery Program and Operational Plan, which detail how Council will deliver on community aspirations
over four and one year periods, respectively.
The purpose of the report is to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Report on Council’s progress and achievements in implementing its Delivery Program and the
effectiveness of the principal activities undertaken in achieving the objectives at which those principal
activities are directed
Report on other information required by the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 and the
integrated planning and reporting guidelines provided for under section 406 of the Local Government
Act 1993
Detail Council’s financial position as at 30 June 2018
Present Council’s State of the Environment Scorecard 2017/18
Provide information concerning Council’s Disability Inclusion Action Plan
Provide proactive release of other Council information under the Government Information (Public
Access) Act 2009

The report is supported by quarterly reporting to Council in relation to MOSPLAN progress and a fouryearly report is also prepared at the end of each Council term. Council provides further updates and
information on progress through its newsletter - Mosman News, weekly column in the Mosman Daily –
Mosman Now and items published on Council’s website.
Copies of the Annual Report are available for perusal at the Civic Centre, Mosman Square or the Library.
The report is also available on Council’s website under Council/Reports and Publications. The report has
been submitted to the Minister for Local Government in accordance with section 428(5) of the Local
Government Act 1993.
Any enquiries concerning this report may be directed to Council’s Governance section on 9978 4000.
ABOUT MOSMAN
Mosman is a place of history and beauty, located eight kilometres north-east of the CBD on Sydney’s
lower north shore. It is one of Australia’s premier suburbs, with an unmatched setting on Sydney
Harbour.
The area is characterised by beautiful localities such as Balmoral, Beauty Point, Clifton Gardens and
Georges Heights. Occupying some 8.7 square kilometres, Mosman features numerous stunning bays
and beaches punctuated by rugged headlands and sandstone cliffs. Natural bushland areas and
foreshore parklands complement busy shopping strips and suburban neighbourhoods. The major
thoroughfares of Military and Spit Roads both divide the area and connect residents of Mosman and
those from further north to other parts of Sydney.
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As a destination, Mosman today is a great place to sample some unique Sydney heritage. The area is
home to the world famous Taronga Zoo, as well as excellent harbourside swimming and recreation
areas, top restaurants, and high-end retail experiences.
The demographics of Mosman are presented in the Community Profile of Mosman, Community Atlas of
Mosman and Population Forecasts for the Mosman Local Government Area (LGA). These are available
online to inform Council, the business community, students, researchers, investors and the community in
general.
Data from the Australian Bureau of Statistics is presented in table and chart format with brief
commentary (Community Profile of Mosman) and interactive maps (Community Atlas of Mosman).
Mosman LGA data is also able to be compared with pre-existing Warringah and Pittwater LGAs, and the
Sydney region as a whole.
ABOUT MOSMAN COUNCIL
Local Government in NSW is administered and governed by councils and is controlled and regulated by
the Local Government Act 1993.
Mosman Municipal Council consists of two functional units. One is the elected Council comprising seven
Councillors including the popularly elected Mayor; the other is the permanent staff of the Council, who
work at the Council offices and other Council locations.
The elected Councillors set and control policy directions whilst the staff, headed by the General
Manager, implements policy and legislative requirements. All strive together to anticipate and meet
community needs and expectations.
STATEMENT OF VALUES

We, the Councillors and staff, in a spirit of mutual respect and trust, work ethically, as
a team to fulfil this Council’s Mission and Vision striving…
FOR OUR COMMUNITY

To consult with our residents and to ensure all are treated equitably
and have access to information and a consistent and transparent
decision-making process, and to enable residents to share and
enjoy Mosman’s services and resources

FOR OUR VOLUNTEERS

To appreciate and respect their valuable contribution in service and time, to seek their
opinion and to provide quality training and friendly and timely support.

FOR OUR STAFF

To provide a safe workplace, to nurture ethical behaviour,
and to promote professional, frank and honest advice and
discussion in an environment where learning is supported
and encouraged, where leadership and individual
potential are developed, and where excellence and
initiative are recognised and rewarded.

FOR OUR COUNCILLORS

To be honest and objective in all our deliberations, to
nurture ethical behaviour, to respect the views of the
residents, the rights of all Councillors to express their
opinions and to be heard with respect and courtesy
and to make decisions for the common good of the
community.

FOR OUR SUPPLIERS AND CONTRACTORS

To communicate our requirements precisely, exercise and expect honesty in all
commerical dealings and observe all commercial commitments.
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ABOUT MOSMAN'S MANAGEMENT PLAN - MOSPLAN
Mosman's Community Strategic Plan, MOSPLAN, is our plan for Mosman’s future. It has been
developed over a number of years and addresses the specific requirements of the NSW Government’s
Integrated Planning and Reporting legislation and responds to the aspirations of the Mosman community
and its elected Council.
According to legislation, Council must adopt:
•
•
•

A Community Strategic Plan – a 10 year+ strategic direction for Mosman, supported by a Resourcing
Strategy which details Council’s approach to long term financial planning, workforce planning and
asset management planning
A four year Delivery Program – detailing the principal activities that Council will undertake to achieve
the long term vision contained in the Community Strategic Plan
A one year Operational Plan and Budget – outlining the actions Council will carry out in the coming
financial year to achieve the four-year Delivery Program and Council’s long-term vision

MOSPLAN is an integrated plan containing each of the three elements referred to above. Not only does
it clearly articulate a long-term Vision for the future, it also identifies how Council intends to deliver on
that Vision across 10, four and one year horizons.
MOSPLAN takes into account an extensive range of other strategies and plans prepared by Council to
address specific service areas or issues. Examples of these related documents include Asset
Management Plans and Development Control Plans.
MOSPLAN provides the framework for the delivery of services to the Mosman community in a manner
that is effective, efficient and planned in a logical and financially viable way. Council has a measurement
framework in place to gauge performance against key MOSPLAN deliverables.
Quarterly and annual reports are prepared in relation to MOSPLAN progress and a four-yearly report is
also prepared at the end of each Council term. The first of these four-yearly reports was released in
August 2012 and the report due in 2016 was deferred due to amalgamation processes on foot and the
deferred local government elections. The delayed End of Term Report 2012-2017 was submitted to
Council in August 2017 and reported in the Council’s 2016-17 Annual Report.
Mosman’s Vision, and the underlying values and commitments that support it, are reflected in four
MOSPLAN Themes that direct Council operations. These Themes are:

Social
Environment
Economic
Governance
The SOCIAL theme is Council’s people theme. It is about delivering and facilitating services to the
community - including services for all ages and abilities, volunteering, Aboriginal culture and heritage,
library services, Council’s community engagement activities, the art gallery, cultural activities, festive
events and friendship communities.
The ENVIRONMENT theme is about providing and protecting the type of living environment our
community deserves. It covers urban planning, heritage planning and protection, development
assessment, ecological sustainability, biodiversity conservation, waste management and street cleaning,
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environmental health management, water, air and noise management, traffic, transport, roads and
cycling, public places, open space management, community and recreational facilities.
The ECONOMIC theme is about local economic prosperity - including business liaison and support,
vitality of business centres, local employment, and sensitively marketing Mosman.
The GOVERNANCE theme is about providing support for all Council functions, leadership and
engagement. This includes Council meetings, consultation, finance and budgeting, integrated planning,
community safety, ranger services, information technology, human resource management, and regional
planning and cooperation.
These themes are supported by a series of 10 Programs that form Council’s four year Delivery Program
and one year Operational Plan.
The following diagram illustrates the integrated nature of MOSPLAN, and how ongoing engagement,
planning, service delivery, reporting and review processes all contribute to the evolution of the
document.

Council has agreed on 10-year Directions and Strategies for each of its 10 Program areas. The
Directions illustrate WHAT we want to achieve for the Mosman community and the Strategies identify
HOW Council will work toward achieving these directions. MOSPLAN Directions and Strategies,
arranged by Theme, are as follows:
SOCIAL

Programs
Community Wellbeing
Program Coordination: Manager Community Services
Direction Statement
A thriving, connected and healthy community that celebrates and respects diversity in age, interest,
culture and ability.
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Strategies
1. Anticipate, plan and provide for social change.
2. Advocate on behalf of the community to Commonwealth and State government and non-government
organisations.
3. Deliver integrated, inclusive and accessible services and programs that contribute to community
wellbeing.
4. Embrace partnerships and facilitate services that enrich the experience of living in Mosman.
5. Ensure community facilities are welcoming, accessible, support the effective delivery of services and
programs and serve as community hubs.
6. Maximise opportunities for residents to connect with and participate in community life.
Library and Information
Program Coordination: Manager Library Services and Manager Library Resources
Direction Statement
An informed, engaged community that values heritage, lifelong learning and literacy.

Strategies
1. Consolidate the library’s identity as a community hub: a functional, multipurpose space
accommodating intellectual, cultural, recreational and information services, life-long learning
opportunities, resources and activities for all age groups.
2. Deliver library services that are accessible and which anticipate and fulfil community expectations.
3. Develop and manage resources which cater for the information, lifelong learning and leisure needs of
the community.
4. Maintain key external partnerships, including the Shorelink Library Network.
5. Develop and maintain a Local Studies Collection that celebrates Mosman’s heritage, reflects all eras
of Mosman’s history and is appropriately preserved and accessible for future generations.
6. Communicate through a range of media, enabling the community to be well informed, engaged, and
actively participating in community life.
Arts and Culture
Program Coordination: Manager Cultural Services
Direction Statement
A place of cultural excellence that nurtures contemporary arts practices; that celebrates the richness of
Mosman’s distinctive local culture and heritage; and that delights, challenges, engages and inspires.

Strategies
1. Support, develop and showcase a broad range of contemporary arts, artists and arts practices, with
special emphasis on the visual arts.
2. Deliver and support events and other projects that celebrate Mosman, drawing inspiration from the
area’s artists, history, demographics, lifestyle and environment.
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3. Engage and extend arts audiences while building patronage and broad community support of local
cultural activities.
4. Promote the cultural services and programs provided and supported by Council to a wide audience.
5. Consolidate and extend the operations of the Mosman Art Gallery to ensure its continued leadership
of cultural initiatives and programs.
6. Create and maintain public art projects that enhance the public domain and generate community
pride.
7. Facilitate cultural opportunities through the development of partnerships and by harnessing public,
private and corporate resources.
ENVIRONMENT

Programs
Built Environment
Program Coordination: Manager Urban Planning and Manager Development Services
Direction Statement
A unique urban environment that is maintained and protected through strong planning and regulatory
practice, an appreciation of Mosman’s heritage, and a commitment to high quality infrastructure and
development.

Strategies
1. Maintain the special local character of Mosman with effective planning strategies in place.
2. Ensure Mosman’s position is strong within the framework of the State’s planning and regulatory
reforms.
3. Effectively manage the conservation of Mosman’s heritage.
4. Provide excellent planning information, advice and effective development assessment that delivers
high quality outcomes.
5. Contribute to a safe, healthy and responsible community through inspection of building works,
auditing of fire and swimming pool safety and effective regulatory enforcement.
6. Provide, maintain and sustainably manage Mosman’s public infrastructure including roads, footpaths,
drainage and marine structures.
Healthy Environment
Program Coordination: Manager Environment and Open Space
Direction Statement
A healthy natural environment that is protected and managed through regulatory practice and the
delivery of programs and services that promote cleanliness, health and positive environmental
outcomes.
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Strategies
1. Enhance community knowledge and awareness and foster long-term sustainable behaviours through
engagement programs.
2. Preserve and enhance biodiversity on both public and private land, including Mosman’s urban forest,
bushland, reserves, open space, beaches, intertidal zone and the marine environment.
3. Implement total water cycle management approaches to maximise water conservation, reuse and
efficiency, and improve water quality.
4. Reduce waste to landfill through the implementation of waste avoidance, minimisation, reuse and
recycling strategies and initiatives.
5. Implement and promote an integrated sustainable transport network throughout Mosman to increase
the uptake of health-wise transport modes.
6. Implement energy efficiency and conservation measures to reduce energy consumption, and apply
mitigation, adaptation and resilience strategies to address climate change risks.
7. Implement policies, practices and services to ensure the continued health and well-being of the
Mosman community, and cleanliness of the local environment.
8. Lobby and/or work with the Federal and State Governments, and regional organisations/local
Councils to advocate for stronger policy and legislation, and implement programs to achieve robust
sustained environmental outcomes.
Community Spaces
Program Coordination: Manager Engineering and Manager Environment and Open Space
Direction Statement
Public spaces and places that anticipate and respond to community needs, that promote opportunities to
connect, and that complement other local services and facilities.

Strategies
1. Provide, manage and maintain public land for the benefit of residents, businesses and visitors.
2. Manage parklands, sporting fields and recreational facilities in a manner that is well maintained, well
equipped and encourages healthy lifestyles.
3. Provide and maintain community buildings and facilities that are accessible, functional, fit-for purpose
and responsive to changing demographics and lifestyles.
4. Deliver civic and public spaces that promote community connections, complement Mosman’s
character, foster vitality in local business precincts and incorporate safe, accessible, functional and
well-designed facilities.
Transport and Traffic
Program Coordination: Manager Engineering
Direction Statement
Transport infrastructure and services that are safe, efficient, provide Mosman-friendly solutions, and
promote access and mobility.
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Strategies
1. Lobby State and Federal Government to improve transport along the Spit and Military Road Corridor.
2. Improve safety and accessibility in local streets through appropriate traffic management and
increased opportunities for active transport.
3. Have a managed parking strategy to meet the demand of residents and visitors.
ECONOMIC

Programs
Local Economy
Program Coordination: Director Community Development
Direction Statement
A strong local economy where businesses are in tune with local needs and where planning, services and
infrastructure help support economic prosperity.

Strategies
1. Support economic activity through appropriate planning controls, projects and partnerships with local
businesses, associations and networks.
2. Sensitively promote Mosman’s unique qualities, heritage and identity as part of local and regional
initiatives.
3. Capitalise on regional, State and Federal initiatives to help support businesses and the local
economy.
4. Pursue improvements to accessibility, functionality and public domain in and around business
centres.
GOVERNANCE

Programs
Leadership and Engagement
Program Coordination: Director Corporate Services and Director Community Development
Direction Statement
Providing excellent service and leadership to the Mosman community, actively involving community
members in local affairs and decision-making.

Strategies
1. Deliver a high level of customer service that is responsive, appropriate and subject to continuous
improvement.
2. Provide strong and effective leadership on issues of significance to Council and the Mosman
community.
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3. Explore, develop and maintain partnerships, networks and affiliations that support and enhance local
governance and improved community outcomes.
4. Build and maintain a commitment to integrated planning and reporting that responds to community
aspirations, sets direction and measures performance according to Council and community targets.
5. Actively inform and engage the community on matters of local interest, encouraging broad
participation and providing a range of opportunities for community involvement.
6. Acknowledge and support community aspirations, initiatives and achievements.
Governance and Risk
Program Coordination: Manager Governance, Chief Financial Officer, Manager IT Services, Manager
Compliance, Manager Engineering, Manager Human Resources
Direction Statement
An organisation that is well governed, accountable and managed in a way that is responsible,
sustainable and attuned to the needs of the community, elected members and staff.

Strategies
1. Support the ongoing financial sustainability of Mosman Council by applying sound financial planning,
principles and practices.
2. Anticipate and proactively manage risks relating to Council operations and the wider Mosman
community.
3. Provide a working environment that attracts and retains quality staff and encourages continuous
improvement and service excellence.
4. Contribute to a safer Mosman community through planning, partnerships, education, and emergency
management.
5. Sustainably manage local infrastructure through strategic asset planning and management.
6. Support good governance, customer service and communication with contemporary policies,
systems and processes.
MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS
Local government elections were held for the Mosman LGA on 9 September 2018 and accordingly there
are two Councils within this reporting period.
Members of Council 1 July 2017- 8 September 2017
MAYOR

Peter Abelson

DEPUTY MAYOR

Roy David Bendall

COUNCILLORS

Carolyn Corrigan
Peter Simon Menzies
Elizabeth Ann Moline
Thomas Sherlock
Peter White
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Members of Council 9 September 2017- 30 June 2018
MAYOR

Carolyn Corrigan

DEPUTY MAYOR

Roy David Bendall

COUNCILLORS

David Cook
Peter Simon Menzies
Elizabeth Ann Moline
Thomas Sherlock
Jacqueline Willoughby

COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS AND WORKSHOPS

Councillor
Cr P Abelson
Cr R D Bendall
Cr C A Corrigan
Cr P S Menzies
Cr E A Moline
Cr T Sherlock
Cr P C White

Meetings / Workshops attended 1 July 2017- 8 September 2017
Workshops
Traffic
Audit
Ordinary
Extraordinary
(0 held)
Committee *
Committee *
(2 held)
(0 held)
Detailed
(0 held)
(0 held)
below
2
2
2
2
2
2
1

-

-

-

-

* Only the member Councillor as listed on the relevant Committee is marked as attending the meeting or his/her delegate if the
Councillor is absent. No other Councillor is listed as attending regardless of whether they addressed the Committee or not.
No workshops were held for the retiring Council during this reporting period.

Meetings / Workshops attended 9 September 2017- 30 June 2018
Councillor

Ordinary
(9 held)

Extraordinary
(1 held)

Cr R D Bendall

8

1

Cr D Cook

8

1

Cr C A Corrigan
Cr P S Menzies
Cr E A Moline
Cr T Sherlock
Cr J Willoughby

8
9
7
7
9

1
1
1
1
1

Traffic
Committee *
(5 held)

Audit
Committee *
(3 held)

1
(as alternate)
5
-

2
2
(as alternate)
1
-

Workshops
(11 held)
Detailed
below
7
9
11
10
10
10
11

* Only the member Councillor as listed on the relevant Committee is marked as attending the meeting or his/her delegate if the
Councillor is absent. No other Councillor is listed as attending regardless of whether they addressed the Committee or not.
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Workshop
1.
2.
3.

MOSPLAN 1
Code of Conduct & Protected Disclosures
Foreshore Exemption/Scenic Exemption; Allan Border Oval Pavilion; Middle Head
oval pavilion; Centenary Circle Works; Mosman Rider; Immunisation
4. MOSPLAN 2
5. Civic Centre Refurb; Raglan Street West Carpark Redevelopment
6. Balmoral POM; coastal Zone Management Plan & Flood Study; Kimbriki
overview; Parking Technology
7. Social Media Policy/MOSPLAN 3 (KPIs)
8. Urban Planning Matters
9. MOSPLAN/Budget
10. RMS Clearways; Allan Border Oval Pavilion Design; Waste; Feedback on
MOSPLAN
11. Balmoral Childcare; Allan Border Oval Pavilion Design

Date
20 Oct 17
26 Oct 2017
31 Oct 2017
8 Nov 2017
28 Nov 2017
12 Dec 2017
30 Jan 2018
20 Feb 2018
20 Mar 2018
24 May 2018
14 Jun 2018

END OF TERM REPORT 2012-17
The End of Term Report, 2012-17, was included in the 2016-17 Annual Report.
COUNCIL MANAGEMENT
Mosman Council administration is organised into three departments each headed by a Director that
reports to the General Manager - Community Development, Corporate Services, and Environment and
Planning.
Community Development manages a wide range of services and facilities that support and enhance the
lives of residents of Mosman. These include the Mosman Library, Seniors’ Centre, Youth Centre, Art
Gallery and Cultural Centre, Family Day Care, Occasional Child Care, Before and After School Care,
Meals on Wheels and Community Restaurant, and Community Transport. Many of these services are
provided with the assistance of dedicated volunteers, who donate their time and effort to the community.
The Department is also responsible for community engagement, communication, social and cultural
planning, organising and coordinating special events such as the annual Mosman Festival and monthly
Mosman Markets, and providing advice and assistance to the business community.
Corporate Services provides management support to Councillors and Council staff, as well as a range of
services to the community. It comprises Customer Service, Governance, Financial Services, Information
Technology Services and Human Resources branches. The Director Corporate Services is Council’s
appointed Public Officer and Risk Manager. Among other duties, the Public Officer deals with requests
from the public concerning the Council’s affairs and has the responsibility of assisting people gain
access to Council’s public documents and responding to complaints against Council.
Environment and Planning fulfils a range of tasks relating to:
•
•
•
•

Regulatory development and building activities
Regulatory and compliance activities conducted by Ranger services
Environmental health and education programs and services including provision of domestic and
commercial waste and recycling services, street sweeping and beach and reserve cleaning
Strategic urban planning and heritage advisory services
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•

Engineering and asset management functions covering diverse items such as roads and traffic
improvements, stormwater drainage, sea-walls and jetties, parks and gardens, play equipment,
public buildings and structures, playing fields and bushland areas
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Section One

Progress Against Delivery Program

This page is left blank intentionally

1. REPORT ON PROGESS AGAINST DELIVERY PROGRAM 2017-18
Report on achievements in implementing Council's delivery program and the effectiveness of the
principal activities undertaken in achieving the objectives at which those principal activities are
directed
.
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MOSPLAN Delivery Program and
Operational Plan
Annual Report
2017/2018
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LEGEND






Completed
Progressing
Not Due To Start
Not Progressing

: Social
Community Wellbeing
Strategy

Action

Comment

Anticipate, plan and provide for
social change

• Demographic research
• Social planning
• Network development
• Community capacity building
• Community engagement
• Community consultation

This year has seen the completion of a project to map Mosman's Community
Services and Programs and to identify the gaps in services and how those gaps
might be filled.

• Initiate and support active youth
engagement programs

Youth programs continue to be popular, with volunteering becoming the key
programmed term-time activity for young people. A full consultation was held
during the year and the results will inform our programs in the coming years. As
part of that consultation young people reported that they felt Youth Services was
meeting their needs.



• Participation in regional and sector
planning and development forums
• Advocacy that responds to community

Contributions have been made where possible, particularly in relation to the
development of a set of indicators to measure the impact of services on inclusion



Advocate on behalf of the
community to Commonwealth
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Strategy

Action

Comment

and State government and nongovernment organisations

concerns
• Participation in State and Commonwealth
government planning processes for
community services

of older adults. This work was done in collaboration with NSROC, and will be
extended to other services over time.

Deliver integrated, inclusive
and accessible services and
programs that contribute to
community wellbeing

• Occasional Care, Long Day Care and
Pre-School
• Before and After School Care
• Vacation Care
• Immunisation Clinic
• After School Activities
• Parenting Education
• Saturday Youth Group
• Mosman Care Café
• Mosman Rider
• Saturday Respite
• Community Transport
• Food Services
• Healthy Ageing Programs
• Senior’s Centre Leisure Activities
• Carers’ Group
• Volunteering
• Social Support
• Access and Mobility Community
• Friday nights for Young People with a
Disability

Progress

Utilisation of Mosman Council's services has grown during the year with a
number of new initiatives being introduced. Children's Before and After School
and Vacation Services achieved an exceptional rating in an external quality audit.
Due to falling numbers and increasing compliance, Council made the decision to
close the Immunisation Clinic and falling numbers led to the closure at the end of
the year of the Mosman Rider.



• Instigate and establish a Community
Services online presence and payment
system

A number of online initiatives have been introduced during the year, including
enhancements to point of sale, an online engagement tool for parents in
Children's Services and a range of digital improvements to services that help
manage or reduce the compliance load.



• Review the provision of childhood
immunisation services

The provision of immunisation services for children was reviewed during the year
and Council resolved to close the clinic. An information campaign was prepared
to ensure that parents were aware of the closure and other options available. The
clinic's last month of operation was March 2018.



• Seek funding from Commonwealth and
State governments to provide Food

Council has been advised that funding will continue for all its Aged Care
programs, with the exception of the Community Visitors' Scheme, until 2020.
State Government funding has been rolled into NDIS and clients are now
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Services, Social Support, Community
Transport and Community Visitor Scheme

charged for services if they receive funding packages. While we have been
advised that some Children's Services funding will be discontinued, the details
including dates have not been communicated.

• Implement Council's Disability Inclusion
Action Plan 2017-2021

The actions identified under the Disability Inclusion Action Plan have all been
achieved for the period.

• Community Grants
• Family Day Care
• Programs with Schools including health,
mental health and drug and alcohol
programs
• Mosman Men’s Shed
• Community English language classes
• Northern Sydney Local Health District
Projects
• Family Support Projects
• Living with Memory Loss Program
• Lifeline Support Programs

Council continues to provide support to a range of organisations that meet and
work in Mosman. During this year a series of workshops was held to build the
capacity of community groups with the intention of enhancing their ability to meet
the needs of the community and to develop networks with other groups operating
in the area.

Ensure community facilities are
welcoming, accessible, support
the effective delivery of
services and programs and
serve as community hubs

• Youth Centre
• Seniors’ Centre and Lounge
• Mosman Occasional Care Centre
• Cremorne Early Childhood Health Centre
• Mosman Drill Hall

With major refurbishment of the centres having been undertaken over recent
years, this year the emphasis was on improving ambience. Plans have been
approved to make a designated meeting space in the Youth Centre, and a small
interview room has been fitted out in the Seniors' Centre. This space has been
used during the year by clients and by agencies providing advice, information
and support for Mosman residents.

Maximise opportunities for
residents to connect with and
participate in community life

• Volunteering
• Connections Playgroup
• Children’s Week
• Children’s Fair
• Youth Week
• Shorefest
• 24/7 Film Festival
• Seniors’ Lounge and Seniors’ Centre
• Community Visitor’s Scheme
• Seniors’ Week
• Community Restaurant

A number of events were held during the year, all designed to encourage
residents to connect. Volunteering continues to be popular and enormously
effective.

Embrace partnerships and
facilitate services that enrich
the experience of living in
Mosman
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

• Carer’s Group
• Community Transport
• Mosman Rider
• New Residents’ Events and Information
• Community Events (including Harmony
Day, International Women’s Day &
International Day of People with Disability,
Guringai Festival).

The Communications Team's Events staff delivered a range of popular
community events during 2017/18 including Council's annual International
Women's Day breakfast, International Day of People with Disability event,
Celebrating Mosman's Independence, Mayor's Christmas Reception and
supported the coordination of the regional Gai-maragal Festival as well as
coordinating support for community events through Council's Special Event
Management Policy. Digital information has been distributed to support new
residents in the community via Council's website and through other channels.



• Monitor and review Mosman Rider
service

Due to dwindling patronage and the availability of other transport options for
some users of the Rider, Council resolved to cease operation of the Mosman
Rider service on 30 June. Enhancements have been made to Council's
Community Transport, in the form of the A2B Mosman service, to ensure that
transport is still available for Mosman residents who are transport disadvantaged.



• Pursue opportunities to address
marginalised groups of young people in
the community

Youth Services continues to provide opportunities for young people to engage,
as well as a trusted referral pathway for youth whose needs cannot be met in the
service. Regional opportunities are also being explored for the 2018/19 period.



Strategy

Action

Comment

Consolidate the Library’s identity
as a community hub; a
functional, multipurpose space
accommodating intellectual,
cultural, recreational and
information services, life-long
learning opportunities, resources
and activities for all age groups

• Ongoing community consultation through
Library Annual User Survey, social
networking tools and face to face
customer contact
• Marketing and promoting the Library
using a range of media
• Providing programs and activities for all
age groups
• Ongoing review and evaluation of Library
services and programs

Marketing of the Library on a regular basis continued using regular media and
social media channels. The Library's Annual User Survey was conducted in July
2017 and the overall satisfaction with the Library Service and experience was
99.37%.

Library and Information
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Strategy

Delivery of library services that
are accessible and which
anticipate and fulfil community
expectations

Action

Comment

• Provide an indoor/outdoor space for the
enjoyment and benefit of library users on
Level 1 of the Barry O'Keefe Library

Building work is approved and scheduled for commencement in November 2018.

• Home Library Service
• Inter Library Loan Service
• Reader Education to develop information
literacy skills
• Information accessible to Library
customers in-house and electronically
• Lifelong learning programs including
Monday Matters & Technology Tuesday
Talks
• Services for children and teens
• Outreach programs such as staff visits to
schools
• Library visits by school classes
• Services and resources that support
school curricula and local students
• Services to high school students
including HSC Lock-ins
• Regular author events
• Annual Mosman Youth Awards in
Literature competition
• Marketing and promotional activities
including Library Lovers’ Day, Seniors
Week and Australian Library and
Information Week
• Reader education
• Reader Advisory Services including Book
Clubs, Mosman Readers and Reading
Lounge

Regular services continued and programs and special events were held from
July 2017 to June 2018 with the following highlights.
The 25th Mosman Youth Awards in Literature Competition was held with 350
entries and the very popular HSC Lock-Ins were held in the lead-up to the 2017
Higher School Certificate Examination with around 200 students attending.
Special talks and workshops were held to celebrate Jane Austen's 200th
Anniversary in July 2017, National Science Week in August, History and Adult
Learners' Weeks in September 2017, Mental Health Month in October 2017, the
Seniors Festival in March 2018 and the Heritage Festival in April 2018.
A special morning tea was held on 8 December 2017 to celebrate Christmas with
the clients and volunteers of the Home Library Service.
In January 2018 a special Instagram competition for adult readers was held
called #MOSMANREADS.

• Investigate the implementation of a
cashless payment system for library fees
and charges at self check-out kiosks,
including operational and financial
considerations

Options were investigated and quotations sought from Monitor Systems who
supply the Booking/Print Management solution for Library's public access PCs
and can provide payment options for our self check-out kiosks. Further
consideration will be given to this payment option when upgrading the self checkout kiosk in 2019/20.
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Develop and manage resources
which cater for the information,
life-long learning and leisure
needs of the community

• Maintain, develop and evaluate the
collection
• Provide print, audiovisual and electronic
resources
• Review Resources Selection Guidelines
• Improve literacy resources
• Analyse customer feedback to ensure
that resources meet community needs
• Improve access to document delivery
services and online resources
• Maintain awareness of developments in
electronic publishing and document
delivery
• Train staff and customers in the use of
the Library’s IT resources
• Cumulus digital asset management
system

Collection development and review is ongoing, incorporating customer feedback.
The Library’s annual user survey (July 2017) confirmed the high level of
satisfaction with the collection (94%). The new Fast Reads Service, launched in
August 2017, proved very popular with customers with 3,800 titles being
borrowed in the first year. The monthly eXplore eBooks and Technology
Tuesdays programs assist customers to access, navigate and download online
resources. A new print management system, installed in July 2017, has
streamlined printing and photocopying services. Internet and wi-fi service
response time were improved with the installation of an additional ADSL2+ line.

• Further improve digital resources in
response to changing technology and
customer needs

New eBook and eAudiobook titles have been added to the collection and a new
app was installed to improve access. Downloads increased by 22% over the
previous year.

Shorelink Library Network:
• Maintain membership
• Review ShorePlan (Shorelink Strategic
Plan) and implement cooperative services,
activities and programs
• Operate the Library Management System

Mosman, Lane Cove and North Sydney Councils confirmed that they will
continue their membership of Shorelink, acknowledging the value that the
cooperative network delivers to their communities.

• Participate in professional networks
including NSW Public Libraries
Association
• Participate in campaigns to lobby State
and Federal Governments to increase
public library funding
• Apply for grants to fund Library projects
• Host and service the School Principals’
Liaison Group

The Library was successful in obtaining funding of $185,000 from The State
Government's Library Infrastructure Grants Program for the Barry O'Keefe
Library Indoor Garden Reading Zone Project in May 2018.
Manager Library Services attended meetings of the NSW Public Libraries
Association throughout the year and meetings of the School Principals' Liaison
Group were held once per term.

Maintain key external
partnerships including the
Shorelink Library Network
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Strategy

Develop and maintain a Local
Studies Collection that
celebrates Mosman’s heritage,
reflects all eras of Mosman’s
history and is appropriately
preserved and accessible for
future generations

Communication through a range
of media, enabling the
community to be well informed,

Action

Comment

• Participate as an active member of the
Shorelink Library Network, including
involvement in future planning for the
network

Future planning for Shorelink included formulation of a new funding formula for
the remaining three Councils. A new Deed of Agreement was signed by the three
Councils in December 2017.
Development of a new strategic plan for Shorelink has commenced.

• Collection management and evaluation
• Conservation and preservation of fragile
material
• Workshops and training for individuals,
groups and Council staff
• Curation of displays and exhibitions
• Support for the Mosman Historical
Society
• Support and development of Local
Studies volunteers team
• Online projects including ‘Mosman
Memories of Your Street’, ‘Mosman
Voices’, ‘Mosman Faces’ and ‘Doing our
Bit: Mosman 1914-1918’, Trace Digital
Archive

The Library successfully negotiated the return of the Carroll Collection Items
which had been stored at the State Library of New South Wales for over 40
years.
The major exhibition for 2017/18 was 'News by Locals' which was devised to
coincide with the 100 year anniversary celebrations of Mosman Daily. Mosman
Memories of Your Street continues to grow with 42 personal memories added to
the website over the year.

• Build on Great War Project: program of
seminars, workshops

Blog posts were published through out the year on the Doing Our Bit website.
Three talks were held and an exhibition of Anzac Day Stories was exhibited to
commemorate Anzac Day.



• Develop and promote Trace Digital
Archive

Over 2000 items including photographs and scrapbooks were digitised and
uploaded to Trace in 2017/18.



• Upgrade the Mosman Voices website to
include new oral history extracts together
with stories and images from Council's
Local Studies Collection

The Mosman Voices website was reviewed and interviews assessed. Interesting
extracts were identified and edited. In total 29 extracts were selected for
uploading to Mosman Voices with sound (recordings) and transcripts submitted
to the web team for uploading. The images to accompany the extracts have been
selected and will be added in 2018/19.



• Maintenance and improvement of
website functionality and efficiency
• Council business papers, policies, forms
available online

Websites and apps have been maintained and improved during 2017/18 with
highlights including homepage and feedback updates to Mosman Council's 2017released resident app MyMosman and the addition of search functionality to
Council's mobile site. The app and consistent marketing across various digital
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Strategy

Action

Comment

engaged, and actively
participating in community life

• Online facilities for community
consultation and feedback
• Promotion of website and online spaces
to community and staff
• Extension of range and quality of
information published online
• Digital talks and workshops to support
community participation and collaboration
online

channels have supported a number of key community consultations including a
cross-platform campaign seeking input into the development of Mosman's next
Community Strategic Plan - MOSPLAN 2018-2028, lighting for netball courts at
Mosman Drill Hall Common and the promotion of nominations for Mosman's
Citizen and Young Citizen of the Year. Council's social media channels have
continued to experience growth with Facebook achieving 1800 likes, Twitter
passing 4,600 followers and posts to Council's Instagram account gaining strong
interest.

• Community Information Service:
• Update the LINCS Community
Information database
• Printed directories, lists of services and
facilities, brochures
• Information disseminated via Council
website, social media, press,
noticeboards, brochures

The LINCS Community Information Database was updated as part of the annual
update. Information was disseminated via Council website, social media. press,
noticeboards and direct enquiries.

Strategy

Action

Comment

Support, develop and showcase
a broad range of contemporary
arts, artists and arts practices,
with special emphasis on the
visual arts

• Mosman Art Prize
• Annual programming – Mosman Art
Gallery
• Maintenance, conservation,
documentation and cataloguing of the
Mosman Art Collection
• Facilitation, advocacy and promotion of
local artists, craft practitioners and
designers
• Assistance to community organisations
planning and providing arts and craft
activities and events
• Planning and administration of the
monthly Mosman Market

During 2017/18 selected staff and volunteers received training in the use of
Vernon, a recently acquired software package for the management of art
collections. The Gallery is planning to migrate all existing data for the collection
into this new system and will seek to enhance its capacity in the future with
tracking capabilities. 12 market events were run in this time including the Twilight
Christmas Market, providing opportunities for local artisans. Local artists and
artisans were also supported through the Gallery's Galleria retail outlet and by
featuring local artists in the In Profile space. A new Arts and Culture Community
Consultative Committee was appointed by Council. The 70th Anniversary
Mosman Art Prize successfully launched with a first prize of $50,000 - over 750
entries were received and 88 finalists displayed.

Progress



Arts and Culture
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

• Arts and Culture Community Consultative
Committee

Deliver and support events and
other projects that celebrate
Mosman, drawing inspiration
from the area’s artists, history,
demographics, lifestyle and
environment

• Investigate opportunities to provide
expanded, climate-controlled storage
facilities for the Mosman Art Gallery
Collection, including relevant cost
considerations

Plans have been developed for the conversion of the former Council Archive
Room in the Civic Centre into an climate controlled art storage facility. Funds for
this purpose have been included in the 2018/19 Capital budget and the works will
be completed as part of the Civic Centre upgrade. $20,000 in grant money has
been received from Create NSW's Creative Capital program for this purpose and
a further grant has been submitted to Clubgrants Category Three for additional
funding.



• Exhibitions, public programs and online
resources
• Promotion of Mosman’s artistic heritage
• InSitu Festival of Sculpture & Installation

Notable public programs in 2017/18: the public program associated with HALO
where over 1000 community members participated in exhibition building
activities, Friends excursions to artists studios and the 2017 Sculpture-by-theSea exhibition, guided tours and artistic interventions of the historic artist camp
site at Sirius Cove the staging of a series of ephemeral art events in association
with the 2017 Festival of Mosman including the Aquilizan Crush, public art
consultation, development and presentation of the sound installation The
Moment Under the Moment, relocation of the Sporting Wall of Fame,
performance art featuring Bungaree and public drawing performances on Sydney
Ferries.



• Harmony Day celebrations
• International Women’s Day
• Annual Guringai Festival
• Other civic & community events
• Festival of Mosman

The biennial Festival of Mosman occurred during the 2017/18 year with more
than 20,000 people attending a range of 50 community, arts and other events
across the 10-day period. Along with the festival, several other major events
were held during the year, including International Day of People with Disability,
International Women's Day, a function celebrating Mosman and the Mayor's
Christmas Reception.



• Consolidate the process of reinvigorating the Festival of Mosman in
collaboration with the local community,
businesses and other key stakeholders

The Festival of Mosman 2017 attracted strong attendances, drawing an
estimated 20,000 people across 50 community and civic events, including a
highlight Freedom of Entry parade, from 13 to 22 October. Feedback and
observations from the 2015 festival were closely reviewed ahead of the 2017
festival and further changes are planned for the 2019 Festival of Mosman,
including delivery of a number of different events, to continue the process of
refreshing the range of events and activities on offer.
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Engage and extend arts
audiences while building
patronage and broad community
support of local cultural activities

• Arts & Culture Community Consultative
Committee
• Event promotions
• Gallery Friends
• Gallery volunteer program
• Creative Circle philanthropy program

Nominations were called for membership of the current Council's Art and Culture
Community Consultative Committee and a new committee was selected and
endorsed. The Gallery now has over 500 financial members under the Friends of
Mosman Art Gallery program. Cultural Services maintains an active volunteer
program with 40 volunteers active on a range of programs including welcoming,
gallery invigilation, education, mail-outs and collection management. The new
Arts and Culture Community Consultative Committee met for its first meeting in
March and met again in June. A newly appointed Philanthropy Officer
commenced in January and has worked to consolidate and expand existing
donor and sponsorship and grant opportunities.



Promote the cultural services
and programs provided and
supported by Council to a wide
audience

• Promotion of community events and
recreational and cultural services and
facilities, including use of Council’s events
calendar, web marketing and local media

Community events and Council's other services and facilities have been
promoted through advertising and marketing during the quarter, including
marketing support and delivery of Festival of Mosman 2017 including Freedom of
Entry parade, Guringai Festival, International Women's Day breakfast, Harmony
Day, Seniors Festival, Mosman Art Prize, Youth Awards in Literature, Mosman
Design Awards, International Day of People with Disability as well as regular
events and services. Strong local media coverage was achieved for a number of
events, including Festival of Mosman, International Women's Day with opera
singer Amelia Farrugia and the Mosman Art Prize's 70th year.



• Promotion and marketing of Mosman Art
Gallery and Community Centre programs,
activities and opportunities for venue hire

The programs and activities of Mosman Art Gallery and Community Centre
(including venue hire) were promoted to a wide audience through a variety of
means including: the operations and maintenance of a dedicated website, regular
e-newsletters for members and subscribers, direct mailouts, brochures, exhibition
calendar of events, posters, print advertising and the use of social media
including Facebook, Twitter and Instagram.



• Calendar of exhibitions
• Mosman Youth Art Prize
• Artists of Mosman: 2088
• Mosman Art Society
• Children’s education program
• Public/education programs and special
events
• Mosman Art Prize and Allan Gamble
Memorial Art Prize
• Friends of the Gallery and Gallery

Between July 2017- June 2018 Mosman Art Gallery conducted 21 separate
exhibitions and associated public programs. These included Halo- Bayanihan
Philippine Art Project (in partnership with the Art Gallery of New South Wales,
Blacktown Arts Centre, Campbelltown Arts Centre, Peacock Gallery Auburn and
Museums and Galleries NSW), the 70th Anniversary exhibition of the Mosman
Art Prize, Unpacked - the Mosman Art Collection Project, Mosman Arts Society
exhibition, Bush to Bay - Hinton and the Artists Camps, Helen Alajajian;
Transience, Ashley Morgan: Threshold, Mulan Gock: Between the Tides, the
Balnaves Gift and Moving Histories/Future Projects, The Moment Under the
Moment, Khaled Sabsabi: Organised Confusion, Stephen Coburn: The Road to



Consolidate and extend the
operations of the Mosman Art
Gallery to ensure its continued
leadership of cultural initiatives
and programs
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Volunteers programs
• In Profile local artists exhibitions
• Gallery shop

Tribal Sun, Australian Exotica, Mosman Youth Art Prize, Artists of Mosman:2088,
Rosemary Christmas: Beyond, and HALO: Redux. .
The Gallery's Tokkotai projects was highly commended at the IMAGINE Awards
and Museums and Galleries National Awards.

Create and maintain public art
projects that enhance the public
domain and generate community
pride

• Partnership projects with the Mosman
Public Art Trust
• Annual Mosman Address
• Maintenance of Public Art works

The Sporting Wall of Fame has been successfully relocated to the Dame Marie
Bashir Sports Centre (it had formerly been located outside the Mosman Swim
Centre but was relocated due to WHS and maintenance issues). As a result of
feedback from public consultation during the Pets Day Out event a donated
bronze dog, Alinta will be installed at Clifton Gardens Reserve in 2018/19. The
Mosman Address was not scheduled in 2017. The White Flower was in urgent
need of maintenance - it was removed for significant works and upgrade and has
now been fully restored and reinstalled on its original site.



Facilitate cultural opportunities
through the development of
partnerships and by harnessing
public, private and corporate
resources

• Friendship Agreements with Otsu,
(Japan), Mudanjiang (China), Isle of Wight
(United Kingdom), Maubara (East Timor),
Paciano (Italy) and Norfolk Island
• Annual Glen Innes Celtic Festival
• Friendship community exchanges,
partnerships and collaborations

The previously elected Council determined that three of the existing Friendship
agreements should be actively maintained - Otsu (Japan), Mudanjiang (China)
and Glen Innes (NSW).
In July, Mosman Council hosted a delegation from Otsu (Japan) Chamber of
Commerce and Industry. The delegation meetings were also attended by
members of Japan Local Government Centre Sydney (CLAIR).
As part of the 2017 Festival of Mosman over 100 artworks from primary school
students from both Otsu (Japan) and Mosman were displayed as part of the 'My
Ideal Festival' exhibition at Mosman Art Gallery.
In November 2017, Mosman Council hosted a delegation from Mudanjiang City
Council.
Ongoing contact is maintained with Glen Innes, Otsu and Mudanjiang, with Glen
Innes continuing their engagement through the Aboriginal Women's Program.
A visit by the Mayor of Mosman to Otsu is planned for early 2018/19.



• Glen Innes Aboriginal Art Education
Project

After some discussion, Glen Innes Severn Council has made an application for a
grant to continue the work being done with the Aboriginal Art Project. This project
will again target mothers and young children and will be run in conjunction with
the Council Library, with one aim being to encourage mothers to visit the Library
and use its facilities.
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: Environment
Built Environment
Strategy

Action

Comment

Maintain the special local
character of Mosman with
effective planning strategies in
place

• Implementation of Plans of Management,
Recreation Strategy Action Plans and
Management Frameworks
• Preparation, review and monitoring of
open space Plans of Management
• Implementation and Review – Mosman
Local Environmental Plan and
Development Control Plans
• Mosman Housing Strategy
implementation and review
• Ongoing monitoring and response to
State policies and plans
• Biennial Mosman Design Awards
• Contribute to Sydney Harbour Federation
Trust Management Plan review
• Demographic analysis and forecasting

Archaeological sites amendment to LEP: this amendment to Mosman Local
Environmental Plan 2012 which amended the heritage listing of archaeological
sites was completed and notified on 9 February 2018.
Amendments to DCPS: The development control plans were amended to reflect
changes in the heritage rankings, delete the section on "What to submit with a
DA", and various other updates that are from time to time necessary to keep
them current and relevant.

• Prepare Planning Proposals to amend
Mosman LEP2012 as required

No planning proposals were initiated in the 12 month reporting period.

• Prepare a Guidance Document for Spit
Junction, Mosman Junction and land along
the Spit and Military Road corridors

Work is progressing on this project with the completion of a traffic study to inform
the planning for these two local centres.

• Ensure Mosman's significant foreshore
slopes are protected from inappropriate
development

Council planners have continued to advocate for permanent exclusion of the
Scenic Protection Area from the provisions of the Housing Code of the Codes
SEPP. This has included meetings with Government officials and the local
member, correspondence, commissioning and completing a Visual Analysis
Study and investigating alternative planning strategies. In June 2018 the
Government exhibited an amendment to the Codes SEPP which would extend
Mosman's temporary exclusion for a further two years expiring on 30 November
2020. In addition, the Government introduced a new code called the Low Rise
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

Medium Density Code which would allow various types of medium density
housing to be constructed without the need for a development application.
Council sought and was granted a one year exclusion from this Code.
Ensure Mosman’s position is
strong within the framework of
the State’s planning and
regulatory reforms

Effectively manage the
conservation of Mosman’s
heritage

• Ongoing advocacy and lobbying to
protect Mosman’s interests in relation to
Government policy, inquiries and
legislation
• Participation in consultations, workshops
and information sessions on State policy,
regulation and legislative change
• Participation in regional and other
planning networks
• Community engagement on major
planning proposals and reforms

Submissions:
Twelve submissions were prepared on Government draft policies and plans.
Issues included amendments to SEPPs, draft Regional and District Plans, draft
Headland Interpretation Study and the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Regulation review.
Consultations/workshops:
Greater Sydney Commission and Department of Planning and Environment
hosted the first of a series of working group meetings in June 2018 to inform the
preparation of various local strategic planning initiatives - LEP Review, Local
Housing Strategy, Local Strategic Planning Statement and Community

• Implement relevant actions arising from
the Draft North District Plan.

North District Plan was made by the Greater Sydney Commission in March 2018.
Priorities and actions that are relevant to Mosman will be the subject of an LEP
Review (health check) due in October 2018 to assess how closely aligned
Mosman LEP2012 is to the North District Plan and identify priorities for future
work.



Heritage Fund:
The heritage fund provides $ for $ funding for small maintenance projects on
heritage properties. Owners are eligible for grants up to $1,000 or $3,000
depending on the heritage listing. This year ten projects received funding, three
were heritage items and the others were in heritage conservation areas. The
types of works funded included brick tuck pointing, replacement fence and gate
restoration, front door replacement, roofing repairs and external painting.
Heritage Advisory Service:
Council's heritage advisor visits every three weeks to provide expert heritage
advice to owners of heritage buildings, their architects and to Council's planners
and engineers. This year he attended Council 16 times to consider and provide
feedback on 141 matters and attended 21 meetings.
HCA rankings review:
A review of all buildings within Mosman's 13 heritage conservation areas was
completed. The review was undertaken by a heritage consultant and then peer
reviewed to ensure a robust process. The previous rankings were based on the
1996 Heritage Study so a review was timely in view of alteration and additions,
and some demolitions, that have occurred in the 22 years since then. The
revised rankings are used as a guide to developers and owners about the level of



• Implementation of Aboriginal Heritage
Study recommendations
• Local Heritage Fund
• State Heritage Inventory updates
• Heritage conservation promotion
• Heritage Advisory Service – providing
advice on heritage matters and community
education
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

contribution each building makes to the significance of the conservation areas
and as a tool in development assessment.
Provide excellent planning
information, advice and
effective development
assessment that delivers high
quality outcomes

Contribute to a safe, healthy
and responsible community
through inspection of building
works, auditing of fire and
swimming pool safety and
effective regulatory
enforcement

• Dedicated Duty Planner service for faceto-face consultation and advice
• Planning Certificates
• e-communications
• Targetted engagement, workshops and
information sessions
• Maintenance and improvement of iPlan
• Assessment of Development
Applications having regard to relevant
performance standards, legislation, codes
and policies
• Mosman Development Assessment
Panel

A continuing high level of service has been delivered through Council's Duty
Planner Service and throughout the Development Application process. The
Planning Teams have been and continue to work towards service delivery
improvement through Planning Certificate delivery, on-line communication and
iPlan improvement.

• Monitoring and review of approved
development

Ongoing actioning of Customer Requests regarding concerns relating to
developments under construction to ensure compliance with development
consent.



• Interactive online production and delivery
of planning certificates and information

Planners have continued to work on this IT project with the IT Department and
Council's contractor to implement online planning certificates and an updated
template to improve efficiency in the delivery of this service to customers and
ensure accuracy of information. The project has been delayed by errors identified
in testing, changes to State Government policy, and resourcing issues.



• Undertake and promote e-planning
initiatives to improve customer service and
delivery of planning information

This is an ongoing project affecting certificates, forms and processes, with
incremental changes being made.

• Regulatory enforcement, management of
building sites and environmental controls
• Fire safety inspections
• Implementation of Fire Safety Program
• Provision of policy and regulatory
information relating to development control
• Provision of information on swimming
pool safety fencing and inspection service

The Compliance Team undertake ongoing services to enforce building site
compliance which involves a multifaceted approach to involve the appointed
Principal Certifier as part of the regulatory process.
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The Combustible External Cladding Audit has been developed which has
identified 21 buildings in Mosman LGA as having potential non-compliant
cladding. Enforcement action is progressing to have the cladding certified and
brought into compliance.
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Strategy

Action

Comment

• Swimming pool inspections
• Swimming Pool Register

The Annual Fire Safety Statement Program has been developed to identify the
premises in the Mosman LGA required to submit AFSS. Monthly reminders and
enforcement action forms part of the program to ensure fire safety measures in
buildings are maintained. The program is ready to be implemented in the 20182019 reporting year.

Progress

49 Fire safety inspections were undertaken.
Ongoing service to community to provide advice and information regarding pool
safety compliance and services to inspect pool safety barriers.

248 pool safety inspections have been undertaken
The NSW Swimming Pool Register has been maintained to detail the number of
swimming pools in the Mosman LGA and certificates issued.
Provide, maintain and
sustainably manage Mosman’s
public infrastructure including
roads, footpaths, drainage and
marine structures

• Annual renewal and maintenance
programs – stormwater assets, marine
structures and road assets

During the 2017/18 financial year Council completed the renewal and
maintenance works of roads, footpaths, kerb and gutter, stormwater and marine
structure assets as planned. The notable drainage works undertaken were the
Balmoral Beach Stormwater Pipe replacement, Marsala Street Drainage
Improvement works. Balmoral Baths Turning Board works have been planned for
July / August 2018. Bradleys Head and Athol Wharf Road rehabilitation works
partially funded by RMS made good progress ensuring the works' completion in
July 2018.



• Pursue rectification works to the Spit
East Seawall and footpath

The road safety audit for Spit East footpath and Bike Path was approved by RMS
in June 2018. Council commenced preparation of the detailed designs. The
commencement of the on ground works on the footpath is scheduled for end of
year 2018.



• Undertake retaining wall rectification
works at Mosman Bowling Club

Mosman Bowling Club front Retaining Wall work completed. The western half of
the Retaining Wall was structurally unstable posing public safety risks. This
section of the Retaining Wall was made stable with structural support from
behind while maintaining the heritage listed existing retaining wall fascia.
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Community Spaces
Strategy

Action

Comment

Provide, manage and maintain
public land for the benefit of
residents, businesses and
visitors

• Property leasing, licensing and
management
• Review of opportunities for improved use
of public land and facilities

All actions relating to property leasing, licensing and management conducted as
planned. Opportunities for improved use of public land and facilities reviewed and
actioned as appropriate and detailed under the relevant programs and strategies
elsewhere in this report. Council has resolved to call Tenders for the lease and
management of the Balmoral Bathers Pavilion in view of the expiration of the
current lease at the end of 2019.

Manage parklands, sporting
fields and recreational facilities in
a manner that is well maintained,
well-equipped and encourages
healthy lifestyles

• Annual renewal and maintenance
program – Parks and Open Space
• Auditing of tree pruning and removal
permit approvals
• National Tree Day activities
• Urban Forest Management Register
• Sporting fields user group surveys and
meetings
• Management of open space
maintenance contracts
• Bushland walking track upgrades
• Project delivery according to priority
programs and Plans of Management

National Tree Day was completed in July 2017 and Sport Field User Group
meetings were held in August 2017 and February 2018. All open space
maintenance contracts have been reviewed, renewed and are ongoing. The
Street Tree Master Plan has been updated and the new Urban Forest Policy was
adopted by Council in July 2017. Tree permit audit works have been completed
with 100% compliance. Unmade Gooseberry Lane and Quakers Hat Park
bushland track upgrade works have been completed. All projects have been
delivered according to Plans of Management.

•Management of Mosman Swim Centre,
Marie Bashir Mosman Sports Centre and
Mosman Drill Hall

Planned court re-surfacing renewal works for Marie Bashir Sports Centre were
successfully completed during Q4, 2017/18 resulting in a higher standard facility.
Work is underway to renew the lease (pursuant to exercise of an option) of the
Mosman Swim Centre for a further five years from December 2018.



• Annual inspections of Shark Nets at
Clifton Gardens Baths and Balmoral Baths

Annual program completed with large scale replacement of nets undertaken at
Balmoral and patching complete at Clifton Gardens.



• Review contract for turf management

The turf management contract tender assessment was reported to Council in
June 2017 and a new five year contract was awarded.



• Undertake action arising from the 2015
Mosman Recreational Needs Report,
subject to availability of resources

Drill Hall Netball Court Lighting DA is yet to be accepted by SHFT. A basketball
hoop facility was built at Balmoral Oval in August 2017 and new outdoor fitness
equipment will be installed in August 2018. Council resolved in December 2017
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

not to pursue the installation of a synthetic playing surface at Middle Head Oval
for at least the next three years. BBQs were installed at Clifton Gardens and
Spit West.
• Replace turning board at Balmoral Baths

The replacement of the swimming turning boards at Balmoral Baths on-site work
was rescheduled to commence in July 2018 and will be completed in August well
in time for the swimming season.



• Install community BBQs at various
locations

Electric BBQs were installed at Clifton Gardens (4 plates) and Spit West (2
plates) in December 2017. Further installations planned at Rosherville (2 plates)
and Sirius Cove Reserve (2 plates).



• Upgrade playground facilities at Memory
Park and Memorial Park

Memorial Park playground on ground works were completed at the start of
November 2017 with the playground proving popular with high use levels
observed. Memory Park playground on ground works were completed at the start
of July 2018. The playground has been well received with high patronage
observed daily. Both playgrounds were completed under budget.



Provide and maintain community
buildings and facilities that are
accessible, functional, fit-forpurpose and responsive to
changing demographics and
lifestyles

• Annual renewal and maintenance
program – Buildings Assets
• Programmed e-inspections of building
assets
• Access audits for community facilities,
subject to funding

The Library Walk Public Amenities were upgraded to include ambulant toilets in
both male and female amenities. Council also arranged to replace the dilapidated
wheelchair lift at Balmoral Bathers' Pavilion later in the year 2018.

Deliver civic and public spaces
that promote community
connections, complement
Mosman’s character, foster
vitality in local business precincts
and incorporate safe, accessible,
functional and well-designed
facilities

• Implementation of planting program in
accordance with Street Tree Master Plan
• Programmed Playground and Street Tree
Inspections
• Participation in National Benchmarking
Surveys

National benchmarking program participation was completed in October 2017.
Playground and street tree inspections are ongoing with a new street tree
planting program completed June 2018.

• Visual Amenity – Signage & Advertising
Community Consultative Committee

The Committee continues to meet and has had input in the Balmoral promenade
work and also the colour choice of the Civic Centre. Works arising for the group
has also seen new additional signage being installed, street signs being
upgraded and more old street signs removed.



• Review contract for tree management

The tree contract specification was reported to Council in August 2017 and the
contract and specification were placed on Tenderlink. The tender assessment
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

was reviewed by Council on 5 December 2017 and a new five year tree contract
for both street and park trees was awarded in December 2017.
• Implement Centenary Circle
improvement works

The Centenary Circle Improvement Project was scheduled to occur over 2017/18
and 2018/19 financial years. The scheduled works for the 2017/18 financial year
have been completed and are on track to meet the grand opening deadline
October 2018.



• Replace shade structures on The
Esplanade, Balmoral

In line with the Council resolution to pursue a different design for the Shade
Structure, the proposed works were rolled over to 2018/19 financial year.



• Undertake improvement works to the
Balmoral Beach Promenade stairs

The improvement works are scheduled to occur during the period October /
November 2018.



• Refurbish public toilet facilities in Library
Walk

Refurbishment of Library Walk Amenities has been completed. The
Refurbishment works included replacement of tiling, toilet cubicles, fittings and
fixtures. Both refurbished male and female amenities include ambulant toilets.



Strategy

Action

Comment

Enhance community knowledge
and awareness and foster longterm sustainable behaviours
through engagement programs

• Walk Mosman iPhone App promotion
• PIRATES sustainability programs and
actions
• Living Mosman Program implementation
• Living Mosman e-newsletters
• Engagement and education programs for
schools, youth and the community
• Waste avoidance and resource recovery
programs
• Community water and energy efficiency
programs
• Compost Revolution Program
participation

PIRATES sustainability programs were run throughout the year. Approximately
twenty Living Mosman workshops were held and Living Mosman e-newsletters
issued bi-monthly. Several waste avoidance school and youth programs were
run and supported during the year and Council continues to participate in the
Compost Revolution program. Council continues to support community action
groups who promote and action litter programs and reduce plastic pollution.

Healthy Environment
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

• Staff Engagement Programs
• Community "Take Action" Program
Preserve and enhance
biodiversity on both public and
private land, including Mosman’s
urban forest, bushland, reserves,
open space, beaches, intertidal
zone and the marine
environment

• Manual cleaning of Chinaman’s Beach
and other nominated beaches
• Environmental considerations
incorporated into marine asset
refurbishment/contracts

Manual cleaning of Chinaman's Beach is ongoing and new dune fencing was
completed in February 2018. Part 5 REF environmental considerations were
completed for all other upgrades to marine infrastructure works such as Balmoral
Baths.

• Responsible Pet Ownership and
Backyard Biodiversity Program
• Wildlife Reporting Tool promotion
• Caring for our Coast Program
• Coordination, support and promotion of
the volunteer Bush care Program
• Bushland Management Contracts
• Unmade Roads Program
• Community Gardens
• Phytophthora Cinnamomi Plan
implementation
• Feral Animal control program
• Participation in Sydney Coastal Councils
Group environmental programs

Responsible pet ownership programs are ongoing with the Compliance Team
completing a companion animal education project across all Reserves
throughout June 2018. Volunteer Bushcare and Harbour Care programs
continue with a slight increase in volunteer numbers for both programs. Council
continues to support Community Gardens and assists with materials when
required. Bushland management contracts ongoing as is Council's Unmade
Road restoration work with both programs implementing Phytophthora
cinnamomi controls and increasing native vegetation cover. Council continues to
monitor and control feral rabbits on public land and provides traps for residents to
use on private land.

Implement total water cycle
management approaches to
maximise water conservation,
reuse and efficiency, and
improve water quality

• Harbourwatch data collection and
reporting
• Water quality monitoring as required
• SQID Data collection
• Implementation and review of Water
Efficiency Management Plan

All data collected and reported in 2016/17 End of Term State of Environment
Report.

Reduce waste to landfill through
the implementation of waste
avoidance, minimisation, reuse
and recycling strategies and
initiatives

• Waste Dumping Policy/Procedures
• Public place recycling bin installations
• Waste and Recycling Services Contract
• Recycling/disposal program promotion
for household hazardous
chemicals/fridges and other materials
• Litter and Illegal Dumping Strategy
implementation

During the year Council was able to achieve the KPIs of the Waste and
Recycling Service contract. Council organised two E-Waste collection program in
August 2017 and March 2018. These programs were well used by the
residents.During the latter part of the year options available for specific waste
disposals were investigated.
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

• Consideration of options for specific
waste collection services under proposed
common collection system

Implement and promote an
integrated sustainable transport
network throughout Mosman to
increase the uptake of healthwise transport modes

• Community Waste Programs including
Clothes Swap
• E-Waste Strategy implementation
• Support for Clean Up Australia Day
• Garage Sale Trail

E-waste events completed in August 2017 and February 2018. Garage Sale Trail
completed October 2017 and Toy Swap event held in December 2017. Clean-up
Australia Day support completed 3 March 2018.

• Participate in the tender for the regional
Common Waste Collection System and
implemention of the system

Given the outcome of the Kimbriki tender, Council has extended the existing
contracts and will consider further in 2019.

• Implement the Mosman 'Waste Less
Recycle More' Program Action Plan

All actions as agreed under grant program with EPA completed and to budget.
Projects included MUD's survey and education, litter audits, education and youth
food waste and the youth environmental ambassador project. A Terracycle
program which involved the recycling of binders, food packaging and gloves was
also completed.

• Care Share Scheme monitoring and
promotion
• Sustainable Transport and Fleet Action
Plan review and implementation
• Sustainable transport maps/website
information
• Sustainable transport infrastructure and
education programs

Car Share Schemes were promoted and a further five designated car spaces
installed. Council continues to promote public transport use, install bike paths
and reduce its carbon emissions from its car fleet through the procurement of
small cars for staff use.

• Walking tracks and bike paths developed
and maintained

The identified walking track and bike paths works for the financial year 2017/18
were completed.



• Earth Hour and Climate Clever Program
participation
• Inclusion of solar panels or other energy
efficient measures in building design plans
or redevelopment of council buildings
• Energy efficient lighting retrofits of
Council buildings

Solar hot water system installation was undertaken at the Council Depot where
the SES co-share in the use of the facility. The depot was also retrofitted with
LED lighting which finalised all lighting retrofits of Council occupied main
buildings.
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

• Monitoring of State/Government
programs/policies on climate change
• Coastal Zone Management Plan
• Mosman Flood Study
• Climate Change Risk Assessment
Adaptation actions
• Options for solar lighting in parks and
reserves dependant on funding

Work on the Coastal Zone Management Plan and Mosman Flood Study were put
on hold during the Council merger proposal period. On 23 March 2018, State
Environment Planning Policy (SEPP) (Coastal Management) 2018 -106 was
published and it took effect on 3 April 2018. Council staff reviewed this SEPP and
comments provided. The NSW Office of Environmental and Heritage (OEH)
finalised the scoping study for Sydney Harbour Coastal Management and this
study will be helpful to plan Mosman Council programs.

• Inspection program for food shops
• Reporting in accordance with the Food
Service Plan
• Food safety awareness programs for
businesses
• Inspection program for beauty salons,
hairdressers and skin penetration
businesses
• Inspection/testing of cooling towers and
public swimming pools
• Water pollution, sewer leak and noise
investigations
• Development and implementation of
environmental health policies
• Enforcement of the Public Health Act,
Local Government Act, Protection of the
Environment Operations Act, Food Act
and associated regulations and policies
• Contractor performance, WHS and
toxic/harmful chemicals audits
• Contractor compliance electronic
reporting system

160 inspections have been undertaken in accordance with the food shop
inspection program. Continued reporting of food shop inspections to NSW Food
Authority undertaken in accordance with agreement of Council being appointed
the Enforcement Agency. 19 Skin penetration premises inspections have been
undertaken. Continued education has been provided to operators of food shop
and beauty salon/hairdresser/skin penetration premises regarding up to date
legislation requirements and expectations. Continued investigation of water
pollution and noise pollution incidents as reported to Council by Customer
Requests. 9 Cooling Tower inspections undertaken. 1 public swimming pool
inspection undertaken. Continued enforcement of legislation to ensure protection
of the environment and public health undertaken upon receipt of Customer
Requests or as identified by Council officers.

• Contract administration (Street & Gutter,
Graffiti, Public Amenity Buildings
Cleaning)

The contracts in relation to street and gutter cleaning, public amenity cleaning
and graffiti removal etc. were managed to comply with specifications.
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Strategy

Lobby and/or work with Federal
and State Governments, and
regional organisations/local
councils to advocate for stronger
policy and legislation, and
implement programs to achieve
robust, sustained environmental
outcomes

Action

Comment

• Compliance with site Environmental
Management Plans for Balmoral Park and
Northern Nursery School

Compliance with site Environmental Management Plans completed for Balmoral
Park and Northern Nursery School.

• Monitor environmental legislative
developments, and enforce legislation as
required

Ongoing review of legislation undertaken to ensure policies, documents and
procedures reflect current legislation. Continued enforcement of legislation
undertaken by Compliance Team.

• Collaborative networks, committees and
regional forums
• Environmental action plan reporting
(State Government)
• Grant application submissions
• New/ongoing regional and/or state
government program coordination
• Council environmental policies/plans
review
• State of the Environment Report
• Regional Ready Set Grow Program
• Support for local community groups
Sustainable Schools Program Regional
Coordination
Planet Footprint Water and Energy
Reporting
• Collaboration with Sydney Coastal
Councils Group

Council has joined NSROC and meets regularly for sportsfield and waste
management initiatives. All environmental action plan reporting has been
prepared for State Government including the end of term State of Environment
Report. Several grants were received for bushland and waste education projects.
Numerous sustainability programs conducted with local schools and all water and
energy reports reviewed with several ground water leaks resolved by analysing
water use data. Council resolved in December 2017 to no longer be a member of
the Sydney Coastal Councils Group effective 1 July 2018.

Strategy

Action

Comment

Lobby State and Federal
Government to improve transport
along Peninsula and the Spit and
Military Road Corridor

• Progressive implementation of the
SHOROC Regional Strategy – ‘Shaping
Our Future’
• Ongoing lobbying of State and Federal
Government for preferred traffic and
transport solutions including Bus Rapid

Although Council formally resolved to withdraw from SHOROC and join NSROC
in 2017, Mosman has continued to take an ongoing interest in transport planning
issues including the B-line bus transit system.

Progress






Traffic and Transport
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

Transit and a tunnel from the northern
beaches to the Warringah Freeway
• Oppose 24 Hour Clearways and 24 Hour
Dedicated kerbside Bus Lanes through the
Spit and Military Road Corridor
• Opposition to peak hour rat runs through
residential streets including the Pearl Bay
Avenue Rat Run through Beauty Point
• Ongoing lobbying to maintain and
improve local bus and ferry services

Improve safety and accessibility
in local streets through
appropriate traffic management
and increased opportunities for
active transport

• Actively participate in further planning
and engagement by the NSW Government
in relation to
Military Road/Spit Road transport solutions

Council staff have actively been engaged in the consultation by the State
Government on the B-Line designs this period and have made various
representations regarding traffic and parking impacts.

• Vehicle speed and volume counts in local
streets
• Review of Construction Traffic
Management Plans
• Advocacy for improved street lighting
including Street Lighting Improvement
Program
• Implementation of Road Safety Action
Plan
• Local Traffic Management Plans
• Annual report – Traffic Accidents
• Traffic management facilities and
signage
• Local Traffic Committee
• Active Transport Community
Consultative Committee
• RMS liaison – approvals, funding,
partnerships

During the financial year 2017/18 Council was able to install new traffic lights and
renew the shared path at Parriwi Road / Spit Road junction liaising with RMS.
Further Mosman Council joined North Sydney Council to upgrade the Spofforth
Street pedestrian crossing with funding assistance from RMS. The identified
tasks of the Road Safety Action Plan were completed satisfactorily.

• Mosman Rider community bus

The Mosman Rider ceased operating on 30 June after Council considered
dwindling passenger numbers and the changing operating environment. An
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

enhanced service AtoB Mosman was introduced to ensure that people who are
transport disadvantaged are still able to access a local service.
• Subject to funding, progressively
implement actions detailed in the Mosman
Bikeplan 2014-2019

The planned contract works for 2017/18 financial year were completed.



• Subject to funding, progressively
implement recommended actions in the
Pedestrian Access Mobility Plan

Identified works for 2017/18 financial year were completed with accessibility
improvements where ever practicable.



• Pursue further traffic improvements at
Spit Road/Parriwi Road intersection

The installation of Traffic Lights and the associated Civil Works at Spit Road /
Parriwi Road intersection were completed and traffic lights commissioned. The
project achieved the intended outcome and received positive public comments.



• Parking regulation and enforcement
• Provision of Scooter parking and motor
bike parking
• Investigation of Resident Parking
Schemes on Local Streets
• Public and paid parking areas
• Disabled parking provision

The works with respect to various parking related matters were undertaken as
per the relevant plans. A report in relation to additional motorcycle parking in the
vicinity of Balmoral Beach was adopted at April 2018 Local Traffic Committee
meeting.

• Undertake actions arising from Mosman's
Parking Policy, subject to adoption by
Council and funding

The Bridgepoint car park draft signage designs have been completed and a
report of the review of parking technology implementation at Vista Street car park
drafted.

Strategy

Action

Comment

Support economic activity
through appropriate planning
controls, projects and

• Mosman Business Centres Development
Control Plan (DCP)

Together with amendments made to Council's other DCPs the Business centres
DCP was amended to address changes arising from the NSW Government’s
overhaul of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 introduced on

Have a managed parking
strategy to meet the demands of
residents and visitors




: Economic
Local Economy
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Strategy

Action

partnerships with local
businesses, associations and
networks

Sensitively promote Mosman’s
unique qualities, heritage and
identity as part of local and
regional initiatives

Comment

Progress

1 March 2018; an ongoing NSW Government review of State environmental
planning policies; updated heritage conservation area rankings provisions
adopted by Council; and minor corrections. The proposed amendments were
adopted by Council post-exhibition on 5 June 2018, and came into effect on 21
June 2018.
• Business association partnerships –
including Mosman Chamber of
Commerce, BNI Balmoral and Mosman
Village Business Association
• Christmas Window Decoration
Competition

Council continued to work collaboratively with the Mosman Chamber of
Commerce during the year, including delivery of the 7th annual RAPT Christmas
Decoration Competition in November/December 2017. More than 80 local
businesses took part in the competition, which included prizes for best overall
display, best lighting display, and most sustainable display. A successful
business breakfast workshop was also held at Mosman Art Gallery in early
November 2017, with more than 40 business owners and operators voicing their
views on Mosman's future.



• Community cultural and economic
development partnerships with local
businesses

Council has continued to work closely with the Mosman Chamber of Commerce
on a range of activities to support local business development and promotion.
These include events associated with the 2017 Festival of Mosman, the RAPT
Christmas decoration project involving Mosman businesses, support of Chamber
events including hosting of the Christmas party, and provision of a regular stall
for Chamber use at the monthly Mosman Market. Planning is underway to
introduce a series of Night Markets and late night openings of the Gallery one
day per week to stimulate the night-time economy and activity.



• Business community consultation and
education

The business community was consulted as part of the amendments to the
Business Centres DCP when the amendments were publicly exhibited during 19
April to 17 May 2018.



• Provision of information to residents and
visitors directly through Council’s website,
publications and media promotions
• Dissemination of information through
partnerships with other local publications
and promotions across the wider
metropolitan area

Council's Communications Team provided information to residents during the
year through Council's website, app and social channels. Media promotions
included coverage in the Mosman Daily and North Shore Living of Council's
popular MyMosman resident app, engagement opportunities for the development
of Council's next Community Strategic Plan - MOSPLAN 2018-2028, publication
of Council's end of term MOSPLAN Review 2012-2017 and promotion of local
government elections. Information was also shared about infrastructure upgrades
such as the Balmoral Winter Works program, Spit East and Mosman Junction
works and open space upgrades. Weekly advertising continued in the Mosman
Daily including a monthly Mayoral column as well as advertising campaigns. The
provision of more than 50 media releases, supply of Council information to local
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

publications and responses to media inquiries facilitated the publication of
content across metro and local media publications.

Capitalise on regional, State
and Federal initiatives to help
support businesses and the
local economy

Pursue improvements to
accessibility, functionality and
public domain in and around
business centres

• Development of stronger links with
Destination NSW and other relevant
agencies through funding and partnership
arrangements

The use of appropriate funding and partnership arrangements was applied
regularly throughout the year across Council operations.

• Promotion and support for business
workshops, training and other resources
offered locally by external providers
including State and Federal government

Council continued to work collaboratively with the Mosman Chamber of
Commerce and government agencies to facilitate local training opportunities and
to disseminate information to local businesses regarding State/Federal business
initiatives.

• Pursue opportunities to work in
partnership with Northside Business
Enterprise Centre and the Small Biz
Connect program to assist Mosman
businesses

While the Northside Business Enterprise Centre is no longer operational as a
small business advisory and training service, links have been developed with the
new small business advisory service for northern Sydney and the northern
beaches, Realise Business.

• Mosman Rider bus service

During this year Council resolved to cease operating the Mosman Rider service
as patronage was falling and a number of new options have become available to
residents since the Rider started in 2010. A detailed communication plan was
prepared and rolled out to keep users of the service informed. The last day of
operation was 30 June.



• Community information, education and
promotion – sustainable transport options

Community information was provided on bike routes and bike lanes. A further
five designated car share car spaces were installed in December 2017.



• Cycling and pedestrian accessibility
works

Identified works in relation to the cycling and pedestrian accessibility were
completed.



• Implementation of ‘Shaping our Future’
and ‘Shaping Our Sustainable Future’ –
SHOROC’s regional strategy and substrategy, with focus on housing, jobs,
health, transport and sustainability

Although Council resolved to formally withdraw from the Shore Regional
Organisation of Councils (SHOROC) in the latter part of 2017, it remains
committed to leveraging further benefits for the Mosman community through
participation in regional advocacy, procurement and partnership projects. Council
is now actively participating in the Northern Sydney Regional Organisation of
Councils (NSROC) and contributing to projects and planning led or facilitated by
that organisation.
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: Governance
Leadership and Engagement
Strategy

Action

Comment

Deliver a high level of customer
service that is responsive,
appropriate and subject to
continuous improvement.

• Regular surveys of customer/community
satisfaction, including use of online tools
• Service and efficiency reviews

Major Community Surveys were conducted in June/July 2017 and June 2018 and
a range of other customer and user surveys were undertaken through the year as
part of day-to-day operations using both hard copy and online formats.



• Complaint investigation, systems and
monitoring

The complaints management system was comprehensively reviewed in early
2018. The Policy was reviewed and adopted in February 2018 to support a
revised monitoring and reporting system. Formal complaints are monitored by the
Public Officer and a register is maintained detailing actions, responses and
statistics and referred to the Executive Team for review on a fortnightly basis.
The register is referred annually to the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
and Council for review.



• Undertake a random survey of at least
400 Mosman residents biennially to
ascertain community views on local issues
and Council performance

The 2017 Mosman Community Survey was undertaken in June/July 2017. Top
level results were subsequently presented to Council and the 2017 Community
Survey Report posted on Council's website. The 2018 Mosman Community
Survey was conducted in June 2018 with results to be made available in the first
quarter of 2018/19.



• Adopt and implement Customer Service
Charter.

The Customer Service Charter was adopted by Council at their meeting in June
2017. Since that time Councils various departments have worked towards
ensuring their service delivery aligns with the ethos and metrics of the Charter.
As the implementation of the Customer Service Charter is both a cultural and
continuous improvement strategy time is required to ensure it is embedded in all
departments and evaluation of performance against the standards and metrics of
the charter will be ongoing.



During the year several opportunities were taken by Council to lobby government
agencies and Members of Parliament regarding issues impacting Mosman and
its community. Examples included ongoing advocacy regarding Mosman's
Scenic Protection Area, submissions in relation to Local Planning Panels, the
Model Code of Meeting Practice, Short Stay Accommodation, the NSW Cultural



Provide strong and effective
leadership on issues of
significance to Council and the
Mosman community

• Ongoing liaison with, lobbying of and
submissions to State and Federal
Government agencies and representatives
• Committee for an Independent Mosman
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

Infrastructure Strategy, Low Rise Medium Density Housing Code and various
strategic documents were released by the Greater Sydney Commission.

Explore, develop and maintain
partnerships, networks and
affiliations that support and
enhance local governance and
improved community outcomes

• Participate in regional planning and
advocacy initiatives to strengthen local
outcomes for Mosman

In late 2017 Council joined the Northern Sydney Regional Organisation of
Councils (NSROC) and will make best use of this membership to participate in
regional planning and advocacy initiatives.



• Monitor and participate in review of the
NSW Local Government Act 1993 and
Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979

An ongoing watch was maintained throughout the year in relation to legislative
amendments and the development of appropriate responses by Council. This
included amendments to the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act
passed in mid November 2017.



• Continue to advocate for Mosman to
remain as an independent local
government area and Council

Ongoing efforts by Council and the Mosman community were finally rewarded on
27 July 2017, with the NSW Premier announcing that remaining merger
proposals in metropolitan Sydney will not proceed.



• Participate as an active member of the
Shorelink Library Network, including
involvement in future planning for the
network

Mosman, Lane Cove and North Sydney Councils have signed a new Deed of
Agreement confirming their commitment to the Network.

• Regional resource-sharing, project and
service delivery
• Issue and profession-based networks,
forums and working groups
• Regional Strategy implementation –
‘Shaping our Future’, ‘Shaping our
Sustainable Future’ and Regional
Community Indicators (SHOROC)
• Political, strategic and professional
support of SHOROC

Council has remained committed to leveraging further benefits for the Mosman
community through participation in regional advocacy, procurement and
partnership projects. This is now primarily undertaken through the Northern
Sydney Regional Organisation of Councils (NSROC), which Council formally
joined in late 2017 following its formal withdrawal from the Shore Regional
Organisation of Councils (SHOROC). Other key regional affiliations and
initiatives include the Shorelink Library Network (now comprising Mosman, North
Sydney and Lane Cove Councils) and the North Shore Internal Audit service.

• Membership and support of Shorelink

Mosman, Lane Cove and North Sydney Councils confirmed that they will
continue their membership of Shorelink, acknowledging the value that the
cooperative network delivers to their communities. A new Deed of Agreement
was signed by the three Councils in December 2017.
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Strategy

Build and maintain a
commitment to integrated
planning and reporting that
responds to community
aspirations, sets direction and
measures performance
according to Council and
community targets

Action

Comment

• Contribute to the further development of
joint procurement and service delivery
models with other Councils

In November 2017 Council resolved to join the Northern Sydney Regional
Organisation of Councils (NSROC) and opportunities for joint procurement and
service delivery will continue to be explored as part of Council's membership of
that organisation. Other joint service delivery projects such as North Shore
Internal Audit and the Shorelink Library Network have continued to operate
independently of ROC membership.

• Actively partner in the successful
implementation of a new regional Waste
Management Model, including
alternate waste technology and common
collection systems.

Council will be continuing its exploration of future waste management options,
however the regional Waste Management Model previously anticipated n
collaboration with former SHOROC Councils will not proceed.

• MOSPLAN
• Quarterly and annual reporting
• Community Sustainability Indicators
• State of the Environment Reporting
• Strategic Asset Management
• Workforce Plan
• Long Term Financial Plan

A comprehensive review of Council's MOSPLAN suite of integrated planning and
reporting documents was undertaken during the year, culminating in the adoption
of MOSPLAN at Council's June 2018 Ordinary Meeting. Development of the new
documentation involved the implementation of a detailed Community
Engagement Strategy and strong involvement of Councillors during the process.
The documents adopted in June 2018 include a new 2018-2028 Community
Strategic Plan, 2018-2021 Delivery Program, 2018-2028 Long Term Financial
Plan, 2018-2021 Workforce Plan and 2018-2019 Operational Plan and Budget.
MOSPLAN 2018-2028 contains a new Vision and Strategic Directions for
Mosman, a simpler format and a greater focus on performance measurement
than previous versions.



• Review and improve Council’s Delivery
Program and Operational Plan

A comprehensive review of Council's MOSPLAN suite of integrated planning and
reporting documents was undertaken during the year, culminating in the adoption
of MOSPLAN at Council's June 2018 Ordinary Meeting. The documents adopted
in June 2018 include a new 2018-2028 Community Strategic Plan, 2018-2021
Delivery Program, 2018-2028 Long Term Financial Plan, 2018-2021 Workforce
Plan and 2018-2019 Operational Plan and Budget. The latest Community
Strategic Plan and Delivery Program contain a new Vision and Strategic
Directions for Mosman, a simpler format and a greater focus on performance
measurement.



A comprehensive review of Council's MOSPLAN suite of integrated planning and
reporting documents was undertaken during the year, culminating in the adoption
of MOSPLAN at Council's June 2018 Ordinary Meeting. The documents adopted



• Assist Council in undertaking a
comprehensive review of its Community
Strategic Plan (MOSPLAN)
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

in June 2018 include a new 2018-2028 Community Strategic Plan, 2018-2021
Delivery Program, 2018-2028 Long Term Financial Plan, 2018-2021 Workforce
Plan and 2018-2019 Operational Plan and Budget. The latest Community
Strategic Plan and Delivery Program contain a new Vision and Strategic
Directions for Mosman, a simpler format and a greater focus on performance
measurement.
Actively inform and engage the
community on matters of local
interest, encouraging broad
participation and providing a
range of opportunities for
community involvement

• Community engagement and information
dissemination including meetings, forums,
workshops, front-line customer service,
hard-copy publications, surveys, websites,
social media and e-distribution
• Public Council Meetings including
Question Time

A range of community engagement and communication activities were
undertaken during the year. These related to specific projects, issues, events
and property-related matters and included online and face-to-face engagement
as well as the distribution of various promotional and informative publications in
both hard-copy and electronic format. Major engagement projects included the
MYVOICE youth consultation in 2017 and the implementation of the MOSPLAN
Community Engagement Strategy during both 2017 and 2018. Major Community
Surveys were conducted in June/July 2017 and June 2018. Social media
platforms continued to be used to regularly engage and inform the community,
together with Council's quarterly newsletter which was delivered in hard copy to
all businesses and households and in e-format to subscribers. The MyMosman
app was also used to assist in the dissemination of news items and other
information to local residents.



• Regular production and distribution of
Mosman Now (weekly column and
quarterly newsletter)
• Media Liaison

More than 50 media releases have been distributed on a range of local issues,
projects and events, Council information has been supplied to local publications
on a weekly basis and media responses have been provided to metro and local
media as required during 2017/18. The Mosman Now weekly Mosman Daily
advertisement and quarterly community newsletter also continued on schedule
with four digital and print newsletter editions published and distributed during the
period.



• Expand the capacity and rigor of local
community engagement

Community engagement has continued to be expanded through the effective
utilisation of the Council, Consultation and Events sites, apps, social media,
Council columns and media liaison as well as other channels. Community
consultation and feedback during the year included a digital and print campaign
seeking input into the development of Mosman's next Community Strategic Plan MOSPLAN 2018-2028, lighting for netball courts at Mosman Drill Hall Common
and the promotion of nominations for Mosman's Citizen and Young Citizen of the
Year. Targeted use of social media promotion and print marketing has also
assisted in wider engagement and visibility across the community.
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

Acknowledge and support
community aspirations,
initiatives & achievements

• Civic receptions
• Citizen and Young Citizen of the Year
• Australia Day, Mosman Day and Hunter
Day celebrations
• Citizenship Ceremonies

Over the course of the year a total of seven citizenship ceremonies were
conducted, including the Australia Day citizenship ceremony on 26 January
2018. At the Australia Day ceremony the 2018 Citizen of the Year Award was
presented to William Tuck and Vicki Condon. Recipient of the 2018 Young
Citizen of the Year award was Melissa Thompson. A Mayoral reception
celebrating the community and volunteering in Mosman was also held at
Mosman Art Gallery in December 2017.



• School Citizenship Awards

The School Citizenship Awards 2017 were facilitated and successfully completed
as reported in Q3, 2018.



Strategy

Action

Comment

Support the ongoing financial
sustainability of Mosman
Council by applying sound
financial planning, principles
and practices

• Rating structure review
• Preparation & auditing of financial reports
• Loan program management
• Budget preparation, review & reporting
• Review of 10 year Long Term Financial
Plan

The rating structure has been reviewed. The NSW Government mandated the
Auditor General as Council's new external auditor. Council successfully brought
on the new auditor and lodged Financial Statements by the statutory deadline.
Council's loan program of $400,000 was taken with an applicable interest rate of
3.82%. The draft Operating Budget was adopted at the Council Meeting held on
5 June 2018. The Long Term Financial Plan components were also presented to
the 5 June meeting. The Long Term Financial Plan was reported to and reviewed
by Audit Committee at its meeting of 5 July 2018.



• Review of Investment Properties
Business Plan

Not progressed. Review of Investment Property Business Plan remains subject
to determination of redevelopment proposals for Council's Spit Junction
properties.



• Further improve integration of Council’s
Budget with the Community Strategic Plan
- MOSPLAN

Council's Business Intelligence Software, Magiq Performance, was significantly
reworked and adapted to fit the new MOSPLAN format.



• Review online payment options for all
Council revenue

Staff continue to review online payment options against the changing
technological capabilities of its financial systems, payment gateways and other
software solutions. Council implemented a new online form system and



Governance and Risk
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

integrated it to the existing payment gateway BPOINT. This has facilitated online
payments for Children's Services and tree regulation.

Anticipate and proactively
manage risks relating to
Council operations and the
wider Mosman community

Anticipate and proactively
manage risks relating to
Council operations and the
wider Mosman community

• Implement Council's Fit for the Future
Improvement Plan

The Fit for the Future program has been terminated by the NSW Government. A
new performance monitoring regime is pending. Council reported, however, in its
2016-17 Financial Statements that it achieved all financial indicators (Note 13 of
the General Purpose Financial Statements) and all asset management indicators
(Special Schedule 7).



• Regular asset/compliance/regulatory
audits

The condition and safety audits of infrastructure assets were competed as per
the relevant Asset Management Plans.



• Safeguarding security of Council IT
systems and information

As a follow up to Council's remedial actions, a subsequent re-test was performed
by vendor to ensure that any loopholes previously identified have been fixed. No
further follow up is required. IT Services will re-engage an appropriate vendor as
test is budgeted annually.



• Insurance policy/portfolio review &
renewal
• Risk Management Policy, Procedures &
Processes
• Risk management training & promotion

All policies were renewed effective 1 July 2017. Work for 2018/19 policy
renewals were completed and all insurance policy declarations and schedules
were submitted to Council's insurer to obtain a pricing and renewal report and
allowing placement by 1 July 2018.
The Enterprise Risk Register was reviewed with Executive and Managers,
capturing Strategic Risks and Risk Mitigation measures across eight key
Enterprise Risk categories together with the development of individual Action
Plans. Revised Emergency Management Plans for the Drill Hall, Marie Bashir
Mosman Sports Centre, Mosman Occasional Child Care, Art Gallery, Youth
Centre and Aged and Disabilities Services were completed. Coordination of the
2017-2018 Continuous Improvement Pathway Risk was undertaken. Ongoing
monitoring and amendments were made to the Business Continuity Plan and
associated sub-plans. Ongoing review has been undertaken of organisation risk
assessments and Risk Management Action Plans for Council run events,
activities, holiday programs and the like.



Approximately 50% of the total 107 PCs due for replacement due to end of
hardware lifecycle have been replaced with new PCs. Completion targeted for
Mid August 2018. Further PCs and laptops are nearing the end of their hardware
lifecycle and will be replaced in due course.



• Progressively upgrade facilities and
hardware to facilitate IT business recovery
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Provide a working environment
that attracts and retains quality
staff and encourages
continuous improvement and
service excellence

• Biennial employee engagement survey

Council's biennial employee engagement survey will be facilitated again in April
2019. Acting on the results from the 2017 survey, various projects have been
completed this year. These include piloting a successful mentoring program for
10 emerging leaders and professional coaching for a targeted number of high
performing staff. Significant improvement to employees' immediate work
environment is underway at the Civic Centre and Library.



• Identification & provision of quality
training and staff skill development
• Annual Employee Performance and
Development Plans

A comprehensive array of training was provided to staff across a number of
dimensions. These include compliance related training such as code of conduct,
first aid and role specific licence certification. New staff orientation and software
systems training were particularly successful, as well as EEO and cultural
awareness, leadership development and job specific training as identified by
management in employee development plans.



• Regular Work Health and Safety (WHS)
audits, inspections and reports
• Work injury rehabilitation and return to
work program
• Workers Compensation

Council practices in WHS are of a high standard. There have been a total of two
workers compensation claims in 2017/18 both of which are now closed. Quarterly
site inspections of Council premises have been carried out and all
incidents/hazards are reported and reviewed by managers as well as Council's
WHS committee.



• Staff immunisation and Employee
Assistance programs
• Staff well-being programs
• Staff Induction Program

Council's in-house Staff Immunisation program ceased in April 2017 due to
Council's community early childhood immunisation program being discontinued.
As a consequence the Health and Fitness Incentive program was modified to
incorporate reimbursement of certain costs associated with flu vaccinations for
staff. The Health and Fitness Incentive program more broadly, is well utilised and
valued by employees across Council. Staff use of Council's Employee Assistance
Program is slightly lower than in previous years, indicating a high level of
contentment and general wellness. Four New Staff Orientation training days were
facilitated and well received by those who participated.



• Workforce Plan
• Review and negotiation of Employment
Agreements
• Promotion & review of EEO Management
Plan

Council's Workforce Plan 2018-21 was adopted in Q4 2018 with a number of key
strategies aimed at developing the workforce for the future. Council's 2013
Mosman Council Enterprise Agreement was terminated as intended, in the NSW
Industrial Relations Commission in February 2018. Various HR Corporate
Practices have been adopted since this time incorporating a number of
conditions previously contained in the Enterprise Agreement. Council's EEO
Management Plan was also adopted in Q4 2018 containing a number of key
initiatives aimed at ensuring EEO in all Council's practices.
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Strategy

Contribute to a safer Mosman
community through planning,
partnerships, education, and
emergency management

Action

Comment

• Undertake improvements to air
conditioning in the Civic Centre

The ventilation improvement works of the Civic Centre were incorporated into the
Civic Centre refurbishment works. The work is now scheduled to occur during the
period October to December 2018.

• Ongoing partnerships and collaboration
with Harbourside Local Area Command
(HBLAC), State Emergency Service, Fire
Brigade and Ambulance services
• Provision of Local Emergency
Management Officer (LEMO) for MosmanNorth Sydney and attendance at Local
Emergency Management Committee
meetings
• New police officer ‘Introductions to
Mosman’ – Harbourside Local Area
Command
• Companion Animals education,
enforcement and registration

Council continues to work in collaboration with the HBLAC to pool information to
address common compliance and community matters identified between Council
and Police.

Support of the Local Emergency Management Committee continues through the
provision of a delegated LEMO to represent the Mosman LGA.

• Development and implementation of
community safety strategies and projects
• Participation in Liquor Accord

Participation in the Liquor Accord continues to be offered to Mosman Council as
an observer. Youth Services have been strong participants in the CDAT
campaign to raise awareness in young people of drug and alcohol harm.

• Review and enhancement of CCTV
installations
• 24 hour incident and make-safe callout
system for Council’s assets
•Road safety promotion and education
•Implementation of anti-graffiti strategies

Council implemented the planned road safety promotion programs with the
assistance of RMS and maintained the CCTV surveillance system in good order
to minimise risks of public safety.

• Manly-Mosman District Bushfire
Management Plan implementation

Mosman North Sydney and Willoughby Bushfire Management Committee work is
ongoing. The Bush Fire Risk Management Plan 2017-2022 was adopted and an
information/ educational brochure was issued to bushland interface properties in
December 2017. A hazard reduction burn occurred at Quakers Hat Park and
Balmoral in May 2018. Both these areas are Category 1 bushfire zones so
treatment of bushfire significantly reduced in adjoining areas.
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Partnerships with Fire Rescue NSW have been maintained and strengthened as
part of the Combustible External Cladding Audit program.



Continued public education of companion animal regulations including
implementation of the ‘Pets Day Out’ program.
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Sustainably manage local
infrastructure through strategic
asset planning and
management

• Inspection and audit of all assets in
accordance with Asset Management Plans
(AMPs)
• Repair and replacement of assets in
accordance with AMPs and funding
availability

The condition audit of the infrastructure assets was undertaken as per the
relevant Asset Management Plans. Council engaged a Consultant to complete
the condition audit of Road and sub-assets in May 2018 to facilitate revaluation.
The identified remedial works were completed.

Support good governance,
customer service and
communication with
contemporary policies, systems
and processes

• Participation in the Northern Councils
Internal Audit Group. (Hunters Hill, Lane
Cove, Manly, Mosman, North Sydney and
Willoughby)
• Delivery of an internal audit function in
accordance with Council’s Internal Audit
Charter and the Audit Committee Charter
• Procurement and contract management
systems and processes

Four Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Meetings were convened during
the year. A new independent member was appointed in Q2, 2018 following a
vacancy and a new Head of Internal Audit was appointed in Q4, 2018 following a
further vacancy. A number of internal audits were conducted during the year with
no adverse findings reported. The Chair of the Audit Committee presented a
written report to Council on 5 December 2017 on the conduct of the Audit
Committee over the previous twelve month period.

• Maintenance and review of network,
hardware and software infrastructure
• Review of IT policies and processes for
improved business systems procedures

The project to upgrade Council's network links is still in progress and has been
delayed due to Telco cabling issues and open road works requiring extra
cabling/fibre runs. Expected completion date by August 2018.
Approx 50% of the total 107 PCs due for replacement due to end of hardware
lifecycle have been replaced with new PCs. Completion targeted for mid August
2018.

• Review and update of policies and
delegations
• Statutory Annual Reports required under
Local Government Act (including
Management Plan and Code of Conduct),
Government Information Public Access
(GIPA) Act, and Public Interest
Disclosures (PID) Act
• Induction and ongoing training for staff
regarding Council’s confidentiality, access
to information and privacy policies, and the
GIPA Act
• Systems & procedures to ensure
effective records management including

All actions undertaken as required.
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Strategy

Action

Comment

Progress

compliance with GIPA and PID Acts
• Servicing and supporting Council
meetings
• Councillor training and advice

Orientation training was made available to Councillors in the early weeks of
Council's 2017-2020 term. Ongoing training and advice has been provided to
Councillors as required as part of day-to-day operations.



• Prepare and deliver a comprehensive
Councillor Induction Program

Training and advice was provided to Councillors in the early weeks of Council's
2017-2020 term and is provided on an ongoing basis in response to identified
needs.



• Review, enhance and document the
Information Technology Strategy to meet
Council's future needs

Development of an IT Strategy to include Digital and Cloud initiatives is currently
in progress with external consultants engaged.
COMPLETED: Conducted Business stakeholder interviews
IN PROGRESS: Mapping Current state architecture for Business Systems and IT
Infrastructure.



• Review Council Policy in accordance
with legislative requirements and other
imperatives for good governance

All actions undertaken as planned.



• Determine and implement organisation
structure

A report in relation to this matter was presented to the July 2018 Council
meeting, with the organisational structure being determined at that time.



• Progressively implement improvements
to Information Technology systems and
capability in accordance with the IT
Strategic Directions 2014-2017

The following action items are currently in progress:
1. Replacement of Council Chambers Voting System
2. Replacement of Audio/Visual System in Meeting rooms
3. Migration to new Spatial mapping software (Spectrum Spatial) - targeted
completion August 2018
4. Migration to Online Certificates - targeted completion August 2018
5. Replacement of Venue Booking System.
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2. REPORT ON KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS WITHIN MOSPLAN BY THEME
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) provide insight into how Council, as an efficient and progressive local
government organisation, is delivering against the four MOSPLAN themes. These Indicators are not
subject to the same level of external influence as Community Sustainability Indicators for the
Environment, Social and Economic themes, and therefore can be confidently viewed as true measures
of Council performance.
Reporting on Key Performance Indicators by program per theme for the period 1 July 2017 to 30
June 2018 appears in this section. Data marked with an asterisk (*) is the mean score out of 10
from the Mosman Community Survey, 2018.
Mosman Community Survey, 2017
The survey was conducted 15-30 June 2018 with a total of 400 resident interviews completed. 349
of the 400 respondents were selected by means of a computer based random selection process
using the electronic White Pages. The remaining 51 respondents were ‘number harvested’ via faceto-face intercept at a number of areas around the Mosman Local Government Area that is Spit
Junction and Mosman Junction. The sample was weighted by age and gender to reflect the 2016
Australian Bureau of Statistics census data.
The Unipolar Scale of 0 to 10 where 0 was the lowest importance or satisfaction and 10 the highest
importance or satisfaction, was used in all rating questions. This scale allowed for a mid-range
position for those who had a divided or neutral opinion.
Scale: 0 = not at all important/very dissatisfied, 10 = very important/very satisfied.
Report on Key Performance Indicators for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018
SOCIAL - Community Wellbeing
Program Coordination: Manager Community Services
Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

% of Residents satisfied with:
•

Services and facilities for children and families

7.56*

•

Services and facilities for older people

7.22*

•

Overall range and quality of community facilities and activities

7.24*

•

Services and facilities for people with a disability

6.83*

•

Access to Council information and Council support

6.88*

•

Services for young people

6.67*

•

Services and facilities for people from culturally and linguistically
diverse backgrounds

6.04*

No. of volunteers in Council services (active @ 30 June 2017)

Adult: 360
Youth: 34

Mosman Rider passenger numbers per annum

21,585~

No. of meals delivered by Meals on Wheels per annum
No. of meals served in the Community Restaurant per annum

13,617
3,275
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Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

No. of Community Transport trips per annum

5,130

No. of children immunised per annum

199+

No. of young people that have connected with a Council youth program or
service:
*

**
**
**
**
~
+

14,294**

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2018
This number does not differentiate between unique users and return users
Some of these numbers are estimates, and provision has been made to take account of young people leaving
and returning to the Youth Centre on the same day
Regional programs are included
Online engagement is recorded as membership or subscription and excludes 17,582 visits to the Youth Blog
and 304 Moscard members
This includes extrapolated data
The clinic ceased operating in March 2018

SOCIAL - Library and Information
Program Coordination: Manager Library Services and Manager Library Resources
Performance Measures
% Residents satisfied with Library services

7.77*

% Library users satisfied with Library services and resources

97.7%

No. Library visits per capita per annum

9.68

No. Loans per capita per annum

9.54

No. Website visits and page views per annum
*

Actual 2017-18

Visits: 367,000
Page views: 700,000

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2018

SOCIAL - Arts and Culture
Program Coordination: Manager Cultural Services
Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

% Residents satisfied with:
•

Mosman Art Gallery and Community Centre

7.47*

•

Local festivals and events

6.98*

•

Overall range of facilities and activities relevant to culture and the arts

6.82*

% users satisfied - Mosman Market
Total visitation per annum - Mosman Art Gallery

N/A
95,200

No. of exhibitions, educational activities and special events held per annum at
Mosman Art Gallery

164

No. of community events held per annum

12
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Performance Measures
No. of attendees at community events per annum

*

Actual 2017-18
18,000

No. of Gallery Friends and Volunteers

535

No. of members of the Creative Circle philanthropy program

33

No. of events, projects and activities undertaken with Mosman's Friendship
Communities per annum

3

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2017

ENVIRONMENT - Built Environment
Program Coordination: Manager Urban Planning and Manager Development Services
Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

% Residents satisfied with:
•

Managing development - land use planning

6.31*

•

Protection of heritage values and buildings

7.17*

•

Development approvals process

5.71*

•

Providing and maintaining local roads

6.68*

•

Providing and maintaining footpaths

6.35*

No. metres of storm water pipes renewed per annum

*

99

% programmed seawall renewal works completed per annum

100%

% programmed road renewal works completed per annum

157%

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2018
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ENVIRONMENT - Healthy Environment
Program Coordination: Manager Environment and Open Space
Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

% Residents satisfied with:

*

•

Waste and recycling collection services

7.20*

•

Overall cleanliness, appearance and management of public spaces

7.85*

•

Cleaning of streets

7.54*

•

Management and protection of the environment

7.56*

•

Keeping food premises safe

8.01*

•

Litter control and rubbish dumping

7.47*

•

Condition of public toilets

6.66*

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2018

ENVIRONMENT - Community Spaces
Program Coordination: Manager Environment and Open Space
Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

% Residents satisfied with:
•

Provision and maintenance of parklands including bushland, harbour
foreshores, local parks and bushland trails

7.90*

•

Sport and recreational facilities

7.28*

•

Overall cleanliness, appearance and management of public spaces

7.85*

% users satisfied - Sporting Fields
No. hours per annum - Marie Bashir Mosman Sports Centre
No. users per annum - Mosman Swim Centre
Average no. ovals bookings per week (Summer and Winter Season)
*

8.0
2927
155,162
191

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2018
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ENVIRONMENT - Traffic and Transport
Program Coordination: Manager Engineering
Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

% Residents satisfied with:
•

Traffic Management

5.99*

•

Enforcement of parking restrictions

5.97*

•

Provision of carparking

6.11*

•

Providing and maintaining bikepaths

5.54*

No. of (off-street) public carparking spaces
No. of traffic accidents reported on local roads per annum
No. metres of marked bike paths in Mosman
*
**

1359
66
14.9km

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2018
Crashes on local roads for January to December 2017.This is preliminary data and subject to change.

ECONOMIC - Local Economy

Program Coordination: Director Community Development
Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

% Residents satisfied with:
•

Council assisting economic development with the business community
and visitors

6.27*

•

Overall cleanliness, appearance and management of public spaces

7.85*

Cost per passenger trip - Mosman Rider
*

$10.30~

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2018
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GOVERNANCE - Leadership and Engagement
Program Coordination: Director Community Development
Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

% Residents satisfied with:

*

•

Council engaging (consulting) with the community

6.32*

•

Access to Council information and Council support

6.88*

•

Council leadership on matters important to the community

6.42*

•

Council advocacy on matters impacting on Mosman and neighbouring
areas

6.70*

•

Overall delivery of Council services

7.10*

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2018

GOVERNANCE - Governance and Risk
Program Coordination: Manager Governance
Performance Measures

Actual 2017-18

% Residents satisfied with access to Council information and Council support

6.88*

% Residents who feel safe in their local community

9.00*

% of customer service telephone enquiries resolved on first contact
% of formal complaints resolved within 10 days

**
73%

*

Mean score out of 10 – Mosman Community Survey, 2018

**

Data not captured. Percentage of all calls directly to and completed by the Council's switchboard. Considering
percentage of voicemail messages left on staff phones from either direct calls or calls transferred by the
switchboard it is estimated that 60% of all calls are dealt with on first contact.
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Section Two

Statutory and Other Information
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1. MAYORAL AND COUNCILLOR FEES AND EXPENSES
The following fees and expenses with regard to the Mayor and Councillors were paid during 2017-18:
Details
Mayoral allowance
Councillors' fees
Catering and receptions
Delegates expenses
Travelling
Phone line rentals to Councillors' residences
Mobile phone for Mayor's use for Council business (Mayor Abelson for Jul-Aug
2017)
Mobile phone for Mayor's use for Council business
(Mayor Corrigan for Sep 2017 to Jun 2018)
ALGWA membership
Mayoral Discretionary Fund (Cl.1.1 Expenses Policy)
• Lions Club of Manly ($600)
• Tathra Mayoral Fund ($2,500)
• See Beyond Boarders ($500)
• Glen Innes Severn Shire Council ($200)
• Rotary Mosman ($750)
• Taldumande Youth Services ($1,000)
• UN Youth New South Wales ($285)
TOTAL

$
42,120
134,169
9,175
8,359
1,618
381
18.18
183.06
250
5,835

187,757

Councillors are provided with meals when attending Council and Committee Meetings, workshops and
other official functions and receptions, which are included in Catering/Receptions above. Councillor
attendance at meetings and workshops is detailed in the Mayor and Councillors section above.
The cost of attendance of Councillors at conferences and seminars together with training and skill
development is included in Delegates expenses above. Council does not pay expenses for any spouse,
partner or other person who may accompany a Councillor.
In addition, Councillors are provided, upon request, with phone lines and equipment including laptop
computers, printers and facsimiles on loan, in accordance with Council's "Policy".
Councillors are provided with tablet devices (five Councillors) and multi-function printers (three
Councillors) on a loan basis during the year. Consumables for printers and facsimile machines on loan
are provided on request. A desk-top computer and printer are also available for Councillor's' use in the
Councillors' Lounge office sat the Civic centre.
The "Policy for the Payment of Expenses and Provision of Facilities to Mayor and Councillors" is
available on Council's website at www.mosman.nsw.gov.au.
2. SENIOR STAFF
In conformity with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1993, Council has determined the following
to be senior staff:
•
•
•
•

General Manager
Director Community Development
Director Corporate Services
Director Environment and Planning
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The total amount of money payable in respect of the employment of senior staff during 2017-18 amounted
to $1,012,562.
The following remuneration packages of senior staff include the total value of the salary component,
the total amount payable by Council by way of the employer's contribution or salary sacrifice to any
superannuation scheme to which the employee may be a contributor, the total value of non-cash
benefits elected under the package including professional development and total amount payable by
Council by way of fringe benefits tax for any non-cash benefits.

1

Position

Salary
(including salary sacrifice)
($)

Superannuation
(Council contribution)
($)

Car allowance
($)

Total
($)

General Manager

263,775

25,030

8,541

297,346

Senior Staff 1

627,398

70,736

17,081

715,215

Total

891,174

95,766

25,622

1,012,562

Director Community Development, Director Corporate Services and Director Environment and Planning.

3. OVERSEAS VISITS BY COUNCILLORS, COUNCIL STAFF OR OTHER PERSONS
REPRESENTING COUNCIL
There were no overseas visits during 2017-18 by Councillors, Council staff or other persons
representing Council.
4. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT
The review and update of the Equal Employment Opportunity Management Plan was completed and
adopted by the General Manager on 28 June 2018.
Council's Employment Website and e-Recruitment system was updated to support a number of
initiatives around access to equal employment arising out of the Equal Employment Opportunity
Management plan and the inclusion of removing barriers to employment addressed in the 2017-2021
Disability Inclusion Plan.
This included:
•

Council's commitment to the principles of Equal Employment Opportunity with respect to providing
a work environment fostering fairness, equity, social and cultural diversity and inclusion; and
requesting applicants for positions with Council to inform us of any special requirements to assist
applicants at interview.

•

Council's commitment to eliminate discrimination and promote equal opportunity for women and
persons in designated groups in relation to employment matters.

•

Inclusion of a statement to form part of advertising employment opportunities "Mosman Council is
committed to the principles of Equal Employment Opportunity"

•

Inclusion of a sentence in correspondence replying to applications for employment and interview
confirmation emails "Please inform us if you require any special arrangements to assist you at an
interview".
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5. CONDITION OF PUBLIC WORKS
Stormwater Drainage
In 2013, Council’s Stormwater Asset Management Plan (SWAMP) was reviewed and adopted. This
involved a revaluation of the stormwater network and included CCTV investigation of 15% of the
stormwater pipeline network – over 9km. The SWAMP provides an objective method of assessing the
conditions of the stormwater assets and forming a priority list of works. This plan is updated each year
with capital works and ongoing inspections.
In 2017-18 capital and maintenance works for stormwater included CCTV investigations and jetting to
remove sediment built-up of closed conduits, remediation of open drains, various pits and lintel
renewals and drainage improvement works along Mary Margaret Lane, Shadforth Street and the outlet
at Balmoral Beach.
Stormwater Pollution Control and Stormwater Reuse Scheme
In June 2000, Council adopted the Community Environmental Contract (CEC), which was a program of
environmental works including retro-fitting Stormwater Quality Improvement Devices (SQIDs) to the
existing drainage network. Thirty - eight SQIDs were installed which filter stormwater from over 90% of
Mosman’s catchments.
Council continues to allocate funding for the maintenance of these SQIDs. During the year 2017-18
work on SQIDS included cleaning and auditing for condition and performance. SQIDs at Cowles Road,
Oswald Street and Pearl Bay Avenue were refurbished to increase the operational performance.

Description

Estimate of funds
required to bring
works to satisfactory
standards

Estimate of annual
expenses of
maintaining the
works at that
standard

Maintenance and
capital works
program for 2017-18

Stormwater Drainage
Assets, including SQID

$526,000

$237,000

$934,000

Road Assets
A comprehensive condition survey and valuation of all Mosman’s road assets was conducted in 2010
and a Road Asset Management Plan (RAMP) was developed. Road assets include roads, kerb and
gutter, footpaths, street furniture, traffic control devices such as roundabouts and refuges, linemarking,
signs and retaining walls/rock faces. The RAMP provided Council with a 10 year capital works program
and identified a list of priority maintenance works. It was updated each year with capital works and
ongoing inspections.
In 2017-18, a comprehensive condition survey and valuation was again undertaken by external valuers.
The valuers assessed and updated the unit rates of the road assets to reflect current rates and a
sample of assets within roads, footpaths and kerb and gutter were inspected.
Works undertaken on road assets in 2017-18 included the renewal of Civic Lane, Military Road
Streetscape Upgrade, Bradleys Head Road, Macpherson Road, Ourimbah Road footpath, Redan
Street footpath, Prince Albert Street fencing and Parriwi Road intersection upgrade.
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Description

Estimate of funds
required to bring
works to
satisfactory
standards

Estimate of annual
expenses of
maintaining the
works at that
standard

Maintenance and
capital works
program for 2016-17

Road Assets

$1,373,000

$1,734,000

$5,903,000

Marine Structures
In 2011, a full condition audit, valuation and Asset Management Plan for all seawalls, jetties and wharfs
was completed. Given the small number of marine assets, full condition audits were undertaken each
year and the asset management plan was updated.
A comprehensive review and valuation was undertaken in 2017-18 by an external vauler. Unit rates
were updated to reflect current rates and condition inspections were conducted on all assets.
Additionally, the valuer also assessed useful lives and remaining useful lives.
The significant investment over the years in marine structures through the CEC program and
Infrastructure Levy, resulted in the state of these assets being in relatively good condition. However,
given the short useful life of many of these assets especially shark nets, continued investment is
required to ensure they are maintained in good condition.
In 2017-18 Council undertook the following works on marine assets: Spit East coastal erosion
management and drainage improvement works, sharknet replacement works at Balmoral and Clifton
Gardens and the replacement of the Balmoral Baths Turning Boards.

Description

Estimate of funds
required to bring
works to satisfactory
standards

Estimate of annual
expenses of
maintaining the
works at that
standard

Maintenance and
capital works
program for 2016-17

Marine Assets

$81,000

$16,000

$ 959,000

6. CONTRACTS
Details of contracts awarded during 2017-18 (other than employment contracts and contracts for less
than $150,000) follow. Prices are exclusive of GST.
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Activity
(Tender No.)

Turf Management
and Associated
Works Open Space
Service Contract
Tender Assessment
T-EP-17/07
Spit Erosion
Protection Works
Tender
T-EP-17/08
Tree Management
and Associated
Works 2017-2022
T-EP-17/04
Memory
Playground
Upgrade
T-EP-17/05
Military Road
Streetscape
Upgrade Civil
Works
T-EP-17/10
Civic Lane Shared
Zone Civil Works
T-EP-17/12
Balmoral Baths
Swimming Turning
Boards
Replacement
T-EP-17/01
Balmoral Outlet
Pipe Replacement

Contractor

Date
Awarded

Term of Contract

(Item No.)

(Component 1)
Edge Greenkeeping
2/54 Benelong Road
Cremorne NSW 2090
(Component 2)
Citywide Service
Solutions
41 Huntingwood Drive
Huntingwood NSW 2148
GPM Constructions
Unit 11, 28 Barcoo street
Chatswood NSW 069
Australian Urban
Tree Services
30 Dickson Ave
Artarmon NSW 2064
Lark Industries
(for Equipment)
PO Box 524
Templestowe VIC 3106
Co-ordinated Landscapes
(for Landscaping)
Level 1, 33-35 Belmont St
Sutherland NSW 2232
QMC Group
Suite 208
29-31 Lexington Drive
Bella Vista NSW 2153
Sam the Paving Man
53-57 Cosgrove Road
Strathfield NSW 2136
Waterway
Construction Pty Ltd
PO Box 290
Annandale NSW 2039

T-EP-17/17

Land & Marine Ocean
Engineering
8 Cowdroy Avenue
Cammeray NSW 2062

Drainage Upgrade Marsala St
T-EP-17/11

TGB & SON
150 Hue Hue Road
Jilliby NSW 2259

Mosman Municipal Council | Annual Report 2017-18

10 August
2017
EP/45

18 August
2017
EP/44
18
December
2017
EP/46 and
EP/69
6 February
2018
EP/1

6 February
2018
EP/4
6 March
2018
EP/13
6 February
2018
EP/22
13 March
2018
EP/11
13 March
2018
EP/12

1 September 2017
to
30 August 2022

18 August 2017
to
8 December 2017
18 December 2017
to
18 December 2022

Tender Price
$

75,043.50
per annum

63,302.00
per annum

800,207.50

132,807.10
per annum

7 February 2018
to
30 June 2018

206,034.35

28 March 2018
to
30 June 2018

114,990.00

1 April 2018
to
1 August 2018

875,000.00

20 March 2018
to
3 July 2018
8 March 2018
to
31 May 2018
1st April 2018
to
1st July 2018
1 April 2018
to
October 2018
(expected)

260,789.00

416,072.00

263,410.00

184,814.00
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7. LEGAL COSTS AND EXPENSES
The costs for 2017-18 referred to in this statement are those direct third party payments in relation to
legal proceedings. Costs associated with staff to progress these matters and attend court are not
included as they are considered to be part of normal duties.
Total costs incurred for a particular matter may not be invoiced and paid within the same financial year,
so this statement should be read in conjunction with previous and subsequent statements. Land and
Environment Court matters also include any consultancy costs associated with the appeal.
Land and Environment Matters
Development
Application No.

Status

Consistency with
Staff
Recommendation

26 Musgrave Street

8.2017.148.1

Discontinued

Yes

16,880

14 Bapaume Avenue

8.2017.131.1

Pending

Pending

4,865

216 Raglan Street

8.2018.56.1

Pending

Pending

6,979

4 Parriwi Road

8.2017.232.1

Pending

Pending

1,220

62 Wyong Road

8.2017.144.1

Pending

Pending

1,600

3A Avenue Road

8.2015.220.2

Pending

Pending

9,057

9 Burran Avenue

8.2007.369.2

Upheld

No

5,489

65 Glover Street

8.2017.178.1

Pending

Pending

6,374

64 Moruben Road

8.2017.179.1

Discontinued

Yes

2,150

24-26 Boyle Street

8.2017.47.1

Dismissed

Yes

103,607

1E Kirkoswald Avenue

8.2017.25.1

Upheld

Yes

6,000

12 Beauty Point Road

8.2016.192.2

Upheld

Yes

18,106

26 Lang Street

8.2017.91.1

Discontinued

Yes

29,896

252 Raglan Street

8.2012.16.4

Upheld

Yes

23,788

49 Moruben Road

8.2016.212.1

Upheld

Yes

3,641

250 Raglan Street

8.2017.16.1

Upheld

Yes

18,456

11 Wyong Road

8.2016.10.1

Discontinued

Yes

1,323

Property

Total
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Other Legal Costs
Activity

Cost $

Finance (rate and debtor matters cost generally recoverable)

55,370

Employment related legal fees

6,757

Governance legal fees (including property management, risk management and GIPA)

9,136

Domestic Waste Management

5,301

Other Environment and Planning legal fees (trees and compliance) 1.

86,769

Amalgamation legal fees 2.

54,847

Total

218,180

Total Legal Costs

477,611

1. Includes costs associated with other Land and Environment Court matters and Local Court matters
During 2017-18, six matters were referred for mention or were defended hearings in the Local Court and two matters in the
Land and Environment Court.
Council incurred direct costs during the period in defending these matters. Fines and costs awarded by the Courts were
recovered in those matters not withdrawn or dismissed by the Courts.
2. Costs were awarded to Council in action it took in the Land and Environment Court defending its position on forced
amalgamation. Receipt of payment of costs from the State Government is not finalised.

8. PLANNING AGREEMENTS
Section 93F(1) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 provides for voluntary
planning agreements or other arrangements between Council and a developer:
a.
b.
c.

who has sought a change to an environmental planning instrument, or
who has made, or proposes to make, a development application, or
who has entered into an agreement with, or is otherwise associated with, a person to whom
paragraph (a) or (b) applies, under which the developer is required to dedicate land free of cost,
pay a monetary contribution, or provide any other material public benefit, or any combination of
them, to be used for or applied towards a public purpose.

Council upon entering into one or more planning agreements must, while any such planning
agreements remain in force, include in its annual report particulars of compliance with and the effect of
the planning agreements during the year to which the report relates.
Bridgepoint Pedestrian Bridge, Military Road, Mosman
Council entered into a Voluntary Planning Agreement (VPA) with oOh! media Assets Pty Limited on 8
August 2012. The VPA relates to Council’s approval of a S82A review of Development Application
8.2009.343.1 for a supersite sign, upgrade of the façade of Bridgepoint Pedestrian Bridge and
Shopping Centre, Military Road, Mosman for a period of 15 years from the date of that consent. The
VPA requires the developer to pay to Council an annual contribution for the erection and display of
outdoor advertising signage on the eastern and western sides of the footbridge (Lot 2 DP 805982
Military Road).
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The first annual contribution was payable the first business day after the first display of signage
appeared on the footbridge. The first display of signage appeared on 17 June 2013 and the
appropriate payment was made to Council by the developer. The annual contribution is reviewed
annually and is payable on the anniversary of the payment date of 18 June.
The annual contribution for the period 18 June 2018 to 17 June 2019 was $477,317.20 (+ GST). The
contribution was paid by the developer to Council and allocated for infrastructure expenditure in the
2017-18 financial year. Infrastructure works funded by the contribution include:
•
•
•
•

Mosman Junction Streetscape Improvements
Mosman Bowling Club retaining wall rectification
Almora and Mandolong Pedestrian Crossings
Military Road Paving and Footpath Works

9. APPROVED SPECIAL RATE VARIATION EXPENDITURE
The Independent Pricing and Regulatory Tribunal approved Special Rate Variation of 13.0% effective
from 1 July 2015. A condition of approval was that Council report on how the additional funds raised for
the purpose of eliminating operating deficits (before capital revenue) over the ten years to 2024-25,
whilst increasing infrastructure maintenance of key assets. At the same time, this additional revenue
will be used to clear its current infrastructure backlogs.
The majority of this funding is targeted towards road-related assets, although buildings, marine
structures, parks and stormwater drainage also receive funding.
The attached Annual Financial Reports for the year ending 30 June 2018 discloses the capital renewal
expenditure in note 10a to the Accounts whilst Special Schedule 7 - Report on Infrastructure assets as
at 30 June 2018 discloses the reduction in the infrastructure backlog together with increased
maintenance expenditure over various classes of assets.
10. RATES AND CHARGES WRITTEN OFF DURING THE YEAR
The Local Government Act 1993 provides for concessions in relation to the payment of rates, charges
and interest. Section 575 of the Act provides for the reductions in rates and charges for eligible
pensioners. The amount of rates and charges reduced must be written off by Council. Clause 132 of
the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 requires details of rates and charges to be included
in the annual report.
During 2017-18 Council wrote off pensioner rates and charges of $143,749 and $52,356 respectively.
11. PRIVATE WORKS
There were no works carried out on private land during 2017-18.
12. DONATIONS AND SUBSIDIES
No monies were paid during 2017-18 in respect of donations and subsidies under section 356 of the
Local Government Act 1993.
However, Council conducts an annual Community Grants program to provide an opportunity for
Council to assist community groups to meet local community needs and provide activities, services and
programs for residents. Grants are a constructive and effective means for Councils to build capacity in
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their communities, and are particularly valuable as Council does not have the necessary resources inhouse to meet the needs of all groups in the community. Council's budgeted allocation for 2017-18 was
$70,000, being an increase from $50,000 provided in 2016-17.
13. EXTERNAL BODIES EXERCISING FUNCTIONS DELEGATED BY COUNCIL
No external bodies exercised functions delegated by Council during the period.
14. COMPANIES IN WHICH COUNCIL HELD A CONTROLLING INTEREST
Kimbriki Recycling and Waste Disposal Centre at Kimbriki Road, Terrey Hills
Kimbriki Environmental Enterprises Pty Limited (ACN 136 789 261) was created effective 1 July 2009
to operate the Kimbriki Recycling and Waste Disposal Centre. Mosman Council (3.84%) and Northern
Beaches Council (96.16%) are shareholders in the Company.
Mosman Council's interest in the company will be under review in the future having regard to the
proclamation of the Northern Beaches Council comprising the former Manly, Pittwater and Warringah
Councils on 12 May 2016 and the now resolved amalgamation proposal for Mosman, North Sydney
and Willoughby Councils.
15. PARTNERSHIPS, CO-OPERATIVES AND JOINT VENTURES WHICH THE COUNCIL WAS A
PARTY
Internal Audit, North Shore Councils
Mosman Council is a party to an agreement between Hunters Hill, Ku-ring-gai, Lane Cove, North
Sydney and Strathfield councils to jointly operate an internal audit function for the purpose of improving
the effectiveness risk management, control and governance processes of the respective Councils. The
management and cost of the internal audit services provided under the agreement are shared by all
Councils.
Shorelink co-operative library network
Mosman Council is a member of the Shorelink Co-operative Library Network together with the Councils
of Lane Cove, Northern Beaches (comprising former Manly Council), North Sydney and Willoughby.
Willoughby and Northern Beaches Councils have given notice of withdrawal of membership from
Shorelink effective 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2018 respectively.
Shorelink provides the computerisation of all library and community information services.
SHOROC Regional Organisation of Councils
Mosman, Manly, Pittwater and Warringah Councils established SHOROC - Regional Organisation of
Councils.
With the proclamation of Northern Beaches Council amalgamating Manly, Pittwater and Warringah
council areas on 12 May 2016, the Shore Regional Organisation of Councils (SHOROC) became a two
member regional organisation of councils (ROC) comprising Mosman and Northern Beaches Councils.
SHOROC was effectively redundant, with all staff let go or transferred, no further projects being
advanced, and joint contracts only being managed to the end of their term.
Council at its meeting on 8 November 2017 resolved to formally withdraw membership of SHOROC
and to join Northern Sydney Regional Organisation of Councils (NSROC). SHOROC was wound up
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and its accounts finalised during the year with Council’s unspent SHOROC membership fees being
transferred to NSROC.
Northern Sydney Regional Organisation of Councils (NSROC)
Council joined NSROC during the year and participated in its first Board meeting and AGM on 9
November 2017.
NSROC is comprised of eight councils in the northern part of Sydney which have voluntarily come
together to address regional issues, work co-operatively for the benefit of the region, and advocate on
agreed regional positions and priorities. The eight member councils are Hornsby Shire, Hunters Hill,
Ku-ring-gai, Lane Cove, Mosman, North Sydney, City of Ryde and Willoughby City. The objectives of
NSROC as defined in the NSROC Constitution are as follows:
1. To strengthen the role of Local Government in regional affairs, particularly where the region may be
affected by Commonwealth or New South Wales Government policies.
2. To ensure that as a region we are providing leadership and participating in the development of;
sound urban infrastructure; economic infrastructure and employment opportunities.
3. To facilitate the integration of transport, human and environmental infrastructure projects that
support opportunities that meet community and business needs.
4. To improve the quality and access to human services infrastructure.
5. To improve the quality and efficiency of Local Government service delivery throughout the Northern
Sydney Region.
6. To ensure the organisation develops as a highly credible and cost-effective organisation
The NSROC Board meets four times a year and holds an annual one day conference. NSROC was
established in 1986. It is an Incorporated Association governed by a Board established under its
Constitution.
Sydney Coastal Councils Group
Sydney Coastal Councils Group (SCCG) is a voluntary Regional Organisation of Councils presently
comprising nine member Councils including Bayside, Inner West, North Sydney, Northern Beaches,
Randwick, Sutherland, Waverley, Willoughby and Woollahra. The SCCG was established in 1989 to
promote cooperation between member Councils, advocate on behalf of member Councils, and build
capacity for coordinated action on issues relating to the sustainable management of the urban coastal
environment.
Following a review of the benefits of membership during the year and having regard to Sydney City
Council’s resignation from the Group, Council resolved on 5 December 2017 to terminate its
membership effective 30 June 2018.
16. COMPANION ANIMALS ACT AND REGULATION – GUIDELINES ON THE EXERCISE OF
FUNCTIONS UNDER THE COMPANION ANIMALS ACT CL 217(1) (F)
Council’s Compliance Team has an active role which involves promoting not only the responsibilities
when it comes to owning a Companion Animal, but also the responsibilities the pet owner has towards
other members of the community.
Under the provisions of the Companion Animals Act, 1998, Council Officers have the authority to
manage issues relating to companion animals. This can include investigating dog attacks and nuisance
animals, patrols in public areas to ensure owners compliance with laws such as leashing and picking
up after their dogs and monitoring declarations of menacing or dangerous dogs.
Mosman Council places emphasis on the prompt and efficient handling of animal complaints or
requests for assistance. When an animal such as a dog is not under effective control in a public place
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and no owner is present, Officers are quick to attend and they may secure and impound the dog to
avoid any safety concerns for our community.
There are quite high rates of dog ownership in the Mosman Council Local Government area and an
objective of Officers is to make sure everyone is following the rules to ensure the safety of both
residents and dogs.
Statistics are collected monthly, and lodged annually with the Office of Local Government. The
statistics for the 2017/2018 financial year are as follows:.

Dogs
Cats

Surrendered to
the Pound by
Other Parties
0
0
Released to
Owners

Taken to Cremorne
Vet by Council

Returned to Their
Home by Council

4
0

14
1 (Deceased)

Euthanased

Sold

Dogs

0

0%

0

0%

Cats

0

0%

0

0%

0
0

Re-homed with Rescue
Organisations

0%

0

0%

0

0

0%

Education
Council’s Compliance Team has initiated an education campaign to remind residents of the importance
of maintaining current and accurate microchipping records and to encourage owners to register those
companion animals that are yet to be registered. As part of the reminder to register companion
animals, fact sheets and merchandising with over 300 bags were handed out at council events to
ensure owners are aware of legislative requirements and to ensure companions animals are under
effective.
In 2017/18, the procedure that details the process for the investigation of barking dog complaints has
been revised so the Officers can focus on customer liaison to assist both the owner of the dog and the
person affected by the barking noise. Actions are based to achieve the most desirable outcome for the
community.
Impounding Facilities
Council has a six month contract with Cremorne Vets to shelter for the return to owner and re-homing
of companion animals. Educational brochures are available to people contemplating adopting a pet and
how to care for the animal once they have taken their new dog or cat home. Council does not have the
services of a pound.
Enforcement
For the financial year 2017/18 a total of 13 dog attacks were reported to the Office of Local
Government.
Council is required to report dog attacks to the Office of Local Government within seventy two hours
after any relevant information is received by the Council.
Note: The above information is complaint volume only, complaints may be unsubstantiated.
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Nuisance Orders issued
Habitually at large in a public place
Endangers Health of a person/Animal
Dog Noise
Defecating
Total

0
1
0
0
0

Declarations of Dangerous Dog
Attacks on Persons
Attacks on Animals
Used for the purposes of hunting
Total

N/A
N/A
0
0

Declaration of Menacing Dog
Attacked an animal - no serious injury or death
Displayed unreasonable aggression towards a person or animal
Total

0
0
0

Council provides Off-leash dog areas include:
•
•
•
•
•

Rawson Park
Lawry Plunkett Reserve (top of Plunkett Rd)
Reid Park subject to restricted times
Spit Reserve subject to restricted times
Clifton Gardens Reserve, Sirius Park, Rosherville Reserve, Sirius Cove Beach, and Spit East/West
Beach (subject to restricted and seasonal times)

Penalty Infringement Notices were issued for breaches of the Companion Animals Act 1998 as follows:
Infringement
1
0
0
0
6
4
4
0
8
0

Companion animal not registered as required
Fail to comply with prevention notice
Fail to comply with nuisance dog order
Owner failed to comply with dangerous dog control requirements
In charge of dog which rushes at/attacks/bites/harasses/chases any person/animal -not
declared dangerous/menacing/restricted dog
Owner of dog which rushes at/attacks/bites/harasses/chases- not declared
dangerous/menacing/restricted dog
Own dog uncontrolled in public place-not declared dangerous/menacing/restricted dog
Own dog uncontrolled in public place- declared dangerous dog
Owner failed to prevent dog from escaping-not declared dangerous/menacing/restricted dog
Owner failed to prevent dog from escaping- declared dangerous dog

Funding
Funding for Council’s Companion Animal Management is absorbed within the general Compliance
budget. All Rangers have been issued dog scanners to ensure timely and accurate scanning is able to
be conducted in the field rather than return to the office with the companion animal.
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17. SWIMMING POOLS ACT 1992 AND REGULATION
In 2013 The New South Wales Government made changes to the Swimming Pools Act 1992 (the Act).
The amendments were designed to enhance the Act, and to actively contribute to a reduction of
drowning or near drowning immersions in New South Wales private backyard swimming pools,
including spa pools.
The amendments to the Act include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

A new online state-wide register of swimming pools
Mandatory registration of swimming pools by owners
A certification system of compliance for all New South Wales swimming pools with the ability of
authorised Council officers and private Accredited Certifiers to undertake inspections
Mandatory inspection of pools associated with multi-occupancy dwellings and tourist
accommodation
Mandatory compliance certification to be obtained for properties with swimming pools before they
can be sold or leased (Extended to April 2016)
Requirement for Councils to develop a locally appropriate and affordable inspection program in
consultation with their communities
Requirement for Councils to report annually on the number of swimming pool inspections
undertaken and the level of compliance with the requirements.

Swimming Pool Inspection Program
On 3 December 2013 at a meeting of Council the Swimming Pool inspection Program was adopted.
The program requires Council staff to inspect properties with Swimming Pools and Spas under the
following circumstances:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.

Inspection as a result of a complaint
Inspection at the request of a pool owner
Inspection at the request of a pool owner – sale or lease
Inspection of a tourist, visitor, multi occupancy development
Inspection of Development Applications which have not been finalised
Referral and customer requests from Council’s internal staff

There is a statutory obligation under the Swimming Pools Act 1992 upon Council to inspect swimming
pools in its area, in accordance with the adopted swimming pools inspection program.
All inspections carried out on behalf of Council will be undertaken by authorised officers under the Act.
It is the responsibility of all swimming pool owners to register their swimming pool on the Swimming
Pool register operated by the NSW Department of Local Government.
The Swimming Pool Inspection Program is relevant to all swimming pools regulated under the
Swimming Pools Act 1992. A reference to a swimming pool also includes a spa pool. The inspection
program is designed to provide measures to identify non-compliant swimming pools, ensure upgrade
works are carried out, and in the process raise swimming pool safety awareness.
As part of this program Council staff has inspected all pools within tourist, visitor, multi occupancy
developments in Mosman.
The record of inspections for the financial year 2017-18 is as follows:
Inspections completed
Number of pools registered on the NSW Register
Number of compliance certificate applications
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Since 2013, each year Council has inspected approximately 10% of pools on the register. In addition to
Council Staff inspecting and issuing certificates on pools, there are Private Certifiers carry out
inspections and issue compliance certificates. This can be when properties are for sale or have been
developed and are seeking an occupation certificate.
It should be noted swimming pool barriers are very rarely compliant on first inspection. A number of
inspections are normally required to ensure that the swimming pool barrier is compliant with the Act
and Regulations.
Current Overview
1. Mosman has 2230 pools registered on State Register
2. There is a 100% non-compliance rate upon the first inspection
3. After inspections, education and directions are issued seeking compliance
4. There's more than one main reason for non-compliances;
•
•
•

The gate not self-closing when resting on the latch
Vegetation in NCZ 5 (on the inside of the boundary barrier)
Vegetation/objects in NCZ 2 and NCZ 3 (on outside of the internal pool barrier)

Education
The implementation of the swimming pools inspection program has been underpinned by various
educational opportunities including the dissemination of information through Councils website, mail
outs to residents and agents along with media releases.
In line with the Royal Life Saving Society ‘Be Pool Safe’ campaign, the Compliance Team has
developed a range of resources and public awareness materials to assist in raising awareness
amongst backyard swimming pool owners and the broader community. Council’s webpage has been
updated to provide current information on the changes to the swimming pool laws and direct links to
relevant websites, including the State Government Swimming Pool Register
(www.swimmingpoolregister.nsw.gov.au), facts sheets and swimming pool checklists. Information has
also been forwarded to the community through the Mosman daily and local media outlets.
Resourcing
Through a review of approval records and aerial photographs, a database has been developed by
Council, which currently contains approximately 2300 properties with swimming pools.
A number of other officers within the Compliance Team are actively engaged in swimming pool safety
amongst their broader roles and responsibilities.
The implementation of the swimming pools inspection program is believed to have had a significant
effect on, not only raising the level of awareness of swimming pool safety issues within the community,
but also to provide a practical continuing improvement in the level of safety for young children with an
increased number of compliant swimming pools in Mosman area.
18. CODE OF CONDUCT
Council is required to report annually on Code of Conduct complaints for the reporting period 1
September to 31 August.
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Council received no Code of Conduct complaint about Councillors during the reporting period 1
September 2017 to 31 August 2018.
The following statistics for the reporting period have been provided to the Office of Local Government.
Number of Complaints

1a
1b

The total number of complaints received in the period about councillors under the code
of conduct
The total number of complaints finalised in the period about councillors under the code
of conduct

0
0

Overview of Complaints and Cost

2a
2h
2l

The number of complaints finalised at the outset by alternative means by the General
Manager
The number of finalised complaints investigated where there was found to be no breach
The total cost of dealing with code of conduct complaints within the period made about
councillors including staff costs

0
0
$0

Investigation Statistics

The number of investigated complaints resulting in a determination that there was no breach, in which
the following recommendations were made:
4a That the council revise its policies or procedures
0
4b That a person or persons undertake training or other education
0
19. GOVERNMENT INFORMATION (PUBLIC ACCESS) ACT 2009
Section 125 of the Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 requires Council to prepare an
annual report on Council's obligations under the Act.
The following report for 2017-18 was submitted to both the Minister for Local Government and
Information Commissioner.
Clause 7A: Details of the review carried out by the agency under section 7 (3) of the Act during the
reporting year and the details of any information made publicly available by the agency as a result of
the review
Reviews carried out by the agency
Yes

Information made publicly available by the agency
Yes

Council has implemented a digitisation program of its hard copy files held in repository. These files
include development applications, property, street and subject files. As Council no longer maintains
hard copy files (with all information now being captured and stored electronically) these files are being
made publically available upon request, following retrieval and digitisation.
Clause 7B: The total number of access applications received by the agency during the reporting year
(including withdrawn applications but not including invalid applications)
Total number of applications received
6
Clause 7C: The total number of access applications received by the agency during the reporting year
that the agency refused either wholly or partly, because the application was for the disclosure of
information referred to in Schedule 1 to the Act (information for which there is conclusive presumption
of overriding public interest against disclosure)
Number of
Applications Refused

Wholly
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0
0
0
% of total
0%
0%
Schedule 2 Statistical information about access applications to be included in annual report
Table A: Number of applications by type of applicant and outcome
Access
granted
in full

Access
granted
in part

Access
refused
in full

Info
not
held

Info
already
availabl
e

Refuse to
deal with
application

Refuse to
confirm/deny
whether
information is
held

Application
withdrawn

Media

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Members of
Parliament

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Private sector
business

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

Not for profit
organisations
or community
groups

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Members of
the public
(application
by legal
representative
)

0

2

0

1

0

0

0

0

Members of
the public
(other)

2

1

0

0

2

0

0

0

Total

2

3

0

2

2

0

0

0

*More than one decision can be made in respect of a particular access application. If so, a recording must be made in
relation to each such decision. This also applies to Table B.

Table B: Number of applications by type of application and outcome8
Access
granted
in full

Access
granted
in part

Access
refused
in full

Info
not
held

Info
already
available

Refuse to
deal with
application

Refuse to
confirm/deny
whether
information
is held

Application
withdrawn

Personal
information
applications*

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Access
applications
(other than
personal
information
applications)

2

2

0

2

2

0

0

0

Access
applications that
are partly
personal
information
applications and
partly other

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total

2

3

0

2

2

0

0

0

*A personal information application is an access application for personal information (as defined in clause 4 of
Schedule 4 to the Act) about the applicant (the applicant being an individual).
PLEASE NOTE: The total number of decisions in Table B should be the same as Table A.
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Table C: Invalid applications
Reason for invalidity

Number of applications

Application does not comply with formal requirements (section 41 of the Act)

1

Application is for excluded information of the agency (section 43 of the Act)

0

Application contravenes restraint order (section 110 of the Act)

0

Total number of invalid applications received

1

Invalid applications that subsequently became valid applications

1

Total

3

Table D: Conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against disclosure:
matters listed in Schedule 1 of the Act
Number of times consideration used*
Overriding secrecy laws

0

Cabinet information

0

Executive Council information

0

Contempt

0

Legal professional privilege

0

Excluded information

0

Documents affecting law enforcement and public safety

0

Transport safety

0

Adoption

0

Care and protection of children

0

Ministerial code of conduct

0

Aboriginal and environmental heritage

0

Total

0

*More than one public interest consideration may apply in relation to a particular access application and, if so, each such
consideration is to be recorded (but only once per application). This also applies in relation to Table E.

Table E: Other public interest considerations against disclosure:
matters listed in table to section 14 of the Act
Number of times consideration used
Responsible and effective government

0

Law enforcement and security

0

Individual rights, judicial processes and natural justice

3

Business interests of agencies and other persons

0

Environment, culture, economy and general matters

0

Secrecy provisions

0

Exempt documents under interstate Freedom of Information legislation

0

Total

3

Table F: Timeliness
Number of applications
Decided within the statutory timeframe (20 days plus any extensions)

6

Decided after 35 days (by agreement with applicant)

0

Not decided within time (deemed refusal)

0

Total

6
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Table G: Number of applications reviewed under Part 5 of the Act (by type of review and outcome)
Decision
varied

Decision
upheld

Total

Internal review

0

0

0

Review by Information Commissioner*

0

0

0

Internal review following recommendation under section 93 of Act

0

0

0

Review by NCAT

0

0

0

Total

0

0

0

*The Information Commissioner does not have the authority to vary decisions, but can make recommendations to the
original decision-maker. The data in this case indicates that a recommendation to vary or uphold the original decision has
been made by the Information Commissioner.

Table H: Applications for review under Part 5 of the Act (by type of applicant)
Number of applications for review
Applications by access applicants

0

Applications by persons to whom information the subject of access
application relates (see section 54 of the Act)

0

Total

0

Table I: Applications transferred to other agencies
Number of applications transferred
Agency-Initiated Transfers

0

Applicant-Initiated Transfers

0

Total

0

In addition to the above, a total of 428 informal applications to access Council information were
received and processed during the reporting period.
20. PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURES ACT 1994
Section 6CA of the Public Interest Disclosures Act 1994 requires Council to provide the NSW
Ombudsman with information about Council's obligations in relation to public interest disclosures every
six months. The following information was forwarded to the Ombudsman during 2017-18:
Details
Number of public officials who made public interest disclosures

2017-18

(performing their day to day functions)

0

(made by public officials performing their day to day functions)

0

Number of public interest disclosures received
Of public interest disclosures received, how many were primarily about:
•

Corrupt conduct

0

•

Maladministration

0

•

Serious and substantial waste

0

•

Government information contravention

0

•

Local government pecuniary interest contravention

0

Number of public interest disclosures that have been finalised in this reporting period

0

Have you established an internal reporting policy?

Yes

Has the General Manager taken action to meet staff awareness obligations?

Yes
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The following actions were taken during 2017-18:

•

Staff are aware of the contents of the policy and the protections under the Act for a person who
makes a public interest disclosure
Staff undertaking that they have read and understood Mosman Council's internal reporting policy

•

Training has been provided for staff in public disclosures

•

Email message to all staff

•

Links available on internet and intranet sites

•

Messages in staff newsletters

•

Messages on staff noticeboards

•

Posters provided

•

Training provided to new staff during induction

•

Policies are discussed at staff meetings

•

21. PRIVACY MANAGEMENT PLAN
Council has adopted a Privacy Management Plan to accord with section 33 of the Privacy and Personal
Information Protection Act 1998 and the Privacy Code of Practice for Local Government. The Plan
shows how Council incorporates the provisions of the Act into its everyday activities.
The Privacy Management Plan was reviewed and adopted by Council on 6 March 2018 to ensure
legislative compliance and that its provisions reflect current procedures and best practice. No privacy
complaints were received by Council during 2017-18.
The Information and Privacy Commission’s e-learning portal is made available to Council staff to
educate and promote privacy and access to information legislation and issues.
22. FORMAL COMPLAINTS
During 2017-18 a total of 53 complaints were received as formal complaints under Council’s new
Complaints Management Policy and reporting system which was adopted on 6 February 2018.
The key statistics from management of formal complaints in the 2017/18 reporting period are:
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Number
53
51
2

%
97
3

Category 1 complaints received 1
Category 2 complaints received 1
Category 3 complaints received 1

22
29
2

42
55
3

Complaints resolved within 5 days
Complaints resolved within 10 days
Complaints resolved in greater than 10 days

25
12
14

49
24
27

Department Community Development complaints
Department Corporate Services complaints
Department Environment and Planning complaints
Other complaints
Requests for an Internal Review of a complaint response

12
4
35
1
1

23
7
66
2
2

Formal complaints received
Formal complaints resolved
Formal complaints unresolved

1.

Complaints are categorised as minor (category 1), behavioural or systematic (category 2), and serious (category 3)

An internal audit of complaints management was concluded as part of the Internal Audit Program
2017/2018 and the outcome was that overall the Council has demonstrated a strong control
environment around its complaint management handling. The audit report rated Council’s complaints
management system as Strong Control Environment meaning that minimal opportunities for
improvement were identified.
23. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION PREVENTION ACTIVITIES
Mosman Council is committed to good governance and ethical behaviour as a key ingredient of
responsible, transparent, effective and accountable local government. Fraud and corruption control are
key components of good governance. Council is committed to protecting its revenue, expenditure and
property from any attempt (either by the public, contractors, or its own employees) to gain by deceit,
financial or other benefits.
Council has adopted a Prevention of Fraud and Corrupt Conduct Policy which is designed to protect
public funds and assets, the integrity, security and reputation of the Council and its employees, and
maintain a high level of services to the community. The purpose of this policy is to demonstrate that
Council does not tolerate dishonest or fraudulent behaviour and is committed to deterring and
preventing such behaviour, in line with the community expectation that Council employees
acknowledge and fulfil their responsibility to protect public money and property.
This policy is supported by a Prevention of Fraud and Corrupt Conduct Plan and reporting of breaches
is supported by Council’s Code of Conduct and Public Interest Disclosures Policy. The Mayor, General
Manager, all Directors, Manager Human Resources and Manager Governance can receive public
interest disclosures.
Council has an Audit Committee which includes three external representatives one of whom must be
the Chair. Further, Council has introduced a follow up check on the organisation’s compliance with the
Policy by using the Fraud Control Health Check provided by the Audit Office.
Council encourages members of the public to report possible fraud or corruption direct to the General
Manager, Mayor or Public Interest Disclosure Officers or directly to the Independent Commission
Against Corruption.
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24. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REVIEWS
Council submitted no Capital Expenditure Reviews pursuant to the Office of Local Government
Expenditure Guidelines.
25. CARERS RECOGNITION ACT 2010
Mosman Council receives no funding for any of its programs for carers and therefore has no reporting
obligations under s 8(2) of the Carers Recognition Act 2010.
26. DIABILITY INCLUSION ACT 2014
Council has had a productive year implementing its Disability Inclusion Action Plan (DIAP). The Plan
was designed and has been implemented as a whole of Council planning tool to build on Council’s
capacity to become a strongly inclusive community. All targets in the DIAP for the 2017/18 period were
met and work continues. A copy of the report on achievements of the targets during the year has been
submitted to the Minister for Disability Services pursuant to s 13(1) of the Disability Inclusion Act 2014.
Refer to Section 5 for the Disability Inclusion Action Plan 2017-2021.
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Overview
Mosman Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business
at:
Civic Centre
Mosman Square, Spit Junction, 2088
Council’s guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:






principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,
principles to be applied when making decisions,
principles of community participation,
principles of sound financial management, and
principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

A description of the nature of Council’s operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).
Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum
cost. All press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website:
www.mosman.nsw.gov.au.
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Understanding Council’s financial statements
Introduction

5. The Statement of Cash Flows

Each year, individual local governments across New
South Wales are required to present a set of audited
financial statements to their council and community.

Indicates where Council's cash came from and
where it was spent. This statement also displays
Council's original adopted budget to provide a
comparison between what was projected and what
actually occurred.

What you will find in the statements
The financial statements set out the financial
performance, financial position and cash flows of
Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.
The format of the financial statements is standard
across all NSW Councils and complies with both the
accounting and reporting requirements of Australian
Accounting Standards and requirements as set
down by the Office of Local Government.

About the Councillor/Management Statement
The financial statements must be certified by senior
staff as ‘presenting fairly’ the Council’s financial
results for the year and are required to be adopted
by Council – ensuring both responsibility for and
ownership of the financial statements.

About the primary financial statements
The financial statements incorporate five ‘primary’
financial statements:
1. The Income Statement
Summarises Council's financial performance for the
year, listing all income and expenses.
This statement also displays Council's original
adopted budget to provide a comparison between
what was projected and what actually occurred.
2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Primarily records changes in the fair value of
Council's Infrastructure, Property, Plant and
Equipment.

About the Notes to the Financial Statements
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide
greater detail and additional information on the five
primary financial statements.

About the Auditor’s Reports
Council’s annual financial statements are required to
be audited by the NSW Audit Office. In NSW the
auditor provides 2 audit reports:
1. an opinion on whether the financial statements
present fairly the Council’s financial performance
and position, and
2. their observations on the conduct of the audit,
including commentary on the Council’s financial
performance and financial position.

Who uses the financial statements?
The financial statements are publicly available
documents and must be presented at a Council
meeting between seven days and five weeks after
the date of the Audit Report.
The public can make submissions to Council up to
seven days subsequent to the public presentation of
the financial statements.
Council is required to forward an audited set of
financial statements to the Office of Local
Government.

3. The Statement of Financial Position
A 30 June snapshot of Council's financial position
indicating its assets, liabilities and “net wealth”.
4. The Statement of Changes in Equity
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of
Council’s “net wealth”.
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Mosman Council
Income Statement

for the year ended 30 June 2018
Original
unaudited
budget
2018

$ ’000

Actual
2018

Actual
2017

26,404
10,908
508
5,270
3,278
2,685

25,797
11,075
520
5,354
3,804
2,196

189

1,720

–

1,223

155

–

49,397

51,689

5

17,784
402
14,133
5,552
6,511
1,241

16,706
414
14,519
5,528
6,489
423

16

–

82

Notes

Income from continuing operations
26,173
10,818
467
5,022
2,329
2,055
–
–
–
46,864

18,238
403
14,413
5,403
6,169
–
–

Revenue:
Rates and annual charges
3a
3b
User charges and fees
Interest and investment revenue
3c
Other revenues
3d
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 3e,f
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
3e,f
Other income:
Fair value increment on investment property
10
Reversal of revaluation decrements / impairment of
IPP&E previously expensed
4d
Net share of interests in joint ventures and
associates using the equity method
16

Total income from continuing operations
Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses
Net losses from the disposal of assets
Net share of interests in joint ventures and
associates using the equity method

4a
4b
4c
4d
4e

44,626

Total expenses from continuing operations

45,623

44,161

2,238

Operating result from continuing operations

3,774

7,528

3,774

7,528

Net operating result attributable to Council

3,774

7,528

Net operating result for the year before grants and
contributions provided for capital purposes

1,089

5,332

2,238
2,238

183

Net operating result for the year

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Mosman Council
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2018

$ ’000

Notes

Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement)

2018

2017

3,774

7,528

Other comprehensive income:
Amounts that will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E
Other comprehensive income – joint ventures and associates
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently
to the operating result

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income attributable to Council

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

9
16b

34,470
(5)

332
–

34,465

332

34,465

332

38,239

7,860

38,239

7,860
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Mosman Council
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2018

$ ’000

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Receivables
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using the equity method
Investment property
Intangible assets
Total non-current assets

Notes

6a
6b
7
8
8

7
9
16
10
11

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables
Income received in advance
Borrowings
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

12
12
12
13

12
13

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net assets
EQUITY

Accumulated surplus
Revaluation reserves

Total equity

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

14
14

2018

2017

11,993
4,000
4,575
134
59
20,761

7,640
10,000
3,765
129
198
21,732

153
475,194
966
46,950
252
523,515

144
437,476
816
46,695
267
485,398

544,276

507,130

10,626
612
1,383
4,970
17,591

11,069
596
1,429
4,780
17,874

5,954
277
6,231

6,790
251
7,041

23,822

24,915

520,454

482,215

265,303
255,151

261,534
220,681

520,454

482,215
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Mosman Council
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2018

2018
$ ’000

2018
Notes

Opening balance

Total comprehensive income (c&d)
Equity – balance at end of the reporting period

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Total
equity

2017
Accumulated
surplus

IPP&E
revaluation
reserve

Total
equity

261,534

220,681

482,215

254,006

220,349

474,355

3,774

–

3,774

7,528

–

7,528

9

–

34,470

34,470

–

332

332

16a

(5)

–

–

Net operating result for the year
Other comprehensive income
– Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E
– Joint ventures and associates
Other comprehensive income

Accumulated
surplus

IPP&E
revaluation
reserve

(5)

–

(5)

–

34,470

34,465

–

332

332

3,769

34,470

38,239

7,528

332

7,860

265,303

255,151

520,454

261,534

220,681

482,215
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Mosman Council
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2018
Original
unaudited
budget
2018

Actual
2018

Actual
2017

Rates and annual charges
User charges and fees
Investment and interest revenue received
Grants and contributions
Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received
Other

26,437
10,885
489
5,292
2,161
7,936

25,717
11,767
466
5,490
3,298
7,586

Employee benefits and on-costs
Materials and contracts
Borrowing costs
Bonds, deposits and retention amounts refunded
Other

(17,614)
(17,034)
(391)
(2,330)
(6,788)

(16,549)
(15,917)
(413)
(2,340)
(7,810)

9,043

11,295

36,000
26

24,000
117

Purchase of investment securities
Purchase of investment property
Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

(30,000)
(66)
(9,768)

(32,000)
(12)
(9,139)

Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities

(3,808)

(17,034)

$ ’000

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

26,165
10,786
476
4,365
–
5,005
(17,907)
(14,378)
(408)
–
(6,169)

7,935

Receipts:

Payments:

Net cash provided (or used in) operating activities

15b

Cash flows from investing activities

2,000
–
–
–
(10,462)

(8,462)

Receipts:

Sale of investment securities
Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Payments:

Cash flows from financing activities

400
(1,425)

Receipts:

400

Proceeds from borrowings and advances

Payments:

Repayment of borrowings and advances

(1,025)

Net cash flow provided (used in) financing activities

(1,552)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

12,930

Plus:

11,378

2,400

(1,282)

(1,746)

(882)

654

4,353

(5,085)

cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year

15a

7,640

12,725

Cash and cash equivalents – end of the year

15a

11,993

7,640

6b

4,000

10,000

15,993

17,640

Additional Information:
plus:

Investments on hand – end of year

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

page 8

Financial Statements 2018

Mosman Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Contents of the notes accompanying the financial statements
Note

Details

1
2(a)
2(b)
3
4
5
6(a)
6(b)
6(c)
7
8
9
10
11
12
13

Basis of preparation
Council functions/activities – financial information
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Note 1. Basis of preparation
These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 02/10/2018.
Council has the power to amend and reissue these financial statements.
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards and Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and Regulations,
and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting. Council is a not-for-profit
entity for the purpose of preparing these financial statements.
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.
Full dollars have been used in Note 22 Related party disclosures in relation to the disclosure of specific related
party transactions.
Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts disclosed in the financial statements are actual amounts.
Specific budgetary amounts have been included for comparative analysis (to actuals) in the following reports
and notes:




Income statement
Statement of cash flows
Note 20 – Material budget variations

and are clearly marked.
(a) New and amended standards adopted by Council
There have been no new (or amended) accounting standards adopted by Council in this year’s financial
statements which have had any material impact on reported financial position, performance or cash flows.
(b) Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities and certain classes of infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment and investment property.
(c) Significant accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Council makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
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Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
include:
(i) estimated fair values of investment properties –refer Note 10,
(ii) estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment – refer Note 9,
(iii) estimated tip remediation provisions – refer Note 13,
(iv) employee benefit provisions – refer Note 13.
Significant judgements in applying the Council's accounting policies
(v) Impairment of receivables
Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of a number of its receivables in Note 7.

Monies and other assets received by Council
(a) The Consolidated Fund
In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money and
other assets received by Council is held in the Council’s Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in
the Council’s Trust Fund.
(b) The Trust Fund
In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended), a
separate and distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and other assets received by the
Council in trust which must be applied only for the purposes of, or in accordance with the trusts relating to
those monies. Trust monies and other assets subject to Council’s control have been included in these reports.
A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the Council office by any
person free of charge.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of
GST recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the
Statement of Financial Position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which that are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority are presented as
operating cash flows.
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Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)
New accounting standards and interpretations issued not yet effective
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the
current reporting period and which have not been applied.
As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, Council does not consider that any of those
standards are likely to have a material impact on the Council's future financial statements, financial position,
financial performance or cash flows.
Council has not elected to apply any pronouncements before their operative date in these financial
statements.
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Note 2(a). Council functions/activities – financial information
$ ’000

Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions/activities.
Details of these functions/activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Functions/activities

Expenses from
continuing operations

Grants included in

Operating result from
income from continuing
continuing operations
operations

2018

2017

2018

2017

2018

2017

–

–

2,100

2,015

(2,100)

2,024

1,936

3,143

2,934

Library and information

165

162

2,230

Arts and culture

656

617

3,517

Total assets held
(current and noncurrent)

2018

2017

2018

2017

(2,015)

–

–

1,635

1,817

(1,119)

(998)

1,037

955

5,413

5,505

2,116

(2,065)

(1,954)

269

83

865

7,234

1,678

1,594

(1,022)

(977)

133

304

5,448

5,349

3,337

8,037

7,706

(4,520)

(4,369)

1,756

1,444

206,942

185,946

6,851

9,251

9,135

7,672

(2,284)

1,579

–

–

239,521

217,909

Healthy environment

6,801

6,772

4,884

5,013

1,917

1,759

56

27

1,384

746

Transport and traffic

7,310

7,523

2,843

3,084

4,467

4,439

–

–

60,828

58,925

105

–

2,549

2,191

(2,444)

(2,191)

687

985

9

11

Corporate and risk

21,968

22,091

9,024

9,836

12,944

12,255

82

98

22,231

23,688

Total functions and activities

49,397

51,689

45,623

44,161

3,774

7,528

4,020

3,896

544,276

507,130

Governance
Community wellbeing

Built environment
Community spaces

1

Leadership and engagement

1

Income from
continuing operations

2017 income includes Fair Value increment to Investment Properties $1,720k and increment to Community Land of $1,223k
2018 expenditure includes Infrastructure disposals $700k
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Note 2(b). Council functions/activities – component descriptions
Details relating to the Council’s functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:
Governance
Includes costs relating to Council’s role as a component of democratic government, including elections,
members’ fees and expenses, subscriptions to local authority associations, meetings of Council and policymaking committees, public disclosure (e.g. GIPA), and legislative compliance.
Community wellbeing
Community Connection and Volunteering, Children/Family, Youth, Older People, People with a disability, Healthy
Lifestyle and Fitness, Aboriginal Culture, Heritage and Reconciliation and Culturally and Linguistically Diverse
People.
Library and information
Library Resources, Library Services, Information Technology, Building Education, Local Studies, Website.
Arts and culture
Cultural Development, Gallery, Community Arts and Crafts, Civic Events, Friendship Agreements.
Built environment
Development Assessment and Regulation. Zoning Framework, Planning Policy Development, Heritage
Planning, Housing Strategy. Roads. Stormwater Drainage.
Community spaces1
Parks, Gardens, Playgrounds and Civic Spaces, Recreational Facilities, Beaches, Sea Pools and Foreshores.
Council Owned Buildings and Facilities.
Healthy environment
Atmospheric
Environment,
Biodiversity,
Trees,
Land
and
Coastal
Management,
Noise,
Environmental/Sustainability Education, Environmental Health, Waste Management and Cleaning and
Environmental Services.
Transport and traffic
Facilities, Traffic Management, Pedestrians, Bicycles, Public Transport.
Leadership and engagement
Council Secretariat and Civic Involvement, Governance and Communication.
Corporate and risk
Finance and Corporate Assets, Information and Communication Systems, Insurance and Risk Management,
Human Resources, Strategic Asset and Property Management.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations
$ ’000

2018

2017

17,627
1,812
19,439

17,247
1,724
18,971

6,697
238
30
6,965

6,560
237
29
6,826

26,404

25,797

(a) Rates and annual charges
Ordinary rates
Residential
Business
Total ordinary rates
Annual charges (pursuant to s.496, s.496A, s.496B, s.501 & s.611)
Domestic waste management services
Stormwater management services
Section 611 charges
Total annual charges

TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES

Council has used 2016 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Accounting policy for rates and annual charges
Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions (including developer contributions) are recognised as revenue
when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these receipts. Developer contributions may only
be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but the Council may apply contributions
according to the priorities established in work schedules.
Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating
year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates.

(b) User charges and fees
Specific user charges (per s.502 – specific ‘actual use’ charges)
Domestic waste management services
Total specific user charges

2018

2017

88
88

92
92

918
169
130
54
1,271

847
169
146
96
1,258

Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges – statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)

Planning and building regulation
Regulatory fees
Section 149 certificates (EPA Act)
Section 603 certificates
Total fees and charges – statutory/regulatory
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations

(continued)

$ ’000

2018

2017

63
41
9
37
158
49
7
269
39
101
1,948
7
110
81
76
32
273
392
385
1,545
291
2,323
68
82
362
15
132
13
11
137
31
282
180
9,549

57
42
10
31
172
58
8
158
31
94
1,677
7
107
73
80
35
268
395
368
1,483
289
2,386
62
88
619
61
167
12
31
221
41
397
197
9,725

10,908

11,075

(b) User charges and fees (continued)
(ii) Fees and charges – other (incl. general user charges (per s.608))

Aged and disability services
Art prize fees
Children’s leisure and learning
Community restaurant
Cultural centre
Dinghy storage racks
Filming permits
Footpath occupation
Hoarding fees
Kidzone – vacation
Lease rentals (property)
Leaseback fees – Council vehicles
Market days (stall holders)
Meals on wheels
Merchant fee recovery
Mini skips
Mosman occasional child care
Out of school care
Oval rents
Parking fees – foreshore
Parking fees – foreshore (stickers)
Parking fees – on street
Parking fees – resident parking scheme permits
Reserve rents
Restoration charges
Section 153 land leases
Stand plant permits
Trading rights – foreshore
Vacation care
Vehicular crossing
Vehicular crossing – inspection fees
Work zone fees
Other
Total fees and charges – other

TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES

Accounting policy for user charges and fees
User charges and fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations

(continued)

$ ’000

2018

2017

58
450

55
465

(c) Interest and investment revenue (including losses)
Interest
– Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates)
– Cash and investments

TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT REVENUE

508

520

Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
Overdue rates and annual charges (general fund)
General Council cash and investments

58
329

55
324

Restricted investments/funds – external:
Development contributions
– Section 7.11
Total interest and investment revenue recognised

121
508

141
520

Interest revenue is attributable to:

Accounting policy for interest and investment revenue
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is earned.

(d) Other revenues
Rental income – investment property
Fines
Art gallery sponsorhip and donations
Commissions and agency fees
FESL implementation
Insurance claim recoveries
Legal recoupment
Workers compensation insurance incentives

10

SHOROC Distribution

Other

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

1,861
2,912
36
20
2
22
44
191
100
82

5,270

1,875
3,178
18
21
82
–
16
72
–
92

5,354

Accounting policy for other revenue
Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Council and specific criteria have been met for each of the Council’s activities
as described below. Council bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
Parking fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, or when the penalty has
been applied, whichever occurs first.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Miscellaneous sales are recognised when physical possession has transferred to the customer which is
deemed to be the point of transfer of risks and rewards.
Other income is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is
received, whichever occurs first.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations
$ ’000

(continued)

2018
Operating

2017
Operating

2018
Capital

2017
Capital

634
235

925
345

–
–

–
–

48
917

60
1,330

–
–

–
–

27
609
428
5
29
–
–
–
57
27
82
142
103
205
6
1,720
2,637

27
540
415
–
104
10
–
8
56
27
98
85
101
377
1
1,849
3,179

–
–
–
–
–
–
20
–
–
185
–
–
–
–
1,178
1,383
1,383

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
179
–
–
538
717
717

996
1,641
2,637

1,882
1,297
3,179

–
1,383
1,383

–
717
717

(e) Grants
General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance – general component 1
Financial assistance – local roads component 1
Other
Pensioners’ rates subsidies – general component
Total general purpose
Specific purpose
Pensioners’ rates subsidies:
– Domestic waste management
Aged care
Child care
Economic development
Environmental protection
Excess weight subsidy
Heritage and cultural
Housing and community amenities
Library – per capita
Library – special projects
LIRS subsidy
Recreation and culture
Street lighting
Transport (roads to recovery)
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) 2
Total specific purpose

Total grants

Grant revenue is attributable to:

– Commonwealth funding
– State funding

1. Financial Assistance Grants have been paid 2 Quarters in advance commencing FY17. The FY17 figure includes six quarters,
compared to four in FY18
2. Capital Grant includes BLINE Grant FY17 $500k FY18 $1,020k
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations

(continued)

2018
Operating

2017
Operating

2018
Capital

2017
Capital

466
–
466

468
–
468

–
1,093
1,093

–
1,375
1,375

466

468

1,093

1,375

Other contributions:
Cash contributions
Recreation and culture
Roads and bridges
RMS contributions (regional roads, block grant)
Other (youth programs)
Total other contributions – cash

–
–
175
–
175

–
–
152
5
157

18
132
–
–
150

40
–
–
–
40

Non-cash contributions
Recreation and culture
Total other contributions

–
175

–
157

59
209

64
104

$ ’000

Notes

(f) Contributions
Developer contributions:
(s7.4 & s7.11 – EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):

Cash contributions
S 7.4 – contributions using planning agreements
S 7.12 – fixed development consent levies
Total developer contributions – cash
Total developer contributions

24

Total contributions

TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

641

625

1,302

1,479

3,278

3,804

2,685

2,196

Accounting policy for contributions
Control over grants and contributions is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) and is valued at the
fair value of the granted or contributed asset at the date of transfer.
Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition that
they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period and those conditions were
un-discharged at reporting date, the unused grant or contribution is disclosed above.
A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite service
has not been provided at reporting date.
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Note 3. Income from continuing operations

(continued)

$ ’000

2018

2017

Operating grants
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period

–

81

Less: operating grants recognised in a previous reporting period now spent

–

(81)

Unexpended and held as restricted assets (operating grants)

–

–

679

–

–

29

1,411

650

(g) Unspent grants and contributions
Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition
that they be spent in a specified manner:

Capital grants
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period
Add: capital grants recognised in the current period but not yet spent
Add: capital grants received for the provision of goods and services in a future
period
Less: capital grants recognised in a previous reporting period now spent

(386)

–

1,704

679

Contributions
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period

5,782

4,345

Add: contributions recognised in the current period but not yet spent

1,680

2,331

Unexpended and held as restricted assets (capital grants)

Less: contributions recognised in a previous reporting period now spent

(3,808)

Unexpended and held as restricted assets (contributions)

3,654

(894)

5,782
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations
$ ’000

2018

2017

13,419
350
1,977
1,252
315
226
71
162
12

12,659
315
1,736
1,193
327
216
116
133
11

(a) Employee benefits and on-costs
Salaries and wages
Travel expenses
Employee leave entitlements (ELE)
Superannuation – defined contribution plans
Superannuation – defined benefit plans
Workers’ compensation insurance
Fringe benefit tax (FBT)
Training costs (other than salaries and wages)
Other

TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED

Number of ‘full-time equivalent’ employees (FTE) at year end
Number of ‘full-time equivalent’ employees (FTE) at year end (incl. vacancies)

17,784

16,706

164
175

167
175

Accounting policy for employee benefits and on-costs
Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.
Retirement benefit obligations
All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to
various defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.
Superannuation plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.
Council participates in an employer-sponsored defined benefit superannuation scheme, and makes contributions
as determined by the superannuation scheme’s trustees.
Member councils bear responsibility of ensuring there are sufficient funds available to pay out the required
benefits as they fall due.
The schemes most recent full actuarial review indicated that the net assets of the scheme were not sufficient to
meet the accrued benefits of the schemes defined benefit member category with member councils required to
make significantly higher contributions in future years.
The Local Government Superannuation Scheme however is unable to provide Council with an accurate estimate
of its share of the net deficit and accordingly Council has not recorded any net liability from its defined benefit
scheme obligations in accordance with AASB 119.
Future contributions made to the defined benefit scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be recognised as
an expense when they become payable – similar to the accounting for defined contributions plans.
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations

(continued)

Superannuation plans (continued)
Member councils are treated as Pooled Employers for the purposes of AASB119. Pooled Employers are
required to pay standard employer contributions and additional lump sum contributions to the Fund.
The standard employer contributions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a
contribution rate sufficient to fund the total benefits over the working life-time of a typical new entrant is
calculated. The current standard employer contribution rates are:
Division B
Division C
Division D

1.9 times employee contributions
2.5% salaries
1.64 times employee contributions

The additional lump sum contribution for each Pooled Employer is a share of the total additional contributions
of $40.0 million per annum from 1 July 2017 for 4 years to 30 June 2021, apportioned according to each
employer's share of the accrued liabilities as at 30 June 2017. These additional lump sum contributions are
used to fund the deficit of assets to accrued liabilities as 30 June 2017.
The adequacy of contributions is assessed at each triennial actuarial investigation and monitored annually
between triennials.
As stated above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and
former employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses.
However, there is no relief under the Fund's trust deed for employers to walk away from their defined benefit
obligations. Under limited circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active
members, on full payment of outstanding additional contributions. There is no provision for allocation of
any surplus which may be present at the date of withdrawal of the entity.
There are no specific provisions under the Fund's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on wind-up.
There is no provision for the allocation of any surplus which may be present at the date of withdrawal of an
employer.
The plan is a defined benefit plan. However, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuarial risks
associated with current and former employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the
associated gains and losses (to the extent that they are not borne by members). As such, there is not
sufficient reliable information to allow each sponsoring employer to account for its proportionate share of the
defined benefit obligation, sub-group assets and costs associated with the sub-group in the same way as it
would for a single employer sponsored defined benefit plan.
The amount of employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Fund and recognised as an
expense for the year ending 30 June 2018 was $300,780.19. The last valuation of the Fund was by the
Actuary, Mr Richard Boyfield, FIAA on 12 December, relating to the period ended 30 June 2017.
The expected contributions to the Fund for the next annual reporting period are $276,500.24.
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations

(continued)

Superannuation plans (continued)
The estimated employer reserves financial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2018 is:
Employer reserves only*
$millions
Asset Coverage
Assets
1,817.8
Past Service Liabilities
1,787.5
101.7%
Vested Benefits
1,778.0
102.2%
* excluding member accounts and reserves in both assets and liabilities.

The key economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:
Investment return
6.0% per annum
Salary inflation*
3.5% per annum
Increase in CPI
2.5% per annum
* Plus promotional increases

The contribution requirements may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experience is not
in line with the actuarial assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the
funding program would be the same for all sponsoring employers in the Pooled Employers group. Please
note that the estimated employer reserves financial position above is a preliminary calculation, and once
all the relevant information has been received by the Funds Actuary, the 2018 triennial review will be
completed around December 2018.
Council's additional lump sum contribution is around 0.31% of the total additional lump sum contributions
for all Pooled Employers (of $40m each year from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2021) provides an indication of the
level of participation of Council compared with other employers in the Pooled Employer sub-group.

(b) Borrowing costs
Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on loans
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed

TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED

2018

2017

402
402

414
414

402

414

Accounting policy for borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed.
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations

(continued)

$ ’000

2018

2017

103
–
127
235
366
151
69
29
158
234
47
1
2,327
77
213
221
1,848
80
679
1,503
169
511
3,672
23
86
56
350

95
–
170
318
410
139
65
23
177
187
44
21
2,476
80
188
194
1,763
86
808
1,066
153
631
3,624
31
113
50
409

257
55
168

247
475
191

159
159

179
106

(c) Materials and contracts
Raw materials and consumables
Contractor and consultancy costs
– Aged services
– Art Gallery and Community Centre
– Bushcare
– Childrens Services
– Cleansing
– Companion Animal Control
– Communications and Events
– Development assessment and urban planning
– Finance Contractors
– HR Contractors
– Infrastructure
– Internal audit
– Library
– Mosman Rider
– Parks, gardens and civic spaces
– Plant running
– Recreational facilities
– Structures
– Swim Centre Management
– Temp Staff and Agency Casuals
– Waste management
– Youth Services
– Other contractor and consultancy costs
Auditors remuneration (2)
Infringement notice contract costs (SEINS)
Legal expenses:
– Legal expenses: planning and development
– Legal expenses: Save Mosman campaign
– Legal expenses: other
Operating leases:
– Operating lease rentals: minimum lease payments
Printing

(1)

TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS

14,133

14,519

159
159

179
179

Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
not transferred to Council as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
1. Operating lease payments are attributable to:

Computers
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations

(continued)

$ ’000

2018

2017

55
55
55

50
50
50

1
1
1

–
–
–

56

50

186
70
17
8

204
103
29
8

592
668
2,342
246
413
754

530
281
2,479
266
388
965

236
4
16

255
4
16

(c) Materials and contracts (continued)
2. Auditor remuneration
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the
auditor of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms
Auditors of the Council – NSW Auditor-General:
(i) Audit and other assurance services

Audit and review of financial statements
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services
Total Auditor-General remuneration
Non NSW Auditor-General audit firms:

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Other audit and assurance services (enter details...)
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services
Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms
Total Auditor remuneration

(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Depreciation and amortisation
Plant and equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Land improvements (depreciable)
Infrastructure:
– Buildings – non-specialised
– Buildings – specialised
– Roads
– Footpaths
– Stormwater drainage
– Other open space/recreational assets
Other assets:
– Library books
– Other
Intangible assets

Total depreciation and amortisation costs

11

5,552

5,528

Buildings Specialised contains accelerated depreciation for Allan Border Pavilion $342k vacated end FY18/19 pending demolition
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations

(continued)

$ ’000

2018

2017

(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (continued)
Impairment / revaluation decrement of IPP&E
Infrastructure
Total IPP&E impairment / revaluation decrement costs / (reversals)

TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT /
REVALUATION DECREMENT COSTS EXPENSED

–
–

5,552

(1,223)
(1,223)

4,305

Accounting policy for depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are included in Note 9 for IPPE assets and
Note 11 for intangible assets.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the
class of asset, with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.
Impairment of financial assets
Council assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations
$ ’000

(continued)

Notes

2018

2017

217
–
147
148
104
1,071
–
210
36
921
224
39
139
11
248
533
15
806
137
52
98
120
118
95
550
187
285

182
13
482
170
79
1,136
–
206
34
939
219
41
132
21
136
296
14
765
102
55
87
151
89
85
681
156
218

(e) Other expenses
Advertising
Bad and doubtful debts
Bad and doubtful debts parking fines
Bank charges
Catering
Computer software charges
Contributions/levies to other levels of government
– Department of planning levy
– Local Government NSW
– NSW fire brigade levy
– Waste levy
Councillor expenses – mayoral fee
Councillor expenses – councillors’ fees
Councillors’ expenses (incl. mayor) – other (excluding fees above)
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356)
Electricity and heating
Equipment maintenance
Insurance
Leases – photocopiers
Leases – property
Postage
Street lighting
Subscriptions and publications
Telephone and communications
Waste disposal and recycling centre
Water
Other

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

6,511

6,489

Accounting policy for other expenses
Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.
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Note 5. Gains or losses from the disposal of assets
$ ’000

2018

2017

–
–

77
77

26
(32)
(6)

40
(37)
3

(1,235)
(1,235)

(503)
(503)

Proceeds from disposal/redemptions/maturities – financial assets
Less: carrying amount of financial assets sold/redeemed/matured
Net gain/(loss) on disposal

36,000
(36,000)
–

24,000
(24,000)
–

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

(1,241)

(423)

Notes

Property (excl. investment property)

9

Plant and equipment

9

Infrastructure

9

Financial assets (1)

6

Proceeds from disposal – property
Net gain/(loss) on disposal

Proceeds from disposal – plant and equipment
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/written off
Net gain/(loss) on disposal

Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off
Net gain/(loss) on disposal

Accounting policy for disposal of assets
The gain or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has
irrevocably passed to the buyer and the asset is derecognised.

Note 6(a). Cash and cash equivalent assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and at bank
Cash-equivalent assets
– Deposits at call
– Short-term deposits
Total cash and cash equivalents

993

940

2,000
9,000
11,993

700
6,000
7,640

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents
For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand; deposits
held at call with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value; and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
on the Statement of Financial Position.
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Note 6(b). Investments
$ ’000

Investments

‘Held to maturity’

Total investments
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Held to maturity investments
Long term deposits
Total

2018
Current

2018
Non-current

2017
Current

2017
Non-current

4,000
4,000

–
–

10,000
10,000

–
–

15,993

–

17,640

–

4,000
4,000

–
–

10,000
10,000

–
–

Accounting policy for investments
Classification
Council classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity,
re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.
Held to maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that Council’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Assets in this
category are measured at amortised cost.
Recognition and de-recognition
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date: the date on which Council
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and Council has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.
Impairment of available for sale investments
In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.
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Note 6(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments – details
$ ’000

Total cash, cash equivalents
and investments
attributable to:

External restrictions (refer below)
Internal restrictions (refer below)
Unrestricted

2018
Current

2018
Non-current

2017
Current

2017
Non-current

15,993

–

17,640

–

5,935
8,936
1,122
15,993

–
–
–
–

7,072
9,085
1,483
17,640

–
–
–
–

2018

2017

External restrictions – other
Developer contributions – general
Specific purpose unexpended grants
Domestic waste management
External restrictions – other
Total external restrictions

3,654
684
1,597
5,935
5,935

5,368
179
1,525
7,072
7,072

Internal restrictions
Plant and vehicle replacement
Employees leave entitlement
Deposits, retentions and bonds
Spit east erosion works
Swim centre
Balmoral promenade works
Capital works reserve
Other (Balmoral Shade Structure)
Total internal restrictions

90
1,049
3,200
350
722
950
2,500
75
8,936

–
1,010
5,000
350
745
480
1,500
–
9,085

14,871

16,157

$ ’000

Notes

Details of restrictions

TOTAL RESTRICTIONS
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Note 7. Receivables
$ ’000

Notes

Purpose
Rates and annual charges
Interest and extra charges
User charges and fees
Accrued revenues
– Interest on investments
– Other income accruals
Government grants and subsidies
Loans to non-profit organisations
Net GST receivable
Total
Less: provision for impairment

User charges and fees
Other debtors
Total provision for impairment – receivables

TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES
Externally restricted receivables
Domestic waste management
Other
– Other restricted receivables (VPA Debtor)
– Other restricted receivables (BLine Funding)

Total external restrictions
Unrestricted receivables
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES
Movement in provision for impairment of receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year
+ new provisions recognised during the year
– amounts already provided for and written off this year
– amounts provided for but recovered during the year
Balance at the end of the year

2018
Current
Non-current

2017
Current
Non-current

471
59
1,999

144
–
–

504
37
1,277

144
–
–

74
764
1,266
–
336
4,969

–
–
–
9
–
153

77
1,249
566
–
458
4,168

–
–
–
–
–
144

(108)
(286)
(394)

–
–
–

(148)
(255)
(403)

–
–
–

4,575

153

3,765

144

155

–

152

–

–
1,020
1,175
3,400

–
–
–
153

414
500
1,066
2,699

–
–
–
144

4,575

153

3,765

144

2018

2017

403
28
(37)
–
394

344
68
(10)
1
403

Accounting policy for receivables
Recognition and measurement
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than
12 months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are
included in other receivables (Note 8) and receivables (Note 7) in the Statement of Financial Position.
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within
30 days.
Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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Note 7. Receivables

(continued)
2018

2017

Impairment
For loans and receivables the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an on-going basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account (provision for impairment of
receivables) is used when there is objective evidence that Council will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators
that the receivable is impaired. When a receivable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised
becomes uncollectable in a subsequent period it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in the Income statement.

Note 8. Inventories and other assets
$ ’000

Notes

2018
Current
Non-current

2017
Current
Non-current

(a) Inventories
Inventories at cost
Stores and materials
Trading stock
Total inventories at cost

TOTAL INVENTORIES

95
39
134

–
–
–

91
38
129

–
–
–

134

–

129

–

(b) Other assets
Prepayments

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS

59

59

–

–

198

198

–

–

Externally restricted assets
There are no restrictions applicable to the above assets.

page 32

Financial Statements 2018

Mosman Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 8. Inventories and other assets (continued)
2018

2017

Accounting policy
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on basis of weighted average costs. Costs
of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Inventory held for distribution
Inventory held for distribution is held at cost, adjusted where applicable for any loss of service potential.
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Note 9. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Asset class

$ ’000
Capital work in progress
Plant and equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Art collection

Asset movements during the reporting period

as at 30/6/2017
Gross
carrying
amount

Accumulated
depreciation
and impairment

Net
carrying
amount

Additions
renewals

Additions
new assets

Carrying
value
of disposals

(16)
(31)
–
–
–

993
2,135
1,030
354
5,311

–
1,183
888
272
–

993
952
142
82
5,311

1,782
146
23
17
–

33
33
–
–
109

113,024
62,214
772

–
–
116

113,024
62,214
656

–
–
48

–
–
–

45,934
21,824
214,182
18,441
65,860
47,194

18,174
7,452
96,673
5,102
15,510
17,250

27,760
14,372
117,509
13,339
50,350
29,944

147
450
1,436
1,160
504
2,646

–
–
81
179
–
1,005

23
2,598
60

10
1,826
17

13
772
43

–
252
–

–
–
–

601,949

164,473

437,476

8,611

1,440

Depreciation
expense

–
(186)
(70)
(17)
–

WIP
transfers

(522)
–
–
–
–

as at 30/6/2018

Adjustments
and transfers

Revaluation Revaluation
decrements increments
to equity
to equity
(ARR)
(ARR)

Gross
carrying
amount

Accumulated
depreciation
and impairment

Net
carrying
amount

–
(164)
(6)
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

2,270
1,385
89
337
5,420

–
635
–
255
–

2,270
750
89
82
5,420

–
–
–

39,408
–
–

152,156
62,490
820

–
–
124

152,156
62,490
696

4,294
1,650
–
364
–
–

53,500
24,781
190,984
20,577
66,136
50,822

22,369
8,844
85,374
5,927
15,763
18,122

31,131
15,937
105,610
14,650
50,373
32,700

–
–
–

13
1,913
49

–
1,125
10

13
788
39

45,716

633,742

158,548

475,194

Land:

– Operational land
– Community land
Land improvements – depreciable

–
–
–

–
–
(8)

–
–
–

(276)
276
–

(592)
(668)
(2,342)
(246)
(413)
(754)

31
–
80
–
–
411

–
156
164
–
–
(150)

–
(236)
(4)

–
–
–

–
–
–

(5,536)

–

–

Infrastructure:

–
–
–
–
–
–

Buildings – non-specialised
Buildings – specialised
Roads
Footpaths
Stormwater drainage
Other open space/recreational assets

(509)
(23)
(293)
(146)
(68)
(181)

–
–
(11,025)
–
–
(221)

Other assets:

– Heritage collections
– Library books
– Other

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE,
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIP.

–
–
–
(1,267)

–
–
–
(11,246)

Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).
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Note 9. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

(continued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the carrying amount of assets is assessed at each reporting date to confirm
that it is not materially different from current fair value.
Water and sewerage network assets are indexed at each reporting period in accordance with the Rates
Reference Manual issued by Crown Lands and Water (CLAW).
Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the asset revaluation reserve. To the
extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the
increase is first recognised as profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same
class are first charged against revaluation reserves directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve
attributable to the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income Statement.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Plant and equipment
Office equipment
Office furniture
Computer equipment
Vehicles
Heavy plant/road making equipment
Other plant and equipment

Years
5 to 10
10 to 20
4
5 to 8
5 to 8
5 to 15

Water and sewer assets
Dams and reservoirs
Bores
Reticulation pipes: PVC
Reticulation pipes: other
Pumps and telemetry

80 to 100
20 to 40
70 to 80
25 to 75
15 to 20

Transportation assets
Sealed roads: surface
Sealed roads: structure
Unsealed roads
Bridge: concrete
Bridge: other
Road pavements
Kerb, gutter and footpaths

20
50
20
100
50
60
40

Other equipment
Playground equipment
Benches, seats etc.

Years
5 to 15
10 to 20

Buildings
Buildings: masonry
Buildings: other

50 to 100
20 to 40

Stormwater assets
Drains
Culverts
Flood control structures

80 to 100
50 to 80
80 to 100

Other infrastructure assets
Bulk earthworks
Swimming pools
Unsealed roads
Other open space/recreational assets
Other infrastructure

20
50
20
20
20

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the Income statement.
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Note 9. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

(continued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)
Land under roads
Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and
median strips.
Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with
AASB 1051 Land Under Roads.
and Equipment.
Crown reserves
Crown Reserves under Council’s care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of
the reserves remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for
their maintenance and use in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.
Improvements on Crown Reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council
and revenues relating to the reserves are recognised within Council’s Income Statement.

Note 10. Investment property
$ ’000

2018

2017

46,950

46,695

46,695
66
189
46,950

44,963
12
1,720
46,695

(a) Investment property at fair value
Investment property on hand
Reconciliation of annual movement:
Opening balance

– Capitalised expenditure – this year
– Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments
CLOSING BALANCE – INVESTMENT PROPERTY

(b) Valuation basis
The basis of valuation of investment property is fair value, being the amounts for which the properties could
be exchanged between willing parties in arms length transaction, based on current prices in an active market
for similar properties in the same location and condition and subject to similar leases.
The 2018 revaluations were based on independent assessments made by:
Scott Fullarton Valuations Pty Ltd Registered Valuer No. 2144
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Note 10. Investment property

(continued)

$ ’000

2018

2017

(c) Contractual obligations at reporting date
Refer to Note 17 for disclosures relating to any capital and service obligations that have been contracted.

(d) Leasing arrangements – Council as lessor
The investment property are leased to tenants under long-term operating
leases with rentals payable monthly.
Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable
investment property operating leases not recognised in the
financial statements are receivable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year but less than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total minimum lease payments receivable

1,908
3,222
390
5,520

1,846
4,412
414
6,672

Council links leases to market reviews and the Sydney All Groups CPI. Leases of retail premises have
historically been granted on a three plus three year basis while the restaurant premises are a longer term of
between 10 and 21 years, although there are exceptions due to extenuating circumstances.
The short term leases provide for rent reviews by CPI annually and to market in the first year of the term of the
lease or term pursuant to exercise of an option (that is every three years). The longer term leases for the
restaurants provide for market and CPI reviews every year on an alternate basis.

(e) Investment property income and expenditure – summary
Rental income from investment property:

– Minimum lease payments

Direct operating expenses on investment property:

– that generated rental income
Net revenue contribution from investment property

1,861

1,875

(23)
1,838

(220)
1,655

189
2,027

1,720
3,375

plus:

Fair value movement for year

Total income attributable to investment property

Accounting policy for investment property
Investment property is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by the Council. Changes in fair values ar
recorded in the income statement as part of other income.
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Note 11. Intangible assets
$ ’000

2018

2017

392
(125)
267

392
(110)
282

(15)

(15)

392
(140)

392
(125)

1

252

267

– rights to participate in Kimbriki Environmental Enterprises Pty Ltd

251
252

267
267

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance.

Intangible assets are as follows:
Opening values:
Gross book value (1/7)
Accumulated amortisation (1/7)
Net book value – opening balance
Movements for the year
– Amortisation charges
Closing values:
Gross book value (30/6)
Accumulated amortisation (30/6)

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS – NET BOOK VALUE
1.

The net book value of intangible assets represent:

Accounting policy for intangible assets
Council's interest in access to Kimbriki waste and recycling is recognised as an intangible asset and will be
amortised over time.
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Note 12. Payables and borrowings
2018
Current
Non-current

$ ’000

Payables

1,075
1,540

–
–

1,637
1,315

–
–

48
56
49
7,858
10,626

–
–
–
–
–

37
53
–
8,027
11,069

–
–
–
–
–

612
612

–
–

596
596

–
–

1,383
1,383

5,954
5,954

1,429
1,429

6,790
6,790

12,621

5,954

13,094

6,790

Goods and services – operating expenditure
Goods and services – capital expenditure
Accrued expenses:
– Borrowings
– Salaries and wages
– Other expenditure accruals
Security bonds, deposits and retentions
Total payables

Income received in advance

Payments received in advance
Total income received in advance

Borrowings

Loans – secured 1
Total borrowings

TOTAL PAYABLES AND BORROWINGS

2017
Current
Non-current

(a) Payables and borrowings relating to restricted assets
2018
Current
Non-current
Externally restricted assets

288
277

–
–

256
187

–
–

565

–

443

–

565

–

443

–

12,056

5,954

12,651

6,790

12,621

5,954

13,094

6,790

Domestic waste management
Current borrowings funded by S94
Payables and borrowings relating to
externally restricted assets
Total payables and borrowings relating
to restricted assets
Total payables and borrowings relating
to unrestricted assets

TOTAL PAYABLES AND BORROWINGS
1.

2017
Current
Non-current

Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council
Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note 19.
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Note 12. Payables and borrowings

(continued)

$ ’000

2018

2017

6,330
6,330

6,271
6,271

(b) Current payables and borrowings not anticipated to be settled within the
next twelve months
The following payables and borrowings, even though classified as current, are not
expected to be settled in the next 12 months.
Payables – security bonds, deposits and retentions

(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2017

Class of
borrowings

Opening
balance
as at 1/7/17

Loans – secured

TOTAL

8,219
8,219

Non-cash changes
Cash flows

Acquisition

(882)
(882)

–
–

Fair value
changes

2018
Other
non-cash
movements

–
–

7,337
7,337

2018

2017

–
–

$ ’000

Closing
balance
as at 30/6/18

(d) Financing arrangements
(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the
following lines of credit:
Bank overdraft facilities (1)
Credit cards/purchase cards
Total financing arrangements

90
55
145

90
55
145

Undrawn facilities as at balance date:
– Bank overdraft facilities
– Credit cards/purchase cards
Total undrawn financing arrangements

90
55
145

90
55
145

1. The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.
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Note 12. Payables and borrowings

(continued)

Accounting policy for payables and borrowings
Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Council prior to the end of financial
year that are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in other income or finance cost.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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Note 13. Provisions
$ ’000

2018
Current
Non-current

2017
Current
Non-current

Provisions
Employee benefits:

Annual leave
Long service leave

TOTAL PROVISIONS

1,673
3,297
4,970

–
277
277

1,760
3,020
4,780

–
251
251

(a) Provisions relating to restricted assets
2018
Current
Non-current
Externally restricted assets

Domestic waste management
Total provisions relating to restricted
assets
Total provisions relating to unrestricted
assets

TOTAL PROVISIONS

2017
Current
Non-current

155

–

256

–

155

–

256

–

4,815

277

4,524

251

4,970

277

4,780

251

2018

2017

3,249
3,249

3,311
3,311

$ ’000

(b) Current provisions not anticipated to be settled within the
next twelve months
The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not
expected to be settled in the next 12 months.
Provisions – employees benefits
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Note 13. Provisions (continued)
Accounting policy for provisions
Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been
reliably estimated.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
Employee benefits
Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave
expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave
and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All other short-term
employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.
Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liability for long service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and
periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows.
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to occur.
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Note 14. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
Nature and purpose of reserves
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments /
decrements of non-current asset values due to their revaluation.

Note 15. Statement of cash flows – additional information
$ ’000

Notes

2018

2017

11,993
11,993

7,640
7,640

3,774

7,528

5,552
1,241
(59)

5,528
423
(64)

(a) Reconciliation of cash assets
Total cash and cash equivalent assets
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows

6a

(b) Reconciliation of net operating result
to cash provided from operating activities
Net operating result from Income Statement
Adjust for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assets
Non-cash capital grants and contributions
Reversal of prior year IPP&E revaluation decrements / impairment
previously costed direct to the P&L
Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:
– investment property
– Revaluation decrements / impairments of IPP&E direct to P&L
Share of net (profits) or losses of associates/joint ventures

+/- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:

Decrease/(increase) in receivables
Increase/(decrease) in provision for doubtful debts
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in payables
Increase/(decrease) in accrued interest payable
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in employee leave entitlements
Net cash provided from/(used in)
operating activities from the Statement of Cash Flows

–

(1,223)

(189)
–
(155)

(1,720)
–
82

(810)
(9)
(5)
139
(562)
11
52
(153)
216

(406)
59
19
29
(107)
1
53
956
137

9,043

11,295

59
59

64
64

(c) Non-cash investing and financing activities
Other dedications artworks
Total non-cash investing and financing activities
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Note 16. Interests in other entities
$ ’000
Council’s share of net income
2018

Joint ventures
Associates
Total

Council’s share of net assets

2017

2018

2017

(1)

10

23

164

(81)

956

793

155

(82)

966

816

(9)

(a) Joint arrangements
(i) Joint ventures
Council has incorporated the following joint ventures into its consolidated financial statements.
(a) Net carrying amounts – Council’s share
Name of entity

Nature of

Measurement

relationship

method

Joint Venture
Shorelink Library Network
Total carrying amounts – material joint ventures

2018

2017

10
10

Equity

23
23

(b) Details
Place of
Name of entity

Shorelink Library Network

Sharing of Library Infrastructure

(c) Relevant interests and fair values

Quoted

Shorelink Library Network

2018
N/A

North Sydney, NSW

Interest in

fair value

Name of entity

business

Principal activity

outputs

2017

N/A

Interest in

Proportion of

ownership

voting power

2018

2017

2018

2017

2018

2017

17%

10%

23%

17%

25%

20%

(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures
Statement of financial position
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Other current liabilities
Net assets

Shorelink Library Network
2018

2017

141
10

224
7

2

8

111

102

42

137
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Note 16. Interests in other entities

(continued)

$ ’000

(a) Joint arrangements (continued)
(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures (continued)
Shorelink Library Network
2018

2017

137
(55)
(40)
42

139
(2)
–
137

Council’s share of net assets (%)
Council’s share of net assets ($)

22.6%
10

17.1%
23

Statement of comprehensive income
Income
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses
Profit/(loss) for period

577
(3)
(628)
(54)

646
(5)
(647)
(2)

(54)

(2)

17.2%
(9)
(9)

9.8%
(0)
(0)

(42)
(40)

5
(2)

(82)

3

Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Opening net assets (1 July)
Profit/(loss) for the period
Other (distribution to Willoughby Council, former member)
Closing net assets

Total comprehensive income
Share of income – Council (%)
Profit/(loss) – Council ($)
Total comprehensive income – Council ($)
Summarised Statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents
Accounting policy for joint arrangements
The Council has determined that it has only joint ventures

Joint ventures
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in accordance with AASB128
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures . Under this method, the investment is initially recognised as a
cost and the carrying 'amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Council’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the joint venture after the date of acquisition.
If the Council’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Council
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
The Council’s share in the joint venture’s gains or losses arising from transactions between itself and its joint
venture are eliminated.
Adjustments are made to the joint venture’s accounting policies where they are different from those of the
Council for the purpose of the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 16. Interests in other entities

(continued)

$ ’000

(b) Associates
Council has incorporated the following associates into its consolidated financial statements.
(a) Net carrying amounts – Council’s share
Name of entity

Nature of

Measurement

relationship

method

Kimbriki Environmental Enterprises P/L Associate
Total carrying amounts – material associates

2018

2017

956
956

Equity

793
793

(b) Details
Place of
Name of entity

Kimbriki Environmental Enterprises P/L

Waste Management and Disposal

(c) Relevant interests and fair values
Name of entity

Kimbriki Environmental Enterprises P/L

business

Principal activity

Terrey Hills, NSW

Quoted

Interest in

Interest in

Proportion of

fair value

outputs

ownership

voting power

2018
N/A

2017
N/A

2018

2017

2018

2017

2018

2017

4%

4%

4%

4%

50%

25%

(d) Summarised financial information for associates

Statement of financial position
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets

Kimbriki Environmental
Enterprises P/L
2018

2017

2,633
16,631

14,016
4,001

17,726

15,478

5,430

7,528

6,657

5,326

Net assets

24,903

20,641

Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Opening net assets (1 July)
Profit/(loss) for the period
Closing net assets

20,641
4,262
24,903

22,761
(2,120)
20,641

Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Other current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding
trade and other payables and provisions)

Council’s share of net assets (%)
Council’s share of net assets ($)

3.8%
956

3.8%
793
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Note 16. Interests in other entities

(continued)

$ ’000

(b) Associates (continued)
(d) Summarised financial information for associates (continued)
Kimbriki Environmental
Enterprises P/L

Statement of comprehensive income
Income
Interest income
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses
Profit/(loss) for period
Total comprehensive income
Share of income – Council (%)
Profit/(loss) – Council ($)
Total comprehensive income – Council ($)

2018

2017

35,254
146
(1,268)
(29,870)
4,262

36,452
155
(1,595)
(37,132)
(2,120)

4,262

(2,120)

3.8%

3.8%

164

(81)

164

(81)

(e) The nature and extent of significant restrictions relating to associates
Council has no day to day access to cash or investments of Kimbriki. Council, as a shareholder, participates in
cash dividends as declared by Kimbriki's Board. All interactions with Kimbriki P/L are regulated by the Kimbriki
Shareholder Agreement
Accounting policy for associates
Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method in accordance with AASB128
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures . Under this method, the investment is initially recognised as a
cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Council’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the investee after the date of acquisition.
If the Council’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Council
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
The Council’s share in the associate’s gains or losses arising from transactions between itself and its
associate are eliminated.
Adjustments are made to the associate’s accounting policies where they are different from those of the
Council for the purpose of the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 17. Commitments for expenditure
$ ’000

2018

2017

–
1,704
836
2,540

1,457
679
–
2,136

2,540
2,540

2,136
2,136

458
1,704
378
–
2,540

977
679
–
480
2,136

199
254
453

192
163
355

(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)
Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment
Esplanade Promenade
Unspent Specific Purpose Capital Grants
Other (Capital Works)
Total commitments
These expenditures are payable as follows:

Within the next year
Total payable

Sources for funding of capital commitments:

Unrestricted general funds
Unexpended grants
Externally restricted reserves
Internally restricted reserves
Total sources of funding

Details of capital commitments
Unspent grants comprise $1,161k to be spent on Spit East shared zone, further
$187k RMS grant Spit erosion a $185k grant for Library Upgrade, $150k netball
courts and $20k for art storage Capital Contracts signed let not performed are
$425k for Balmoral Promenade, $378k for Balmoral Turning Boards and $34k for
a Low Voltage power cabinet

(b) Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable)
a. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the
reporting date, but not recognised as liabilities are payable:
Within the next year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the following assets:
Office Equipment with an average lease term of 3 years.
Contingent rentals may be payable depending on the condition of items or usage during the lease term.
Conditions relating to operating leases:
– All operating lease agreements are secured only against the leased asset.
– No lease agreements impose any financial restrictions on Council regarding future debt etc.
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Note 18. Contingencies and other liabilities/assets not recognised
The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their
knowledge and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council’s financial report.
LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:
1. Guarantees
(i) Statewide Limited
Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to local government.
Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on its past
performance. Council’s share of the net assets or liabilities reflects Council’s contributions to the pool and the
result of insurance claims within each of the fund years.
The future realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported to 30/6 this year may result in future
liabilities or benefits as a result of past events that Council will be required to fund or share in respectively.
(ii) StateCover Limited
Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.
StateCover is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW local government industry
and specifically Council.
Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capital
base as a result of the company’s past performance and/or claims experience or as a result of any increased
prudential requirements from APRA.
These future equity contributions would be required to maintain the company’s minimum level of net assets in
accordance with its licence requirements.
(iii) Other guarantees
Council has provided no other guarantees other than those listed above.
2. Other liabilities
(i) Third party claims
The Council is involved from time to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including
claims for damages relating to its services.
Council believes that it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does not expect
any material liabilities to eventuate.
(ii) Potential land acquisitions due to planning restrictions imposed by Council
Council has classified a number of privately owned land parcels as local open space or bushland.
As a result, where notified in writing by the various owners, Council will be required to purchase these land parcels.
At reporting date, reliable estimates as to the value of any potential liability (and subsequent land asset) from such
potential acquisitions has not been possible.
ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED:
(i) Land under roads
As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not to bring to account land under roads that it owned or
controlled up to and including 30/6/08.
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Note 19. Financial risk management
$ ’000

Risk management
Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk
and (4) interest rate risk.
The Council’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.
Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign
currency risk.
Financial risk management is carried out by Council’s finance section under policies approved by the Council.
The fair value of Council’s financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their carrying amount.
Council’s objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and preserving capital.
Council’s finance area manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent
advisors.
Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Ministerial
Investment Order 625. This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and its staff and a monthly Investment report
is provided to Council setting out the make-up and performance of the portfolio as required by Local
Government regulations.
The risks associated with the investments held are:
– Price risk – the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices,
whether there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers
or are caused by factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.
– Interest rate risk – the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.
– Credit risk – the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular to a
financial instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council – be it of a capital or income nature.
Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing
investments with high credit ratings or capital guarantees.

(a) Market risk – price risk and interest rate risk
The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council’s Income Statement and accumulated surplus
(for the reporting period) due to a change in either the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable.
It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period.
Increase of values/rates
2018
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates
2017
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates

Decrease of values/rates

Profit

Equity

Profit

Equity

177

177

(177)

(177)

175

175

(175)

(175)
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Note 19. Financial risk management

(continued)

$ ’000

(b) Credit risk
Council’s major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees.
The major risk associated with these receivables is credit risk – the risk that debts due and payable to Council
may not be repaid in full.
Council manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures.
Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land
relating to the debts – that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest
on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers,
specific industry sectors and/or regions.
Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most
non-rate debtors.
There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.
A profile of Council’s receivables credit risk at balance date follows:
2018

2018

Rates and

(i) Ageing of receivables – %
Current (not yet overdue)
Overdue

(ii) Ageing of receivables – value
Rates and annual charges
< 1 year overdue
Other receivables
Current
0 – 30 days overdue
31 – 60 days overdue
61 – 90 days overdue
> 91 days overdue

2017

2017

Rates and

annual

Other

annual

Other

charges

receivables

charges

receivables

0%
100%
100%

70%
30%
100%

0%
100%
100%

62%
38%
100%

2018

2017

674
615

685
648

3,135
633
111
16
612
4,507

2,259
1,006
33
7
359
3,664
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Note 19. Financial risk management

(continued)

$ ’000

(c) Liquidity risk
Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk – the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand
to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.
Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an
adequate cash buffer.
Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.
Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk – the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely
affect funding costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk by borrowing long term and
fixing the interest rate on a 4-year renewal basis. The Finance Section regularly reviews interest rate
movements to determine if it would be advantageous to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.
The contractual undiscounted cash outflows (ie. principal and interest) of Council’s payables and borrowings
are set out in the maturity table below:
$ ’000

2018
Trade/other payables
Loans and advances
Total financial liabilities
2017
Trade/other payables
Loans and advances
Total financial liabilities

Weighted

Subject

average

to no

interest rate

maturity

≤ 1 Year

7,858

2,768

–

–

0.00%

payable in:
1 – 5 Years

> 5 Years

Total

Actual

cash

carrying

outflows

values

10,626

10,626

–

1,722

5,234

1,558

8,514

7,337

7,858

4,490

5,234

1,558

19,140

17,963

0.00%

8,027

3,042

–

–

11,069

11,069

5.96%

–

1,820

5,702

2,169

9,691

8,219

8,027

4,862

5,702

2,169

20,760

19,288

5.25%
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Note 20. Material budget variations
$ ’000

Council’s original financial budget for 17/18 was adopted by the Council on 06 June 2017 and is not required to
be audited.
While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Report must disclose the original
budget adopted by Council, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Council to review its financial budget
on a quarterly basis, so that it is able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that
invariably occur throughout the year.
This note sets out the details of material variations between Council’s original budget and its actual
results for the year as per the Income Statement – even though such variations may have been adjusted for
during each quarterly budget review.
Note that for variations* of budget to actual :

Material variations represent those variances that amount to 10% or more of the original budgeted figure.

F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation

$ ’000

2018
Budget

2018
Actual

2018
---------- Variance* ----------

REVENUES
Rates and annual charges

26,173

26,404

231

1%

F

User charges and fees

10,818

10,908

90

1%

F

467

508

41

9%

F

5,022

5,270

248

5%

F

Interest and investment revenue
Other revenues

2,329
3,278
949
Operating grants and contributions
41%
Postive variance is due to VPA contribution $466k budgeted in User Fees and Road to Recovery grant budgeted
in Capital Grants
Capital grants and contributions

2,055

2,685

630

F

31%

F

Large positive variance is due to BLINE grant of $1,000k offset by lower than budgeted S7.12 receipts

Fair value increment on investment property

–

189

189

0%

F

Joint ventures and associates - net profits

–

155

155

0%

F
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Note 20. Material budget variations
$ ’000

EXPENSES
Employee benefits and on-costs

(continued)
2018
Budget

2018
Actual

2018
---------- Variance* ----------

18,238

17,784

454

2%

F

403

402

1

0%

F

14,413

14,133

280

2%

F

Depreciation and amortisation

5,403

5,552

(149)

(3%)

U

Other expenses

6,169

6,511

(342)

(6%)

U

–

1,241

(1,241)

0%

U

Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts

Net losses from disposal of assets

Council did not budget for disposal of renewed assets in initial FY17/18 or prior budgets. The actual figure includes a
one-off $503k figure for disposal of Balmoral Child Care Centre. Refer to Note 9 for details.

Revaluation decrement / impairment of
IPP&E
–
Council did not budget for revaluation decrement to sea-baths and jetties.

–

–

0%

F

9,043

1,108

14.0%

F

(3,808)

4,654

(55.0%)

F

Budget variations relating to Council’s Cash Flow Statement include:
7,935
Cash flows from operating activities
$1,000k favourable variance due mainly to unbudgeted BLINE grant
Cash flows from investing activities

(8,462)

Unbudgeted net $6M inflow due to longer-term term deposits. This is reclassifiying assets
and does not mean Councils has more cash. A more meaningful comparison is the line item "Purchase of
Infrastructure…". $9,768k outflow compared to $10,462k budget.

(1,025)
(882)
Cash flows from financing activities
Small difference due to refinancing of some loans with different installment dates

143

(14.0%)

F
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Note 21. Fair value measurement
$ ’000

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
– Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
– Investment property
The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for
either recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a
‘level’ in the fair value hierarchy as follows:
Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at
fair values:
Fair value measurement hierarchy
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
2018
Recurring fair value measurements
Investment property
Retail, commercial office and residential
Total investment property

Date
of latest
valuation
30/06/18

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant and equiptment
30/06/18
Office equipment
30/06/18
Furniture and fittings
30/06/18
Art collection
30/06/17
Operational land
30/06/18
Community land
30/06/17
Land improvements – depreciable
30/06/18
Buildings non-specialised
30/06/18
Buildings specialised
30/06/18
Roads
30/06/18
Footpaths
30/06/18
Stormwater drainage
30/06/13
Other open space/recreational assets
30/06/16
Heritage collections
30/06/18
Library books
30/06/18
Other assets
30/06/18
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Quoted
prices in
active mkts

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Significant
observable
inputs

Significant
unobservable
inputs

46,950

–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

750
89
82
5,420
152,156
62,490
696
31,131
15,937
105,610
14,650
50,373
32,700
13
788
39
472,924

46,950

–

46,950

46,950

750
89
82
5,420
152,156
62,490
696
31,131
15,937
105,610
14,650
50,373
32,700
13
788
39

472,924
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Note 21. Fair value measurement

(continued)

$ ’000

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at
fair values: (continued)
Fair value measurement hierarchy
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
2017
Recurring fair value measurements
Investment property
Retail, commercial office and residential
Total investment property

Date
of latest
valuation

Quoted
prices in
active mkts

30/06/17

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant and equiptment
30/06/17
Office equipment
30/06/17
Furniture and fittings
30/06/17
Art collection
30/06/17
Operational land
30/06/13
Community land
30/06/16
Land improvements – depreciable
30/06/17
Buildings non-specialised
30/06/13
Buildings specialised
30/06/13
Roads
30/06/15
Footpaths
30/06/15
Stormwater drainage
30/06/13
Other open space/recreational assets
30/06/16
Heritage collections
30/06/17
Library books
30/06/17
Other assets
dd/mm/yy
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Significant
observable
inputs

Significant
unobservable
inputs

46,695

–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

952
142
83
5,311
113,024
62,214
656
27,760
14,372
117,509
13,339
50,350
29,944
13
772
43
436,484

46,695

–

46,695

46,695

952
142
83
5,311
113,024
62,214
656
27,760
14,372
117,509
13,339
50,350
29,944
13
772
43

436,484

(2) Transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies
During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring fair
value measurements.
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Note 21. Fair value measurement (continued)
(3) Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Values
Where Council is unable to derive Fair Valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (i.e. Level 1
inputs), Council instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (Level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs
(Level 3 inputs).
For all infrastructure assets Council uses a straight line pattern of consumption and brownfield approach.
The Fair Valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising Level 2 and Level 3 inputs are as follows:
Investment Properties
Council obtains independent valuations of its investment property on an annual basis and at the end of each
reporting period to ensure the financial statements reflect the most up-to-date valuation. The best evidence of
fair value is the current price in an active market for similar assets. The key observable inputs to the valuation
are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Current rental incomes,
Rent reviews,
Capitalisation rates,
Price per square meter,
Direct comparison to sales evidence,
Zoning,
Location,
Land area and configuration, and
Planning controls.

The fair value of the investment property is determined by an independent, qualified valuer on an annual basis
who has experience in the location of the property. The Council reviews the valuation report and discusses
significant movements with the valuer. As at 30 June 2018 the valuation of the investment property was
performed by Scott Fullarton Valuations Pty Ltd, Director Scott Fullarton, FAPI, Certified Practicing Valuer,
Registered Valuer No. 2144.
There has been no change in the valuation process during the reporting period.
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Plant and Equipment, Office Equipment and Furniture and Fittings.
Plant and Equipment, Office Equipment and Furniture and Fittings are valued at cost but are disclosed at fair
value in the notes. The carrying amount of these assets is assumed to approximate fair value due to the
nature of the items. Examples of assets within these classes are as follows:
•
•
•

Plant and Equipment: Motor vehicles, depot tools and machinery, parking meters and domestic waste
service bins.
Office Equipment: Computer Hardware.
Furniture and Fittings: Chairs, desks and display systems.

The key unobservable input to the valuation is the remaining useful life. Council reviews the value of these
assets against quoted prices for the gross current replacement cost of similar assets and by taking account of
the pattern of consumption and estimated remaining useful life. There has been no change to the valuation
process during the reporting period.
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Note 21. Fair value measurement (continued)
Art Collection
This class comprises Council’s collection of art works. The collection was valued in June 2016 by Stella
Downer Fine Art. Stella Downer is a member of the Australian Commercial Galleries association and is
approved by the Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet’s Cultural Gifts Program to value art works.
While it is possible to observe the broad market for works (such as auction house results or retrospective
exhibitions) the valuations depend significantly on unobservable inputs such as the aesthetic value and quality
of the individual works and its significance in the individual artist’s oeuvre.
Operational Land
This asset class comprises all of Council's land classified as Operational Land under the NSW Local
Government Act 1993. The key unobservable input to the valuation is the price per square metre. The last
valuation was undertaken at 30 June 2018 and was performed by Scott Fullarton Valuations Pty Ltd, Director
Scott Fullarton, FAPI, Certified Practicing Valuer, Registered Valuer No. 2144.
Generally, fair value is the most advantageous price reasonably obtainable by the seller and the most
advantageous price reasonably obtained by the buyer. This is not necessarily the market selling price of the
asset, rather, it is regarded as the maximum value that Council would rationally pay to acquire the asset if it
did not hold it, taking into account quoted market price in an active and liquid market, the current market price
of the same or similar asset, the cost of replacing the asset, if management intend to replace the asset, the
remaining useful life and condition of the asset; and cash flows from the future use and disposal.
There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
Community Land
Valuations of all Council's Community Land and Council managed land are based on either the land value
provided by the Valuer-General or an average unit rate based on the land value for similar properties where
the Valuer-General did not provide a land value having regard to the highest and best use for this land. As
these rates were not considered to be observable market evidence they have been classified as Level 3.
During the reporting year Valuer-General has issued new values with a base-date of 1 July 2016 to all
Councils in New South Wales. Community land has therefore been revalued this class for year ending 30 June
2017.
Land Improvements – Depreciable
This asset class largely comprises trees, plantings and landscaping not captured in the Open Space and
Recreational Assets class. These assets may be located on parks, reserves and also within road reserves.
These assets are valued at cost but are disclosed at fair value in the notes. The carrying amount of these
assets is assumed to approximate fair value due to the nature of the items. Council reviews the value of these
assets against quoted prices for the gross current replacement cost of similar assets and by taking account of
estimated remaining useful life.
There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
Buildings: Non-Specialised and Specialised
Buildings were valued by professionally qualified Registered Valuers from Scott Fullarton Valuations Pty Ltd in
July 2017. The approach estimated the replacement cost of each building, componentised significant parts
with different useful lives and took into account a range of factors. The unit rates could be supported by market
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Note 21. Fair value measurement (continued)
evidence (Level 2 inputs), other inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life and asset condition)
required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair value.
As such, these assets have been valued using Level 3 inputs.
Non specialled buildings used the market approach and specialised building used the cost approach.
Inputs include:
•
•
•
•

Gross replacement cost
A breakdown of building component costs (such as structure, equipment, fittings and finishes)
Useful lives
Conditions

Typical useful lives and unit rates (includes overheads):
Buildings Asset Component
Amenities/Public Toilets – Structure
Council Offices – Structure
Amenities/Public Toilets – Roof
Childcare Centres – Roof
Multistorey Carparks – Services
Community and Cultural Centres – Fixtures and
Fittings

Average Useful
Life (Years)
78
95
50
47
20
20

Average Unit
Rate FY17/18
$127,467/each
$6,330,480/each
$46,731/each
$114,300/each
$1,190,200/each
$287,943/each

Average Unit
Rate FY16/17
$110,323/each
$5,490,030/each
$40,509/each
$97,600/each
$1,032,200/each
$249,709/each

Public Roads, Footpaths and Carparks
Includes: Road pavements and surfaces, steps, footpaths, pram ramps, retaining walls and kerb and gutter,
physical traffic devices, lines and signs and street furniture and road related carparks.
Gross replacement cost for road assets were valued by professionally qualified Registered Valuers from
AssetVal Pty Ltd in June 2018. Due to the specialised nature of roads assets, valuations were undertaken
predominately using the cost approach. Unit rates include all materials, labour and overheads and were
estimated from inputs including similar projects costs, direct quotations, unit rate databases and published
cost guides. The unit rates have been tailored to suit Mosman. The cost approach is deemed a level 3 input.
The condition and useful lives of the assets were assessed and calculated based on site inspections,
observed asset performance and professional engineering judgment.
In this reporting period, condition inspections were carried out on the following road asset types:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Road Pavements
Footpaths and Steps
Kerb and Gutter
Retaining Walls
Fences/Handrails
Physical Traffic Devices
Lines and Signs
Car Parks

Typical useful lives and unit rates (includes overheads):
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Note 21. Fair value measurement (continued)
Public Road and Footpath Asset Component
Concrete Road Pavement (Reinforced 200mm thick)
Asphalt Road Pavement (50AC)
Sandstone Kerb & Gutter
Concrete Roundabout
Gabion Retaining Wall
Double Barrier Line
‘Warning’ Traffic Sign
Concrete Footpath (75 mm thick)
Asphalt Footpath (25 mm thick)
Carpark Asset Component
Lane and Parking Space Line Marking
Pay and Display Machine
Kerb Wheelstops (Timber)

Useful
Life
(Years)
120
50
90
40
150
5
15
90
40

Unit Rate FY
17/18

Unit Rate FY
16/17

$242/m2
$52/m2
$495/m
$305/m2
608/m2
$2/m
$396/each
$95/m2
$68/m2

$181/m2
$82/m2
$295/m
$360/m2
630/m2
$0.72/m
$141.75/each
$73.9/m2
$36.58/m2

Useful
Life
(Years)
5
20
15

Unit Rate FY
17/18

Unit Rate FY
16/17

$2/m
$12,100/each
$176/m

$1.03/m
$8,600/each
$160/m

Stormwater Drainage
Includes: Converters, headwalls, endwalls, pits and access-holes (collectively categorised as 'nodes'), pipes,
culverts, drains, Stormwater Quality Improvement Devices (SQIDs) and rainwater re-use tanks.
Gross replacement cost for stormwater drainage assets were valued by Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd as at 30
June 2013. The condition and useful lives of the assets were assessed and calculated by Cardno based on
site observations, including CCTV surveys, and Cardno's experience in valuation projects for various
Australian water utilities.
It has been assumed that relining would be the principle method of renewing pipes, rather than replacing the
whole section as no collapsed or significantly deformed pipes were found during CCTV inspections. This new
method of pipe renewal allows for the replacement costs of the pipes to be 'optimised' downwards
SQID unit rates were developed based on first principles estimating and takes into account excavation, site
establishment as well as the supply and installation costs. It also includes an additional 20% to the base unit
rate to allow for 'normal' construction and installation overheads.
Drains are also valued directly from first principles estimating. There is no single unit rate applied as each
drain contains different dimensions. Fair value has been generated this financial year based on the cost
approach and the gross replacement cost calculated by Cardno.
In this reporting period, stormwater pipes were updated to reflect the requirements of AASB in regards to
residual values.
Stormwater Drainage Asset Component
Stormwater Quality Improvement Devices
(Model Type: Rocla Cleansall 1200)
Concrete Pipe (375mm diameter, 0-1m
length) based on trenching method

Useful Life
(Years)
100

Unit Rate

125

$439.92/m

$208,641.03/each

page 61

Financial Statements 2018

_

Mosman Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 21. Fair value measurement (continued)
Concrete Pipe (375mm diameter) based on
relining method
Converter (600mm length)
Kerb Inlet Pit (450mmx450mm, 1 m depth)
Rainwater Re-use Tank

125

$336/m

100
100
80

$734/each
$1,546/each
Average
$624,739.00/each

Other Open Space/Recreational Assets
Includes:
•
•

Jetties and seawalls (collectively categorised as 'marine assets'),
Parks, bushlands, reserves, playgrounds, unmade roads and sporting fields (collectively categorised as
'parks and open space assets')

Gross replacement cost for marine assets were valued by APV Valuer and Asset Management Pty Ltd as at 1
July 2017 in accordance with accepted Australian Accounting Standards. Unit rates for marine assets were
estimated using construction costs from recent projects, APV databases, Rawlinson’s Construction Guide,
bench marking and costs from first principals. They were then adjusted for condition and comparability.
The condition, useful lives and remaining useful lives of the assets were assessed and calculated by APV
Valuer and Asset Management Pty Ltd based on site observations.
Gross replacement cost for Mosman parks and open space assets were valued by Complete Urban Pty Ltd as
at 30 June 2011. The condition and useful lives of the assets were assessed and calculated by Complete
Urban and suitably qualified Council staff based on site observations, professional knowledge and history of
local issues. Unit rates for parks and open space assets were estimated based on Complete Urban's industry
experience. Useful lives were updated to reflect current asset performance. The gross replacement costs were
increased by CPI each year where current contract rates were not available. Regular inventory and condition
audits have been undertaken by experience Council Officers.
Fair values for Open Space assets have been generated on the cost approach.
Typical useful lives and unit rates (includes overheads):
Open Space/Recreational and Other
Structures Asset Component
Timber Deck
Concrete Deck
Concrete/Sandstone Seawall
Steel Turning Board
Oval Lights
Park ID Signs
Cenotaph
Dinghy Racks Steel

Useful Life
(Years)
46
65
59
19
25
30
200
25

Unit Rate 17/18

Unit Rate 16/17

$450/m2
$800/m2
$2,230/m
$60,000/each
$45,716/each
$6640/each
$91,432/each

$450/m2
$550/m2
$1,000-$2,500/m
$55,000/each
$45,716/each
$6640/each
$91,432/each

$17,143/each

$17,143/each

Heritage Collections and Library Books
Library Books are valued at cost but are disclosed at fair value in the notes. The carrying amount of these
assets is assumed to approximate fair value due to the nature of the items. Council reviews the value of these
assets against quoted prices for the gross current replacement cost of similar assets and by taking account of
the pattern of consumption and estimated remaining useful life.
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Note 21. Fair value measurement (continued)
There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
Other Assets
Other assets are banner poles erected on Military Road and side streets. They are valued at cost but are
disclosed at fair value in the notes. The carrying amount of these assets is assumed to approximate fair value
due to the nature of the items. The key unobservable input to the valuation is the remaining useful life. Council
reviews the value of these assets against quoted prices for the gross current replacement cost of similar
assets and by taking account of the pattern of consumption and estimated remaining useful life. There has
been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
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Note 21. Fair value measurement

(continued)

$ ’000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.
Plant
and
equipment

Opening balance – 1/7/16
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation and impairment
Closing balance – 30/6/17
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation and impairment
Closing balance – 30/6/18

Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation and impairment
FV gains – other comprehensive income
Closing balance – 30/6/17
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation and impairment
FV gains – other comprehensive income
Closing balance – 30/6/18

Furniture
and
fittings

948

245

111

245
(37)
(204)

–
–
(103)

–
–
(28)

952

142

83

(164)
179
(31)
(186)

–
23
(6)
(70)

–
16
–
(17)

750

89

82

Operational
land

Opening balance – 1/7/16

Office
equipment

Community
land

113,024

60,659

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
1,555

113,024

62,214

(276)
–
–
–
39,408
152,156

276
–
–
–
–
62,490

Land
improve-ments
depreciable

629
35
–
(8)
–
656
–
48
–
(8)
–
696

Art
collection

5,218
93
–
–
5,311
–
109
–
–
5,420

Buildings
nonspecialised

27,774
531
(15)
(530)
–
27,760
31
147
(509)
(592)
4,294
31,131

Total
6,522
338
(37)
(335)

6,488
(164)
327
(37)
(273)

6,341

Total
202,086
566
(15)
(538)
1,555

203,654
31
195
(509)
(600)
43,702

246,473
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Note 21. Fair value measurement

(continued)

$ ’000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)
a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes. (continued)
Buildings
specialised

Opening balance – 1/7/16
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation and impairment
Closing balance – 30/6/17
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation and impairment
FV gains – other comprehensive income
Closing balance – 30/6/18

14,575
105
(27)
(281)
14,372
156
450
(23)
(668)
1,650
15,937

Stormwater
drainage

Opening balance – 1/7/16
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation and impairment
Closing balance – 30/6/17
Transfers from/(to) another asset class
Purchases (GBV)
Disposals (WDV)
Depreciation and impairment
FV gains – other comprehensive income
Closing balance – 30/6/18

50,269
505
(36)
(388)
50,350
–
504
(68)
(413)
–
50,373

Other
structures

–
–
–
–

Roads

117,230
2,975
(217)
(2,479)

–

117,509

–
–
–
–
–

244
1,517
(293)
(2,342)
(11,025)

–

105,610

Other open
space
recreational

30,132
846
(69)
(965)
29,944
261
3,651
(181)
(754)
(221)
32,700

Heritage
collections

Footpaths

11,878
1,866
(139)
(266)
13,339
–
1,339
(146)
(246)
364
14,650

Library
books

Total
143,683
4,946
(383)
(3,026)

145,220
400
3,306
(462)
(3,256)
(9,011)

136,197

Total

13

806

81,220

–
–
–

221
–
(255)

1,572
(105)
(1,608)

13

772

–
–
–
–
–

–
252
–
(236)
–

13

788

81,079
261
4,407
(249)
(1,403)
(221)

83,874
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Note 21. Fair value measurement

(continued)

$ ’000

(4). Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)
a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes. (continued)
Asset
class

Asset
class

Asset
class

Other

assets

Total

Opening balance – 1/7/16

–

–

–

47

47

Depreciation and impairment

–

–

–

(4)

(4)

Closing balance – 30/6/17

–

–

–

43

Depreciation and impairment

–

–

–

(4)

Closing balance – 30/6/18

–

–

–

39

43
(4)

39

(5). Highest and best use
All of Council’s non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.
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Note 22. Related party transactions
$ ’000

a. Key management personnel
Key management personnel (KMP) of the Council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
council, directly or indirectly. There are no related party transactions aside from compensation. Compensation is renumeration packages for management and
Councillor fees.
The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:
Compensation:
Short-term benefits
Other long-term benefits

Total

2018

1,352
39
1,391

2017

1,408
6
1,414
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Note 23. Events occurring after the reporting date
Council is unaware of any material or significant ‘non-adjusting events’ that should be disclosed.
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Note 24. Statement of developer contributions
$ ’000

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 , Council has significant obligations to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towards provision or
improvement of amenities or services) infrastructure in new release areas.
It is possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to fund the difference.
SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND LEVIES
PURPOSE

Opening
balance

Contributions

Interest

Expenditure

Internal

Held as

received during the year

earned

during

borrowing

restricted

in year

year

(to)/from

asset

Cash

Non-cash

Cumulative
internal
borrowings
due/(payable)

S7.12 levies – under a plan

5,368

1,093

–

121

(2,928)

–

3,654

–

Total S7.11 and S7.12 revenue under plans

5,368

1,093

–

121

(2,928)

–

3,654

–

414

466

–

–

(880)

–

–

5,782

1,559

–

121

(3,808)

–

3,654

S7.4 planning agreements

Total contributions

–

S7.12 LEVIES – UNDER A PLAN
CONTRIBUTION PLAN - OPEN SPACE & CAR PARKING
PURPOSE

Opening
balance

Open space
Total

Contributions

Interest

Expenditure

Internal

Held as

received during the year

earned

during

borrowing

restricted

in year

year

(to)/from

Cash

Non-cash

asset

Cumulative
internal
borrowings
due/(payable)

5,368

1,093

–

121

(2,928)

–

3,654

–

5,368

1,093

–

121

(2,928)

–

3,654

–
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Note 25(a). Statement of performance measures – consolidated results
$ ’000

Amounts
2018

Indicator
2018

Prior periods
2017
2016

Benchmark

Local government industry indicators – consolidated
1. Operating performance ratio

Total continuing operating revenue (1) excluding capital
grants and contributions less operating expenses
Total continuing operating revenue (1) excluding capital

1,986
46,368

4.28%

6.22%

1.96%

> 0.00%

43,090
49,053

87.84%

87.69%

88.61%

> 60.00%

13,651
7,292

1.87x

1.79x

1.29x

> 1.5x

7,940
1,684

4.71x

4.09x

2.81x

> 2x

674
27,147

2.48%

2.59%

2.26%

< 5%
metro

grants and contributions

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

Total continuing operating revenue (1)
excluding all grants and contributions
Total continuing operating revenue (1)

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Current assets less all external restrictions (2)

Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities (3, 4)

4. Debt service cover ratio

Operating result (1) before capital excluding interest
and depreciation/impairment/amortisation
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows)
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year’s cash and cash equivalents
plus all term deposits
Motnhly payments from cash flow of operating

15,993
3,787

4.22 mths 4.7 mths 4.2 mths

> 3 mths

and financing activities
Notes
(1)

Excludes fair value adjustments and reversal of revaluation decrements, net gain/(loss) on sale of assets and the net
share of interests in joint ventures and associates.

(2)

Refer Notes 6-8 inclusive.
Also excludes any real estate and land for resale not expected to be sold in the next 12 months.

(3)

Refer to Notes 12 and 13.

(4)

Refer to Note 12(b) and 13(b) – excludes all payables and provisions not expected to be paid in the next 12
months (incl. ELE).
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for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 25(b). Statement of performance measures – consolidated results (graphs)
1. Operating performance ratio

Purpose of
operating
performance ratio

7%

Ratio %

6%

Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 ratio

4.28%

5%
4%
6%

3%

4%

2%
1%
0%

2%

2%

2015

2016

―――

Benchmark:

2017

This ratio measures
Council’s
achievement of
containing operating
expenditure within
operating revenue.

A stronger than expected result due to one off greater than expected operating grants
and savings compared to budget on
employee expenses

2018

Ratio achieves benchmark

Minimum >=0.00%

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26
2. Own source operating revenue ratio

Purpose of own
source operating
revenue ratio

100%
90%

Ratio is outside benchmark
Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 ratio

87.84%

Ratio %

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%

89%

89%

88%

88%

2015

2016

2017

2018

30%
20%
10%
0%

Benchmark:

―――

This ratio measures
fiscal flexibility. It is
the degree of reliance
on external funding
sources such as
operating grants and
contributions.

Ratio achieves benchmark

Minimum >=60.00%

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26
3. Unrestricted current ratio

Purpose of
unrestricted current
ratio

2.0
1.8

Comfortaby exceeds the benchmark and is
consistent with trend of previous years

Ratio is outside benchmark
Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 ratio

1.87x

Ratio (x)

1.6
1.4
1.2
1.0
0.8
0.6

1.5

1.8

1.9

2017

2018

1.3

0.4
0.2
0.0

2015

Benchmark:

2016

―――

To assess the
adequacy of working
capital and its ability
to satisfy obligations
in the short term for
the unrestricted
activities of Council.

Minimum >=1.50

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26

Comfortably exceeds the benchmark. Prior
year show Council can manage with a
lower than benchmark result

Ratio achieves benchmark
Ratio is outside benchmark
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Note 25(b). Statement of performance measures – consolidated results (graphs)
4. Debt service cover ratio

Purpose of debt
service cover ratio

5.0
4.5

Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 ratio

4.71x

Ratio (x)

4.0
3.5
3.0
2.5
4.1

2.0
1.5
1.0

4.7

2.6

2.8

2015

2016

0.5
0.0

Benchmark:

―――

2017

This ratio measures
the availability of
operating cash to
service debt including
interest, principal and
lease payments

2018

Ratio achieves benchmark

Minimum >=2.00

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26

6%

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage

5%
Ratio %

The ratio continues to improve due to
completion of older loans and a strong
Operating Performance Ratio

Purpose of rates
and annual charges
outstanding ratio

Ratio is outside benchmark
Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 ratio

2.48%

4%
3%
2%
1%
0%

2.20%

2.26%

2.59%

2.48%

2015

2016

2017

2018

Benchmark:

―――

To assess the impact
of uncollected rates
and annual charges
on Council’s liquidity
and the adequacy of
recovery efforts.

Ratio is within Benchmark

Maximum <5.00%

Source for Benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26
6. Cash expense cover ratio

Purpose of cash
expense cover ratio

5.0
4.5

A slight improvement, continuing Mosman's
trend and remaining well below the
benchmark

Ratio is outside Benchmark
Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 ratio

4.22 mths

Ratio (mths)

4.0
3.5
3.0
2.5
2.0

4.2

4.2

2015

2016

4.7

4.2

1.5
1.0
0.5
0.0

Benchmark:

―――

2017

This liquidity ratio
indicates the number
of months a Council
can continue paying
for its immediate
expenses without
additional cash inflow.

Council has comfortably exceeded the
benchmark

2018

Minimum >=3.00

Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26

Ratio achieves benchmark
Ratio is outside benchmark
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Note 26. Council information and contact details
Principal place of business:
Civic Centre
Mosman Square, Spit Junction, 2088
Contact details
Mailing address:
PO Box 211
SPIT JUNCTION NSW 2088

Opening hours:
Monday to Friday 8.30 am to 5pm

Telephone:
Facsimile:

Internet:
Email:

02 9978 4000
02 9978 4132

www.mosman.nsw.gov.au
council@mosman.nsw.gov.au

Officers
GENERAL MANAGER
Dominic Johnson

Elected members
MAYOR
Carolyn Corrigan

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
Christian Menday

COUNCILLORS

Other information
ABN: 94 414 022 939
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the general purpose financial report
Mosman Council

To the Councillors of the Mosman Council

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial report of Mosman Council (the Council), which comprise
the Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2018, the
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the Statement by Councillors and
Management.
In my opinion,
•

the Council’s accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Division)

•

the financial report:
-

has been presented, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of this
Division

-

is consistent with the Council’s accounting records

-

presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at
30 June 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

•

all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained

•

no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial report have come to light during
the audit.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report’ section
of my report.
I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:
•

Australian Auditing Standards

•

Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.
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Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:
•

providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

•

mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

•

precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Other Information
Other information comprises the information included in the Council’s annual report for the year ended
30 June 2018, other than the financial report and my Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. The
Councillors are responsible for the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor’s Report,
the other information I have received comprise the special purpose financial statements and Special
Schedules (the Schedules).
My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information. Accordingly, I do not express
any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the special purpose financial
statements and Special Schedule 2 - Permissible income for general rates.
In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
report or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, I must report that fact.
I have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Report
The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993, and for such
internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting except where the Council will be dissolved or amalgamated by an
Act of Parliament, or otherwise cease operations.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
My objectives are to:
•

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

•

issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the financial report.
A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor’s report.
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My opinion does not provide assurance:
•

that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

•

on the Original Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows,
and Note 20 Material budget variations

•

on the Special Schedules. A separate opinion has been provided on Special Schedule
2 - Permissible income for general rates

•

about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial report on
any website where it may be presented

•

about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial report.

Weini Liao
Director

30 October 2018
SYDNEY
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Cr Carolyn Corrigan
Mayor
Mosman Council
PO Box 211
SPIT JUNCTION NSW 2088

Contact:

Weini Liao

Phone no:

9275 7432

Our ref:

D1826909/FA1762

30 October 2018
Dear Mayor

Report on the Conduct of the Audit
for the year ended 30 June 2018
Mosman Council
I have audited the general purpose financial statements of Mosman Council (the Council) for the year
ended 30 June 2018 as required by section 415 of the Local Government Act 1993 (the Act).
I expressed an unmodified opinion on the Council’s general purpose financial statements.
This Report on the Conduct of the Audit (the Report) for the Council for the year ended 30 June 2018
is issued in accordance with section 417 of the Act. This Report should be read in conjunction with my
audit opinion on the general purpose financial statements issued under section 417(2) of the Act.

INCOME STATEMENT
Operating result
2018

2017

Variance

$m

$m

%

26.4

25.8

2.3

Grants and
contributions revenue

6.0

6.0

--

Operating result
for the year

3.8

7.5

49.3

Net operating result
before capital amounts

1.1

5.3

79.2

Rates and annual
charges revenue
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Council’s operating result ($3.8 million including the effect of depreciation and amortisation expense of
$5.6 million) was $3.7 million lower than the 2016–17 result. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the increase in loss on disposal of renewed infrastructure, employee costs and depreciation and
reduction in the fair value increment relating to investment property.
The net operating result before capital grants and contributions ($1.1 million) was $4.2 million lower
than the 2016–17 for the reasons noted above.
Rates and annual charges revenue ($26.4 million) increased by $0.6 million (2.3 per cent) in 2017–18
due to the application of the rate peg limit.
Grants and contributions revenue ($6.0 million) in 2017-18 remained static compared with 2016–17.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
•

•

•

•

The Statement of Cash Flows
illustrates the flow of cash and
cash equivalents moving in and
out of Council during the year and
reveals that cash increased from
$7.6 million to $12.0 million at the
close of the year.
Cash inflows from operations
reduced due to increased
payments relating to employee
benefits and material

15

Net cash flows for the year

10
$ million

5
0
-5

-10
-15

Cash outflows from investing
activities also reduced due to the
net redemption of investments
held.
Cashflows from financing
activities were insignificant.

-20

2016

2017
Year ended 30 June

Operating activities
Financing activities

2018

Investing activities

FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments

2018

2017

$m

$m

External restrictions

5.9

7.1

Internal restrictions

8.9

9.1

Unrestricted

1.1

1.5

171.8

157.8

Cash and investments

Commentary

•

External restrictions include unspent specific
purpose grants, developer contributions, and
domestic waste management charges decreased
due to increased capital expenditure during the
year funded by developers’ contributions.

•

Balances are internally restricted due to Council
policy or decisions for forward plans including
works program. Although the total was relatively
unchanged there was a reduction of funds held to
repay bonds and deposits and an increase held for
future capital works.

•

Unrestricted balances provide liquidity for day-today operations.

2
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PERFORMANCE RATIOS
The definition of each ratio analysed below (except for the ‘building and infrastructure renewals ratio’)
is included in Note 25 of the Council’s audited general purpose financial statements. The ‘building and
infrastructure renewals ratio’ is defined in Council’s Special Schedule 7 which has not been audited.

Operating performance ratio
•

•

Council has exceeded the
benchmark of zero per cent for
the last three years. This has
resulted from the Council running
an operating surplus. The
indicator of 4.3 per cent was
above the industry benchmark.
The reduction from the previous
year is due to the lower operating
result after excluding fair value
adjustments.

The ‘operating performance ratio’
measures how well council contained
operating expenditure within operating
revenue (excluding capital grants and
contributions, fair value adjustments,
and reversal of revaluation
decrements). The benchmark set by
the Office of Local Government (OLG)
is greater than zero per cent.

Operating performance ratio
7
6
5
Ratio
%
4
3
2
1
0

2016

2017

2018

Year ended 30 June
Operating performance ratio
Industry benchmark > 0%

Own source operating revenue ratio
•

•

Council’s own source operating
revenue ratio of 87.8 per cent
exceeded the industry
benchmark.
This indicator fluctuates with
movements in grants and
contributions, which has
remained static for the last two
years.

The ‘own source operating revenue
ratio’ measures council’s fiscal
flexibility and the degree to which it
relies on external funding sources
such as operating grants and
contributions. The benchmark set by
OLG is greater than 60 per cent.

Own source operating revenue ratio
100
80
Ratio
% 60
40
20
0

2016

2017

2018

Year ended 30 June
Own source operating revenue ratio
Industry benchmark > 60%

3
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Unrestricted current ratio
•

•

This ratio indicated that Council
currently had $1.9 of unrestricted
current assets available to service
every one dollar of its unrestricted
current liabilities. This exceeded
the industry benchmark.
There has been a slight increase
in this ratio during the year, due
to reductions in the cash
restrictions at year end.

The ‘unrestricted current ratio’ is
specific to local government and
represents council’s ability to meet its
short-term obligations as they fall due.
The benchmark set by OLG is greater
than 1.5 times.

Unrestricted current ratio
2
1.8
1.6
1.4
1.2
Ratio 1
x
0.8
0.6
0.4
0.2
0

2016

2017
Year ended 30 June

2018

Unrestricted current ratio
Industry benchmark > 1.5x

Debt service cover ratio
•

Council has exceeded the
benchmark of two for the last
three years.

•

The debt service cover ratio of
4.7 times exceeded the industry
benchmark. The increase
compared to 2016-17 is due to
both an increase in the adjusted
operating result and reduction in
debt servicing costs.

The ‘debt service cover ratio’
measures the operating cash to
service debt including interest,
principal and lease payments. The
benchmark set by OLG is greater than
two times.

Debt service cover ratio
5
4.5
4
3.5
3
Ratio2.5
x 2
1.5
1
0.5
0

2016

2017

2018

Year ended 30 June
Debt service cover ratio
Industry benchmark > 2x

Rates and annual charges outstanding ratio
•

•

Council’s outstanding rates and
charges ratio of 2.5 per cent was
within the industry benchmark.
Management attribute the
maintenance of this good result in
to their recovery efforts.

The ‘rates and annual charges
outstanding ratio’ assesses the impact
of uncollected rates and annual
charges on council’s liquidity and the
adequacy of debt recovery efforts.
The benchmark set by OLG is less
than 5 per cent for metro councils.

Rates and annual charges outstanding ratio
6
5
4
Ratio 3
%
2
1
0

2016

2017

2018

Year ended 30 June
Rates and annual charges outstanding ratio
Industry benchmark < 5%

4

page 81

Our insights inform and challenge government to improve outcomes for citizens

Cash expense cover ratio
•

•

Council’s cash expense cover
ratio of 4.2 months exceeded the
industry benchmark.
The ratio has slightly declined in
2017–18 as cash and cash
equivalent balances have slightly
reduced as compared to 2016–
17.

This liquidity ratio indicates the
number of months the Council can
continue paying for its immediate
expenses without additional cash
inflow. The benchmark set by OLG is
greater than three months.

Cash expense cover ratio
5
4
Ratio 3
(months)
2
1
0

2016

2017
Year ended 30 June

2018

Cash expense cover ratio
Industry benchmark > 3 months

5
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Building and infrastructure renewals ratio (unaudited)
•

•

Council’s building and
infrastructure renewals ratio of
163 per cent exceeded the
industry benchmark and
continues a pleasing trend over
the last three years.
Council’s building and
infrastructure renewals ratio has
increased over the past three
years which demonstrates
continued increase in investment
in the renewal of existing
infrastructure.

Building and infrastructure renewals ratio

Ratio
%

180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0

The ‘building and infrastructure
renewals ratio’ assesses the rate at
which these assets are being renewed
against the rate at which they are
depreciating. The benchmark set by
OLG is greater than 100 per cent.

2016

2017

2018

Year ended 30 June
Building and infrastructure renewals ratio
Industry benchmark > 100%

This ratio is sourced from council’s
Special Schedule 7 which has not
been audited.

OTHER MATTERS
New accounting standards implemented
AASB 2016-2 ‘Disclosure Initiative – Amendments to AASB 107’
Effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017

This Standard requires entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes (both
cash flows and non-cash changes) in liabilities arising from
financing active
ities.
Council’s disclosure of the changes in their liabilities arising
from financing activities is disclosed in Note 12.

6
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Legislative compliance
My audit procedures did not identify any instances of non-compliance with legislative requirements or
a material deficiency in the Council’s accounting records or financial reports. The Council’s:
•

accounting records were maintained in a manner and form to allow the general purpose
financial statements to be prepared and effectively audited

•

staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit.

Weini Liao
Director, Financial Audit Services

cc:

Mr Dominic Johnson, General Manager
Chair of the Audit Committee
Mr Tim Hurst, Chief Executive of the Office of Local Government

7

page 84

Mosman Council
SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Proud to be Mosman
Protecting our Heritage
Planning our Future
Involving our Community

Special Schedules 2018

Mosman Council
Special Schedules

for the year ended 30 June 2018

Contents

Page

Special Schedules 1
Special Schedule 1

Net Cost of Services

2

Special Schedule 2
Special Schedule 2

Permissible income for general rates
Independent Auditors Report

4
5

Special Schedule 7

Report on Infrastructure Assets

8

1

Special Schedules are not audited (with the exception of Special Schedule 2).
Background
(i)

These Special Schedules have been designed to meet the requirements of special purpose users such as;





(ii)

the NSW Grants Commission
the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS),
the NSW Office of Water (NOW), and
the Office of Local Government (OLG).

The financial data is collected for various uses including;






the allocation of Financial Assistance Grants,
the incorporation of Local Government financial figures in national statistics,
the monitoring of loan approvals,
the allocation of borrowing rights, and
the monitoring of the financial activities of specific services.
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Mosman Council
Special Schedule 1 – Net Cost of Services
for the year ended 30 June 2018

$’000
Function or activity

Expenses from.
continuing.
operations.

Income from
continuing operations
Non-capital.

Capital.

Net cost.
of services.

Governance

1,836

–

–

(1,836)

Administration

9,611

596

–

(9,015)

Public order and safety
Fire service levy, fire protection, emergency
services
Beach control
Enforcement of local government regulations
Animal control
Other
Total public order and safety

921
–
1,207
23
–
2,151

–
–
161
14
–
175

–
–
–
–
–
–

(921)
–
(1,046)
(9)
–
(1,976)

–

–

–

Environment
Noxious plants and insect/vermin control
Other environmental protection
Solid waste management
Street cleaning
Drainage
Stormwater management
Total environment

–
488
4,516
109
42
645
5,800

–
83
6,785
–
–
–
6,868

–
–
–
–
–
187
187

–
(405)
2,269
(109)
(42)
(458)
1,255

Community services and education
Administration and education
Social protection (welfare)
Aged persons and disabled
Children’s services
Total community services and education

571
–
1,091
1,482
3,144

5
–
814
1,209
2,028

–
–
–
–
–

(566)
–
(277)
(273)
(1,116)

–
458
500
1,898
–
2,856

–
–
103
828
–
931

–
–
–
–
–
–

–
(458)
(397)
(1,070)
–
(1,925)

Water supplies

–

–

–

–

Sewerage services

–

–

–

–

Health

Housing and community amenities
Public cemeteries
Public conveniences
Street lighting
Town planning
Other community amenities
Total housing and community amenities

–
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Mosman Council
Special Schedule 1 – Net Cost of Services (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2018

$’000
Expenses from.
continuing.
operations.

Function or activity

Recreation and culture
Public libraries
Museums
Art galleries
Community centres and halls
Performing arts venues
Other performing arts
Other cultural services
Sporting grounds and venues
Swimming pools
Parks and gardens (lakes)
Other sport and recreation
Total recreation and culture

Income from
continuing operations
Non-capital.

Capital.

Net cost.
of services.

(1,931)
–
(967)
(801)
–
(995)
–
(44)
168
(5,182)
(64)
(9,816)

2,401
–
1,561
801
–
1,063
–
429
194
5,337
64
11,850

285
–
544
–
–
68
–
367
362
155
–
1,781

185
–
50
–
–
–
–
18
–
–
–
253

Fuel and energy

–

–

–

–

Agriculture

–

–

–

–

244
–
244

33
–
33

–
–
–

(211)
–
(211)

5,885
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
1,131
507
–
–
7,523

1,533
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
7,000
117
–
–
8,650

1,152
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
1,152

(3,200)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
5,869
(390)
–
–
2,279

–
608
608

–
4,752
4,752

–
1,093
1,093

–
5,237
5,237

45,623

25,814

2,685

–

20,743

–

20,743

–

155

–

155

45,623

46,712

2,685

3,774

Mining, manufacturing and construction

Building control
Other mining, manufacturing and construction
Total mining, manufacturing and const.
Transport and communication
Urban roads (UR) – local
Urban roads – regional
Sealed rural roads (SRR) – local
Sealed rural roads (SRR) – regional
Unsealed rural roads (URR) – local
Unsealed rural roads (URR) – regional
Bridges on UR – local
Bridges on SRR – local
Bridges on URR – local
Bridges on regional roads
Parking areas
Footpaths
Aerodromes
Other transport and communication
Total transport and communication
Economic affairs
Camping areas and caravan parks
Other economic affairs
Total economic affairs

Totals – functions
General purpose revenues

(1)

Share of interests – joint ventures and
associates using the equity method

NET OPERATING RESULT

(2)

(1) Includes: rates and annual charges (including ex gratia, excluding water and sewer), non-capital general purpose

(17,124)

(2) As reported in the Income Statement

grants, interest on investments (excluding externally restricted assets) and interest on overdue rates and annual charges
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Special Schedules 2018

Mosman Council
Special Schedule 2 – Permissible income for general rates
for the year ended 30 June 2019

$’000

Calculation
2018/19

Calculation
2017/18

19,592
–
19,592

19,225
65
19,290

Notional general income calculation (1)
Last year notional general income yield
Plus or minus adjustments (2)
Notional general income

a
b
c = (a + b)

Permissible income calculation
Special variation percentage (3)
Or rate peg percentage
Or crown land adjustment (incl. rate peg percentage)
expiring special variation amount
special variation amount
Or plus rate peg amount
Or plus Crown land adjustment and rate peg amount
Sub-total

d
e
f

Less

g

Plus

h = d x (c – g)
i=cxe
j=cxf
k = (c + g + h + i + j)

Plus (or minus) last year’s carry forward total
Less valuation objections claimed in the previous year
Sub-total
Total permissible income
notional general income yield
Catch-up or (excess) result
Less

income lost due to valuation objections claimed (4)
(5)
Less unused catch-up
Carry forward to next year
Plus

l
m
n = (l + m)

0.00%
2.30%
0.00%
–
–
451
–
20,043

0.00%
1.50%
0.00%
–
–
289
–
19,579

(13)
–
(13)

–
–
–

o=k+n

20,030

19,579

p

20,037
(7)

19,592
(13)

–
–
(7)

–
–
(13)

q=o–p
r
s
t=q+r–s

Notes
(1) The notional general income will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding

year. The statements are reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years’
rates income.
(2) Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring

during the year. The adjustments are called ‘supplementary valuations’ as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916 .
(3) The ‘special variation percentage’ is inclusive of the rate peg percentage and where applicable Crown land adjustment.
(4) Valuation objections are unexpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the

land value issued by the Valuer-General. Councils can claim the value of the income lost due to valuation objections in
any single year.
(5) Unused catch-up amounts will be deducted if they are not caught up within 2 years. Usually councils will have a

nominal carry forward figure. These amounts can be adjusted for in setting the rates in a future year.
(6) Carry forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require ministerial

approval by order published in the NSW Government Gazette in accordance with section 512 of the Local
Government Act 1993 . The OLG will extract these amounts from Council’s Special Schedule 2 in the financial data
return (FDR) to administer this process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Special Schedule 2 - Permissible Income for general rates
Mosman Council

To the Councillors of Mosman Council

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying Special Schedule 2 – Permissible Income for general rates (the
Schedule) of Mosman Council (the Council) for the year ending 30 June 2019.
In my opinion, the Schedule of the Council for the year ending 30 June 2019 is prepared, in all
material respects in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Code of Accounting
Practice and Financial Reporting (LG Code) issued by the Office of Local Government (OLG), and is
in accordance with the books and records of the Council.
My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule’ section of my
report.
I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:
•

Australian Auditing Standards

•

Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.
Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:
•

providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

•

mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

•

precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting
Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to the special purpose framework used to prepare the
Schedule. The Schedule had been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Council’s reporting
obligations under the LG Code. As a result, the Schedule may not be suitable for another purpose.
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Other Information
Other information comprises the information included in the Council’s annual report for the year ended
30 June 2018, other than the Schedule and my Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. The Councillors
are responsible for the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor’s Report, the other
information I have received comprise the general purpose financial statements and the Special
Schedules excluding Special Schedule 2 (the other Schedules).
My opinion on the Schedule does not cover the other information. Accordingly, I do not express any
form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements.
In connection with my audit of the Schedule, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Schedule or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, I must report that fact.
I have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Schedule
The Councillors are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule in accordance with the LG Code.
The Councillors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Schedule, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting, unless it is not appropriate to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule
My objectives are to:
•

obtain reasonable assurance whether the Schedule as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

•

issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the Schedule.
A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the Schedule is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar8.pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor’s report.
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My opinion does not provide assurance:
•

that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

•

about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited Schedule on any
website where it may be presented

•

about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the Schedule.

Weini Liao
Director

30 October 2018
SYDNEY
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Special Schedules 2018

Mosman Council
Special Schedule 7 – Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2018
$’000

Asset class

Asset category

Buildings

Buildings – specialised
Council offices
Council works depot
Library
Cultural facilities
Other buildings
Childcare centres
Multistorey car park
Sub-total

Roads

Sealed roads
Footpaths
Other road assets
Kerb and Gutter
Retaining Walls
Physical Traffic Devices
Lines and Signs
Street Furniture
Sub-total

Estimated cost
to bring assets
to satisfactory
standard

Estimated cost
to bring to the
agreed level of

2017/18
Required
a

service set by maintenance
Council

Assets in condition as a percentage of gross
replacement cost

2017/18
Actual

Net carrying

Gross
replacement

maintenance

amount

cost (GRC)

1

2

3

4

5

57%

24%

18%

0%

0%

0%

100%

0%

0%

0%

0%

100%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

100%

0%

0%

0%

89%

11%

0%

0%

4%

30%

66%

0%

0%

41%

59%

0%

0%

0%

0%
19.0%

100%
61.9%

0%
19.1%

0%
0.0%

0%
0.0%

19%

57%

24%

0%

0%

38%

50%

12%

0%

0%

35%

47%

16%

2%

0%

10%

55%

35%

0%

0%

17%

43%

38%

2%

0%

44%

46%

10%

0%

0%

32%

42%

26%

0%

0%

20%
21.6%

30%
51.6%

42%
26.2%

8%
0.7%

0%
0.0%

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

986
503
72
210
317
294
59
20
2,461

597
1,069
223
92
294
428
75
69
2,847

15,937
9,776
1,593
2,960
7,056
1,617
1,075
7,054
47,068

24,780
16,790
2,570
7,400
10,578
2,779
1,481
11,903
78,281

134
–
282
–
684
–
–
273
1,373

134
–
282
–
684
–
–
273
1,373

2,561
544
59
377
310
214
186
147
4,398

2,083
248
–
9
7
57
76
52
2,532

50,794
14,650
11,406
14,150
24,905
2,727
521
1,107
120,260

88,988
20,577
23,131
30,618
38,506
4,041
2,121
3,579
211,561
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Special Schedules 2018

Mosman Council
Special Schedule 7 – Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2018 (continued)
$’000

Asset class

Asset category

Stormwater
drainage

Stormwater quality
improvement devices
Rainwater re-use tank
Open conduits (drains)
Closed conduits (pipes)
Nodes (pits)
Sub-total

Estimated cost
to bring assets
to satisfactory
standard

Open space/ Marine structures
recreational Sporting fields
Parks & reserves
assets
Other
Sub-total
TOTAL – ALL ASSETS

Estimated cost
to bring to the
agreed level of

2017/18
Required
a

service set by maintenance
Council

2017/18
Actual

Net carrying

Gross
replacement

maintenance

amount

cost (GRC)

12
–
11
441
62
526

12
–
11
441
62
526

101
34
61
311
142
649

42
–
16
–
113
171

2,648
1,050
835
41,226
4,614
50,373

3,246
1,250
2,380
51,939
7,321
66,136

81
95
117
384
677

81
95
117
384
677

254
139
278
84
755

13
418
3,051
1,284
4,766

6,358
3,576
11,976
11,486
33,396

13,408
5,987
16,678
15,569
51,642

2,576

2,576

8,263

10,316

251,097

407,620

Assets in condition as a percentage of gross
replacement cost
1

2

3

4

5

0%

100%

0%

0%

0%

40%

60%

0%

0%

0%

22%

37%

40%

1%

0%

5%

55%

39%

1%

0%

2%
5.7%

91%
60.6%

2%
32.3%

1%
0.9%

4%
0.4%

17%

28%

54%

1%

0%

23%

33%

42%

2%

0%

28%

25%

46%

1%

0%

6%
17.9%

32%
28.8%

56%
50.6%

6%
2.6%

0%
0.0%

18.0% 52.1% 28.9%

0.9%

0.1%

Notes:

a

Required maintenance is the amount identified in Council’s asset management plans.

Infrastructure asset condition assessment ‘key’
1

Excellent/very good No work required (normal maintenance)

4

Poor

2

Good

5

Very poor

3

Satisfactory

Only minor maintenance work required
Maintenance work required

8

Condition

Renewal required
Urgent renewal/upgrading required
Description here…
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Mosman Council
Special Schedule 7 – Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Amounts
2018

$ ’000

Indicator
2018

Prior periods
2017
2016

Benchmark

Infrastructure asset performance indicators *
consolidated
1. Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio

(1)

(2)

Asset renewals
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

2. Infrastructure backlog ratio

8,172
5,015

162.95%

137.95% 129.12% >= 100%

(1)

Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets

3. Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance
Required asset maintenance

2,576
251,097

1.03%

10,316
8,263

124.85%

2,576
407,620

0.63%

1.14%

2.45%

115.73% 141.54%

< 2.00%

> 100%

4. Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assets to
an agreed service level set by Council
Gross replacement cost

0.70%

0.00%

Notes

*

All asset performance indicators are calculated using the asset classes identified in the previous table.

(1)

Excludes Work In Progress (WIP)

(2)

Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent
capacity/performance as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that
increases capacity/performance.
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Mosman Council
Special Schedule 7 – Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)

Ratio %

for the year ended 30 June 2018

1. Buildings and infrastructure renewals
ratio
180%
160%
140%
120%
100%
163%
80%
138%
129%
60%
96%
40%
20%
0%
2015
2016
2017
2018

Purpose of asset
renewals ratio

To assess the rate at
which these assets
are being renewed
relative to the rate at
which they are
depreciating.

Benchmark:
――― Minimum >=100.00%
Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26
Purpose of
infrastructure
backlog ratio

Ratio %

2. Infrastructure backlog ratio
4.0%
3.5%
3.0%
2.5%
2.0%
1.5%
1.0%
0.5%
0.0%

2.9%

2015

2.5%

2016

1.1%

1.0%

2017

2018

This ratio shows
what proportion the
backlog is against
the total value
of a Council’s
infrastructure.

Benchmark:
――― Maximum <2.00%
Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26

Ratio %

3. Asset maintenance ratio
200%
180%
160%
140%
120%
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

97.00%

141.54%

2015

2016

Purpose of asset
maintenance ratio

115.73% 124.85%

2017

2018

Compares actual vs.
required annual asset
maintenance. A ratio
above 100% indicates
Council is investing
enough funds to stop
the infrastructure
backlog growing.

Benchmark:
――― Minimum >100.00%
Source for benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #26
Purpose of agreed
service level ratio

0.80%

This ratio provides a
snapshot of the
proportion of
outstanding renewal
works compared to
the total value of
assets under
Council's care and
stewardship.

Ratio %

4. Cost to bring assets to agreed service
level
1.00%

0.60%
0.40%

0.70%

0.63%

2017

2018

0.20%
0.00%

0.00%

2016

Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 Ratio

162.95%

The continued focus at addressing
infrastructure issues supported by a
Special Rate Variation has seen Council
exceed the benchmark.

Ratio achieves benchmark
Ratio is outside benchmark
Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 Ratio

1.03%

Council has overcome its backlog issues
and is in a sound financial position to deal
with any unexpected infrastructure
problems.

Ratio achieves benchmark
Ratio is outside benchmark
Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 Ratio

124.85%

The level of maintenance ensures assets
remain in a servicable condition for the
benefit of the community.

Ratio achieves benchmark
Ratio is outside benchmark
Commentary on 2017/18 result
2017/18 Ratio

0.63%

Council's Long Term Financial Plan
projects this ratio will reduce to zero within
four years
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Section Four

State of the Environment Report 2017-2018
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STATE OF THE ENVIRONMENT
Scorecard 2017 - 2018
Biodiversity | Climate Change and Air Quality | Waste | Transport
Total Water Cycle | Planning, Built Environment and Heritage
Engagement and Education for Sustainability

THE MOSMAN LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA
The Mosman LGA is located 8km north-east of the CBD on Sydney’s lower north
shore. It is one of Australia’s premier suburbs with an unmatched harbourside setting.
Occupying some 8.7 sq km, Mosman features stunning bays and beaches punctuated
by rugged headlands, sandstone cliffs, bushland areas and foreshore parklands.
Mosman’s undulating foreshore is approximately 24km in length and is emphasised
by more than a dozen headlands. Mosman is home to many popular swimming and
recreation beaches and bays including Chinamans and Balmoral Beach, The Spit,
Cobblers Beach and Clifton Gardens. The majority of the foreshore include significant
rocky areas, bushland, including many protected areas, and reserves and tourist
attractions, such as Sydney Harbour National Park and Taronga Zoo.
Mosman Council’s vision is to preserve and enhance biodiversity, including Mosman’s
bushland, parks, open space, beaches and marine environment through best practice
operational and maintenance programs, infrastructure, regulatory practice and
education campaigns.

STATE OF THE ENVIRONMENT REPORTING
A State of the Environment (SOE) Report provides a snapshot of the condition of the
environment, impacts on the environment and the Council’s response to these impacts.
The 2017-2018 SOE Scorecard summaries initatives, programs and projects undertaken
by Council to improve the local environment.

KEY AREAS
This SOE focuses on seven key areas identified in MOSPLAN
Climate
Change and
Air Quality
Air pollution,
greenhouse
gas emissions,
responding
and adapting
to climate
change

Transport

Biodiversity

Water quality,
water
consumption,
stormwater,
total
catchment
management

Total Water
Cycle

Plants, animals,
and
microorganisms,
terrestrial,
inter-tidal and
aquatic habitat,
threatened
species and
communities

Engagement
and
Education for
Sustainability

Recycling,
waste
generation,
illegal
dumping,
littering

Waste

Cycling,
pedestrian
facilities, public
transport, car
sharing

Development
applications,
population,
Aboriginal and
non-Aboriginal
heritage

Environmental
workshops,
community
attitudes,
education
campaigns,
environmental
events

Planning,
Built
Environment
and Heritage

A number of standard indicators have been chosen by the State Government to
measure each key area. These indicators align with the goals and objectives of
MOSPLAN and allow for changes in the environment to be measured over time.

CLIMATE CHANGE AND AIR QUALITY
AIR QUALITY

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Number of air pollution
complaints received by
Council

3

2

2

12

Electricity use
Council operations (kWh)

1,577,961

1,666,642

1,588,203

1,598,413

Council energy and
consumption (GJ)

6,396

7,087

6,648

6,880

GHG emissions from Council
energy and gas use
(tonnes CO2-e)

1,605

1,588

1,511

1,707

Total residential and non
residential electricity use for
Mosman (MWh)

138,437

137,569

136,916

Awaiting
data from
Ausgrid

Solar generation exported to
the grid (MWh)

599

640

757

Awaiting
data from
Ausgrid

Change from
previous
year

↑

ENERGY

↑
↑
↑

RESPONDING TO CLIMATE CHANGE AND AIR QUALITY ISSUES- CASE
STUDIES
DEPOT LIGHTING RETROFIT
In recent years Mosman Council has upgraded the lighting in its largest Council
buildings to more energy efficient lighting. The latest building to undergo this upgrade
was Council’s Depot building. In March 2018 the lights at the Depot were upgraded to
energy efficient LED lights. It is envisaged that in the years going forward Council’s
energy usage at the depot will decrease.
COUNCIL ENERGY AND ELECTRICITY USAGE
Council’s energy and electricity usage has increased slightly from last year. Analysis
of our top energy and electricty usage sites show that they are all key council venuesCivic Centre, Library, Art Gallery and Drill Hall. This increase can be directly linked to an
increase in utilisation due to external meetings and events. Whilst Council continues to
try and reduce its energy usage it is difficult when venue utilisation is increasing.

TOTAL WATER CYCLE
STORMWATER

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Number of gross pollutant
traps (GPTs)

34

34

34

34

Total gross pollutants
removed from GPTs (tonnes)

247

376

368

118*^

Total LGA potable water use
(kilolitres)

3,128,482

3,062,906

3,201,659

3,429,718

Total residential potable water
use (kilolitres per capita)

103

100

89

113^

Total Council potable water
use (kilolitres)

67,352

61,850

71,329#

63,319

Change from
previous year

↔
↓

WATER CONSUMPTION

↑
↑
↓

^ is an approximate based on estimate population figures. Will be updated when the population figures
are received.
^This is a significant decrease due to dry conditions and low rainfall. Leaf litter and kerbside litter were
collected by street sweeping

RESPONDING TO TOTAL WATER CYCLE MANAGMENT ISSUES- CASE
STUDIES
WATER LEAKS IDENTIFIED
Through data monitoring program by Planet Footprint, Council was able to identify and
appropriately manage two large water leaks at the Civiic Centre that were occuring
from Council taps and pipes. This prevented continued water loss at this site.
STORMWATER SYSTEMS
Council continued to monitor stormwater re-use systems at Cross Street and Botanic
Road to ensure these systesm provide quality water for irrigation of Council’s ovals, thus
reducing our reliance on potable water.

BIODIVERSITY
BIODIVERSITY
CONDITION

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Change from
previous year

Noxious weed notices

0

0

0

0

Noxious weed
assessments
undertaken

↔

21

11

15

14

↓

Number of registered
active bushcare
volunteers

80

79

86

86

↔

Bushcare Program
volunteer hours

1,800

1,750

1,860

1,700

Number of active
bushcare groups

17

17

21

22

Total number of native
plants supplied to
volunteers, contractors
and residents

8,455

8,500

13,000

10,000

↓

Number of native plant
species recorded in
LGA

454

490

490

490

↔

Number of threatened
flora species

3

3

3

3

Number of threatened
fauna species

5

5

5

5

Number of endangered
ecological communities

0

2

2

2

Number of endangered
fauna populations

0

0

0

0

Number of feral fauna
species targeted
through programs (eg.
rabbits, foxes, cats)

1

1

1

1

↓
↑

↔
↔
↔
↔
↔

RESPONDING TO BIODIVERSITY ISSUES- CASE
STUDIES
QUAKERS HAT BUSHLAND TRACK UPGRADE
This year Council conducted significant repairs and
upgrades to Quakers Hat Bushland Track which runs from
Spit West to Quakers Hat Bay. Works included leveling of
track, aligning of stair ways, installation of water bars to
prevent wash out, decking over wet areas and new timber
stairs. The track is a well utilised walking track and project
has been heralded as a great success by the public.
STREET AND PARK TREE PLANTING PROGRAM 2018
Through April this year council conducted the Street
and Park Tree planting contract for 2018. Over 180 trees
and shrubs were planted throughout Mosmans’ Streets
and Parks, with 95% success rate. This was an excellent
outcome given the prolonged dry weather conditions
presented during the planting and maintenance period for
this contract.
CHINAMANS BEACH DUNE FENCING
During March this year Council completed the upgrading
of the dune fencing surrounding Chinamans Beach dune
system. This project will help Council to protect and
preserve a unique natural resource for years to come.
HABITAT TREES
Council has continued to create and protect habitat trees
throughout Mosman streets, bushlands and parks. With
numerous habitat trees created for specific fauna and
signage outlining the benefits which educate and inform
the community.
TREE INVENTORY
Council is nearing the completion of a Mosman-wide
inventory of street and park trees. Information will aid
Council in revitalising street and park trees, and ensure
Mosman has a leafy outlook for many years to come.
STREET TREE MASTERPLAN 2017
In July 2017 Council adopted a revitalised Street Tree
Masterplan for Mosman LGA. The aim of the new Street
Tree Master Plan is to sustain and further enhance
Mosman’s streetscape. Street trees provide habitat
corridors for local fauna, increase shading of hard
surfaces (such as parking lanes, roadways and
infrastructure) and provide significant amenity and
character to the local area. Further, the amendments
are aimed at reducing long-term maintenance costs and
nuisance through more appropriate species selection.

WASTE
Change from
previous
year

WASTE

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Total waste to landfill,
including general cleanup
(tonnes)

7,102

7,097

6,701

7,050

↑

Total waste to recycling
including paper, co-mingled,
metal and green waste
(tonnes)

5,227

5,156

4,326

3,928*

↓

Total waste to landfill,
including general cleanup
per capita (kg)

234

232

218

248

↑

Total waste to recycling,
including metal and green
waste per capita (kg)

173

169

141

138

↓

Green waste diverted from
landfill per capita (kg)

78

71

49

43

Total e-waste collected (kg)

56,815

50,371

59,039

52,871

↓
↓

* Decrease mainly attributed to drop in vegetation due to dry weather and reduced paper tonnage.

RESPONDING TO WASTE ISSUES- CASE STUDIES
LITTER EDUCATION
In 2016, Mosman Council became aware through independent litter surveys that
sporting ovals were becoming increasingly polluted with items such as discarded
plastic tape, packaging from snack foods, single-use water bottles and take away
coffee cups.
To counter the problem, actors from Eaton Gorge Theatre Company were hired to
conduct an engagement and awareness program amongst the sporting community
across 6 different ovals between the months of April and May 2017. Their objective was
to raise awareness on the litter issue and to encourage anti- litter behaviour.
Through the winter actors stepped out amongst the crowd in fluoro jackets and blond
wigs. The actors certainly gained attention. Over 540 pledges were signed and 80 shin
guard stays were handed out. Shin guard stays being reusable bands to hold socks
up and to secure shoe laces without using disposable plastic tape. People tasked with
setting up the field were also encouraged to come up with reusable items to secure
nets in place of plastic tape. Videos were posted to Facebook and a few articles were
published in the Mosman Daily.

In 2018, Council rehired the same actors for another anti-litter programme. This
time actors came out as Litter Detectives. In full costume and with large magnifying
glasses and note books the actors from Eaton Gorge collected over 350 pledges from
the sporting community. The detectives highlighted the problem of small litter items
such as bottle tops and small pieces of plastic and again encouraged reuse of hot
drink cups, water bottles and shin guard stays.
WASTE AND UNIT BLOCKS
The joint use of garbage bins can sometimes lead to confusion and a lesser sense of
responsibility in areas where the one bin is shared by a number of different households.
To overcome the problem a new set of bin stickers and wall signs for unit blocks was
developed. The main aim was to design signs to better educate residents on what
could be recycled and what could not.
A project officer was hired in 2016 to optimise outcomes for the project through
research, resident surveys and to assist with final design elements. The project was
successful with many more people aware of what items could be recycled and what
items were considered contamination in recycling bins.
To further the programme and to ascertain the longer term benefits of the signage an
external consultant was hired in 2018 to judge the effectiveness of signs a year from the
initial roll out. Six thousand surveys were sent out to unit blocks with a 14% response
rate. Of those who responded 86% said recycling was important to them and 83% said
protecting the environment was their main motivation for recycling. Ninety percent of
people said the new signage was helpful. Visual audits supported these results. Paper
recycling bins were well utilised with many paper recycling bins being 80 % full. It
would appear packaging from online purchases and flat pack purchases are replacing
newspaper waste.
WATER REFILL STATIONS
Following the success of previous installed water refill stations Council installed another
three water stations at Memorial Park, Spit East and Countess Park. The water stations
are provided to encourage residents and visitors to refill their own water bottles, rather
than purchasing single use plastic bottles of water.

TRANSPORT
Change from
previous year

TRANSPORT

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Registered vehicles in
Council LGA

19,697

19,497

19,791

19,820

Number of Council fleet
vehicles

22

22

22

21

GHG emissions from Council
fleet vehicles (tonnes
CO2-e)

116

110

117

Awaiting
data
calcualtion

Number of passengers using
the Mosman Rider Bus

46,202

28,097^

24,220

21,585*

↓

Number of people using the
GoGet carshare scheme

982 (613)

1102 (713)

825#

889

↑

↑
↓

Drop in member numbers in 2016 is a result of improved spatial analysis and reporting methods carried
out by GoGet. Prior to this date some memberships outside of council boundaries in neighbouring
suburb Cremore were recorded as in Mosman. Numbers in brackets reflect estimate for Mosman based
on average growth rate.
* Mosman Rider Bus has been discontinued.
#

RESPONDING TO TRANSPORT ISSUES- CASE STUDIES
PEDESTRIAN UPGRADES
Council has undertaken a number of pedestrian upgrades to improve access. These
included a shared zone at Civic Lane, a pedestrian refugee at Bardwell Road and
Mosman Junction Pedestrian crossings.
CYCLING UPGRADES
Council also undertook cycling upgrades at Spit and Parriwi Roads and will continue to
install bike racks where required.

PLANNING, BUILT ENVIRONMENT AND HERITAGE
POPULATION

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Change from
previous year

Estimated population of
LGA – at 30 June (ERP)

30,033

30,215

30,465

30,4651

N/A

Residential density
(persons per hectare)

34.72

34.93

35.22

35.221

N/A

General noise complaints
received by Council

86

38

49

83

Barking dog complaints
received by Council

29

25

25

38

Total number of
development applications
received by Council

352

332

260

258

↓

Number of development
applications approved

325

301

197

231

↑

105

105

105

105

↔

Total number of nonAboriginal heritage items

485

483^

483

480

Number of built items*

444

444

444

444

Number of landscape
items*

34

34

34

34

Number of archeological
items

16

13^

13

10

Heritage conservation
areas

13

13

13

13

NOISE

↑
↑

DEVELOPMENT
APPLICATIONS

ABORIGINAL HERITAGE
Total number of Aboriginal
heritage sites
NON ABORIGINAL
HERITAGE

↓
↔
↔
↓
↔

*Some items in Mosman are classified as both built and landscape items, therefore the breakdown figures
add up to a number greater than the total number of items.
^ Change is a result due to review of archeological sights undertaken in 2016.
1
Data for ERP not released until March 2019. Have used 2017 ERP data. Will update once new figures are
released.

RESPONDING TO PLANNING, BUILT ENVIRONMENT AND HERITAGE ISSUES- CASE
STUDIES
PROTECTING MOSMAN’S SCENIC PROTECTION AREA
Mosman’s Scenic Protection Area is identified in Mosman Local Environmental Plan
as land below the 60m contour line. The Scenic Protection Area is recognised for its
significance in terms of views to and from Sydney Harbour and its unique balance of
natural landscape, vegetation and the built environment. The scenic protection area
is currently excluded from the NSW Government’s Housing Code that would allow the
construction of two storey houses as Complying Development, that is, development
that does not require a development application. The current exclusion is temporary
and is due to lapse in November 2018, placing the Scenic Protection Area at threat
of inappropriate development that does not consider Council’s requirements for built
form and bulk, view sharing and vegetation retention. Council has been advocating its
position with State Government in an attempt to secure a permanent exemption for
the Scenic Protection Area and as a result of Council’s campaigning the Department of
Planning is currently considering a two year extension to the Housing Code exclusion.
MOSMAN HOUSING CAPACITY AND HOUSING STUDY
An important part of maintaining the quality of the natural and built environment is
managing the impact of residential development. Council’s current planning controls
have been developed to manage the built environment through careful consideration of
Mosman’s character, natural environment, landscape and desired built form.
The Greater Sydney Commission’s (GSC) Draft North District Plan sets a housing supply
target for Mosman of 300 new dwellings by 2021. To assess the capacity of Mosman to
meet this target a comprehensive housing capacity study was undertaken. The study
assessed the current capacity of Mosman to provide new dwellings under the existing
planning controls such as zoning and floor space ratios, and considering individual
property constraints such as heritage and strata titles. The study found that under
current planning controls Mosman has sufficient capacity and is on track to meet the
GSC’s five year housing supply target.
HERITAGE CONSERVATION AREA RANKING REVIEW
A Heritage Conservation Area (HCA) is an area recognised and valued for its special
historical and aesthetic character. Mosman features 13 HCAs that are protected under
Mosman Local Environmental Plan 2012, encompassing 1,369 properties. Each property
within Mosman’s HCAs is ranked according to its contribution to the significance of an
area, with four categories of rankings ranging from contributory to detracting. The aim
of the rankings is to assist Council to maintain the identified character of the area in the
process of development assessment.
In the 20 years since the rankings were prepared there have been changes to buildings
in the HCAs including alterations and additions, demolitions and restorations. This
has resulted in some of the rankings no longer reflecting the building on the site. To
address this, Council commissioned a review of HCA property rankings. This involved a
photographic survey of each property and an assessment to determine if any changes
should be made to the building’s ranking based on current practices for assessment.
This was then peer reviewed, and a new set of rankings ascertained. Most (72%) of
properties retained the same ranking; 17% had an improved ranking and 11% had a
reduced ranking. Council adopted the revised HCA rankings at its meeting on 3 April
2018. The revised rankings will allow Council to appropriately manage development in
HCAs moving forward.

ENGAGEMENT AND EDUCATION FOR SUSTAINABILITY
Change from
previous year

EDUCATION

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Total number of
environmental programs
(workshops, events,
surveys) delivered to the
community.

78

102

87#

63

↓

Total number of
environmental programs
(workshops, events,
surveys) delivered to
Council staff.

6

9

11

5

↓

Number of HarbourCare
volunteers

N/A

N/A

19^

26

↑

^ HarbourCare was a new program introduced in July 2016.
* additional inclusion of marketing campaigns and newsletters.
# no winter (June, July) programs run due to minimal community interest

RESPONDING TO ENGAGEMENT AND EDUCATION FOR SUSTAINABILITY
ISSUES- CASE STUDIES
RETHINK RUBBISH - BALMORAL BEACH POP-UP
In February 2018, a series of waste education programmes were orchestrated
throughout the month to engage locals and visitors alike to rethink rubbish. The
programmes incorporated elements such as waste avoidance, reuse and binning
unwanted items correctly. Shark in a Bus (a marine heritage museum in a bus)
received 2,526 visitors over three weeks. People who visited the bus learnt about
marine debris and marine conservation. Circus Solaris run a programme on using the
right bin for rubbish including how to recycle at home. Boomerang Bags had a stall
alongside Two Hands who guided people on how to reuse old T shirts by transforming
them to bags. Reverse Garbage had a stall on how to make jellyfish mobiles from items
that would otherwise have been discarded. Seaside Scavenge conducted an amazing
beach clean- up with 100 people volunteering to pick up rubbish particularly the small
pieces too often left behind.
A massive 10,000 pieces of rubbish was collected in the clean-up including cigarette
butts. Overall the pop-up series had a great reach and was very well received by the
public one comment being,
“I’m really behind this. It’s the best thing you’ve ever done down here and the whole
beach is talking about it’ – Carly (local resident).

FUTURE DIRECTIONS
Mosman Council is committed to protecting the environment and reducing its
ecological footprint by identifying areas where improvements can be made and to
formulate strategies to achieve better environmental outcomes in the future.
Future planning
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Continue to Implement better waste management, including expansion of recycling
at Council Depot
Investigate domestic waste processing to improve domestic recycling rates dversion
from landfill
Continue to monitor council and community water and energy usage
Continue to monitor MUD waste disposal and educate as necessary
Contune to explore more sustainable lighting options for Council parks and reserves
Increase street tree planting to build on recent increases to canopy coverage across
the LGA
Continue to expand the HarbourCare and Bushcare programs and encourage
foreshore community engagement and connectiveness based on environmental
protection works
Continue street tree planting program
Continue bushland restoration works including increase in 90%+ native vegetation
cover
Continue to work with SSROC to get LED street lighting
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Disability Inclusion Action Plan 2017-2021 Reporting:
Implementation of Actions 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

PROGRESS LEGEND






Completed
Progressing
Not Due To Start
Not Progressing

Actions 1. Developing positive community attitudes and behaviours
Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Comments

Community
Development;
Community
Services

Ongoing

Community
satisfaction mean
score for services &
facilities for people
with disability
increased from 6.65
in 2016 to 6.68 in
2017 in Council's
Community Survey.
Accessibility

Progress

Listen to people with disability




Seek ongoing feedback from people
with disability and community members
about progress on access and inclusion.
Make adjustments to the actions in this
plan to respond to feedback as needed.
Share feedback and actions to improve
accessibility taken by Council with
Council staff.

Community
satisfaction rates
with information
and support for
people with
disability in
biennial survey
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Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Comments

Progress

improvements
highlighted to the
community and
Council staff in
newsletters &
bulletins.
Promote understanding and positive attitudes among Council
staff




Include disability awareness training in
staff induction [New Starter Orientation
Program] to ensure staff recognise
providing accessible information,
processes, services and facilities as a
core responsibility; this includes
ensuring frontline staff know where to
refer customers for information.
Provide more detailed training for
relevant staff on access and inclusion
for people with disability, with input from
local disability service providers.

Human Resources; 2018/19
Training for all
Sections as
relevant

 N and % of
staff trained
per year
 % staff
reporting
increased
confidence
following
training

All new staff trained
in disability
awareness during
Orientation Day by
MHR. Two further
training days
scheduled for 2018.
Disability
Awareness training
provided to 77 staff
on 8 May and 10
May 2018 through
People With
Disability Australia.
76.6% people
reported increased
confidence
following training.
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Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Comments

Progress

Promote understanding, positive attitudes and connections in
the community
Hold or link to events and activities that
promote inclusion, such as events for
International Day of People with Disability.

All Sections as
relevant

Ongoing

N events held
per year

IDPwD event for local
school students was
held on 23/11/2017

Work with Ability Links and Local Area
Coordinators to promote inclusion in the
community.

Community
Services

Ongoing

N activities per
year

Partnered with LAC to
trial Info Desk at
Mosman Seniors
Centre x 4 sessions

Work with Ability Links to investigate a
volunteer program to connect people with
disability and community members interested
in the same activities or volunteering
opportunities.

Community
Services

2018/19

Program
investigated

Ongoing

N publications
that promote
inclusion and/or
pictures that
include people of
different abilities

Promote positive stories of inclusion and
Community
actions taken to increase access. Include
Services;
pictures of people of all abilities in promotional Communications
materials.





Accessibility info and
images provided
when relevant in
comms/media
information, such as
IDPwD and
playground upgrades.
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Engage with groups in the community to promote inclusion
Connect the Chamber of Commerce with
relevant providers to advise local businesses
on inclusion and access.

Community
Services

Ongoing

N linkages made Advice and follow up
provided to the
Chamber to promote
to members

Connect sporting associations and clubs to
Environment and
advice on how they can increase access and Open Space
inclusion. For example, refer them to the All In!
The Inclusion Guide online resource and
connect them to advice through 6-monthly
meetings with sporting associations.

2017/18

N clubs and
associations
connected to
advice

Connect with schools and preschools to
promote inclusion.
 Continue to offer Council’s International
Day of People with Disability event for
schools.
 Draw on Children's Services network
meeting to engage children's services
 Engage with Principal's Liaison Group

Ongoing

 % children
reporting
improved
knowledge of
inclusion and
accessibility
 % services
reporting more
confidence
with inclusion

Communications
Community
Services
Library Services

All clubs to be
advised in August
2018

IDPwD was held on
23/11/2017, with
149 students from
five local schools
participating in
Mouth Painting,
Deaf Soccer, Music
Therapy, Blind
Cricket and NSW
Guide Dog talk
/activity. All
surveyed
participants report
improved
knowledge.
A guest speaker
from Ability Links
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Engage with groups in the community to promote inclusion
attended a School
Principals Liaison
Meeting.
Council's
International Day of
People with a
Disability event
discussed and
promoted at
meetings during the
year.
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Actions 2. Creating liveable communities
Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Comments

Progress

Listen to people with disability
Continue to work with our Access and Mobility Community
Community Consultative Committee to identify Services;
barriers and actions to improve access.
Engineering

Ongoing

N actions taken to A new Committee
improve access
was formed in 2017
and dialogue
continues to be
constructive.

Investigate establishing formal criteria to more Engineering;
effectively assess and prioritise requests from Community
the community for improvements to pathways Services
or pram ramps.

2018/19

Process
confirmed

Ongoing

N and type of
upgrades made
per year




Progressively increase access in the local community and to
Council facilities
Continue to implement actions in the Access
Engineering;
Strategy and consult with the Access and
Environment and
Mobility Community Consultative Committee
Open Space
and the community when undertaking
upgrades and planning new works, including:
 council facilities
 sport and recreation facilities
 playgrounds
 public toilets and adult change facilities

Aspects incorporated
when site topography
allow
40 kerb ramps and
footpaths were
upgraded
Library Walk
amenities were
upgraded.
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Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Comments

Investigate options to increase access to the
water.

Engineering;
Environment and
Open Space;
Governance;
Community
Services

2017/18

Investigation
complete

Project developed for
water access at
Clifton Gardens
Pending consultation
results project
scheduled for year
2019/2020

Continue to implement strategies in the
Pedestrian Access and Mobility Plan.

Engineering

Ongoing

N and type of
actions
implemented per
year

40 kerb ramps
upgraded for
accessibility.

Ensure Council’s signage strategy for public
domain, wayfinding and building and asset
signage provides consistent and legible
signage, including appropriate light reflective
value (for people with vision impairment).

Communications,
Engineering,
Environment and
Open Space,
Compliance

Ongoing

N signage
New signage
upgrades per year installed at various
sites around
Mosman:
 12 site ID signs
 4 way finding
 4 water stations






Progress

accessible parking spaces
ramps
hand rails
continuous pathways.
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Improve process for providing access
supports
Review eligibility criteria and process for
requests for:
 assistance in handling of waste bins
 mobility parking permits.

Engineering

2018/19

Revised process
in place

Waste collection
contract allows for
assistance



Collaborate with state government to
improve access
Make submissions to State Government about Urban Planning
policy and legislation affecting access.

As needed 

Collaborate with State Government on
Engineering
accessible transport and safer road crossings.

As needed N improvements
made during
DIAP period



N submissions
made
Outcome of
submissions

Of the submissions
made to State
Government in the
reporting period,
there were three
which had a
connection to
access. The
documents being
responded to were at
too a high level to
identify disability
inclusion as an
action.
2 pedestrian
crossings upgraded
at Mosman Junction.
Council collaborated
for the B Line




Page | 9

Improve process for providing access
supports
establishment along
the Spit & Military Rd
transport corridor.
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Actions 3. Supporting access to meaningful employment
Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Comments

Progress

Ensure council recruitment process is
accessible
Ensure job advertisements promote Council as Human Resources Ongoing
an Equal Opportunity employer.

Process in place
by 2018

EEO statement
appears on our
employment page for
each applicant to see

Ask candidates if they have any particular
needs to make the application and selection
process accessible.

Human Resources Ongoing

% of requests for
reasonable
adjustment to
process that are
made

Included in all
interview invitation
emails

Include greater focus on inclusion in staff
selection training and add a point in training
around reasonable workplace adjustments.

Human Resources 2017/18

% training
sessions including
focus on inclusion
and reasonable
adjustment

Included in Induction
checklist/training and
WHS procedures
82% of new staff
completed induction
checklists





Ensure Council is an inclusive and
accessible workplace
Promote an inclusive workplace culture through Human Resources; Ongoing
induction training.
all sections as
relevant

N staff trained per 35 staff trained
year
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Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Respond to any adjustment needs of staff with Human Resources; Ongoing
disability (including workplace ergonomics and Engineering
physical access barriers to Council
workplaces).

% of requests for
reasonable
adjustment that
are made

Consider accessibility of software and
hardware in IT procurement.



IT Services

Ongoing



Standard
accessibility
conditions for
procurement
adopted
% systems
that are
accessible

Comments
Modifications to work
(space) were made
for staff on 4
occasions as a result
of requests for
workplace
adjustment (100%)
Modifications to
be made to IT
procurement to
add accessibility
conditions

Progress





Explore volunteering opportunities for
people with disability
Actively explore options to support volunteering Community
options for people with disability, for example, Services
by connecting with Ability Links.

2019/20

N volunteer
connections made
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Support employment opportunities in the
community
Explore opportunities to procure services from
Australian Disability Enterprises and
businesses employing people with disability.

Governance

As needed N procurements
from ADEs/
inclusive
workplaces

Connect Chamber of Commerce with relevant
providers to advise local businesses on
inclusive employment e.g. by connecting
businesses to advice from Disability
Employment Services

Community
Development

2018/19

None required

Links established Chamber of
Commerce
connected with
Inclusion officer at
NSW Business
Chamber
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Actions 4. Improving access to services through better systems and processes
Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Comments

Governance

2017/18

% policies in
Considered as part
which access and of reviews
inclusion are
considered

Work toward WCAG 2.0 compliance for
IT Services;
Council's websites.
Communications
 Involve people with disability in usability
testing of web services where feasible.

2019/20

% Website
WCAG 2.0
Compliant

Web governance
tool implemented to
assist in meeting
compliance

Inventory existing software for ease of
accessibility.

IT Services

2017/18

Inventory
completed

Existing Windows
operating system
has accessibility
provisions. Inventory
extended into
2018/19

Encourage all software suppliers to improve IT Services
accessibility with new updates.

Ongoing

% new systems Procurement of
procured that are booking software,
accessible
Eventpro has
accessibility
provisions

Progress

Policy and corporate practice
Ensure access and inclusion are
considered when new policies or corporate
practices are written or existing policies or
corporate practices are changed.



Improve Council website and
information access






Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Continue Council digitisation process to
improve accessibility of records and
information.

Governance

Ongoing

Develop standard templates for Council
documents and forms to ensure
accessibility of both print and online
versions. Provide support to submit forms if
needed.

Communications,
2017/18
with input from
Customer Services,
Finance and IT
Services



Ensure customer facing staff identify
people’s preferred forms of communication
and share this information across sections
of Council, so people do not have to make
the same request to different sections.

All sections

2018/19

Process
developed

2018/19



Explore upgrading content on Council's
IT Services;
website that:
Communications
 collates information about what is
accessible in Mosman Council area
 provides links to advocacy and linkages
services.

Comments

Digitisation
Significant progress
complete by July made with
2021
digitisation of
records. Open Data
project included in
2018-21
management plan





System
procured
System
implemented
and forms are
accessible

Plan for page
developed
Update
process
identified

Design and
layout
techniques used
to improve
accessibility.
Disability Awareness
training has alerted
staff to this issue

Information
available re
accessible
facilities.
List of parks
provided to
Comm Services

Progress
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Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Investigate requirements for an interactive
map of accessible locations in the Council
area

IT Services;
Communications
Engineering

2018/19

Investigation
complete

All Sections as
relevant

Ongoing

% venues that
are accessible to
people with
disability

Comments

Progress



Provide accessible events and services
Events planning:
 Ensure Council run and sponsored
events are accessible, including an
accessible information and registration
process, access to transport/
accessible parking, continuous
pathways, accessible toilets, and
hearing loops (when located indoors).


Communications;
Include a checklist in documents to
consider accessibility in planning stage. Community
Services to assist
with development
of checklist



Promote accessibility of events in
advertising; use universal icons and
highlight accessible locations (e.g.
toilets, parking)

All Sections as
relevant

Key Council venues,
including Mosman
Art Gallery, Village
Green, Youth Centre
and Balmoral
Reserve, are
accessible.
Accessibility is
considered in
planning stage by
Events Team.

Consideration is
given to accessibility
in event promotion
eg transport. Council
Youth Service also
developed
accessibility
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Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Comments

Progress

information and
marketing collateral
- available online
and shared with
service users and
partners.
Continue our current services for young
people with disability and older people.

Community
Services

N participants in Council's Youth
services per year Service includes
young people with
disability in Youth
Centre, volunteer
programs & other
activities, with 12
young people (with
disability that was
made known to
service) included in
Youth Service
programs 2017/18.
Council's monthly
group for young
adults with disability
had a total of 103
participants
(averaging 10 per
session) in 2017/18.
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Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Encourage local service providers to
identify options for activities that are
inclusive of people with disability, e.g. art
workshops.

Community
Development;
Environment and
Planning

2018/19

N activities run
per year

Investigate opportunities for local
organisations to use Council facilities for
meetings, training and other activities.

Community
Services

2018/19

Review complete

Promote local supports for people with
Cultural Services;
disability through
Community
Services
 community stalls at monthly Mosman
market
 investigating the establishment of a
monthly community hot desk in Council
to give service providers the
opportunity to discuss their services
with residents.

2017/18
2017/18




N providers
participating
in stall
Hot desk
trialled

Comments

Progress



A disability service,
Fighting Chance
Australia, are
regular market
stallholders, & given
priority for
placement in line
with accessibility
guidelines. 100% of
markets held have a
disability service
represented
Community hot desk
with NDIS Local
Area Coordinators
trialled Feb-June
2018. NDIS LAC
discontinued hot
desk after trial
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Action

Responsibility

Timeframe Indicator

Comments

Progress

Feedback, consultation and meetings
Review compliments and complaints and
feedback processes to ensure these are
accessible to people with disability.

Governance;
2017/18
Communications;
Customer Services

Process reviewed
and any
necessary
changes made

Complaints
Management Policy
and systems
reviewed. Options
available in terms of
accessibility.

Use accessible venues for public meetings
and consultations

All Sections

% meetings held
at accessible
venues

Key Council venues,
including the Council
Chambers, Harnett
Room and Mosman
Art Gallery are
accessible. Hearing
loop installation
included in Civic
Centre
refurbishment
specification

Ongoing
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Civic Centre, Mosman Square
Mosman NSW 2088
PO Box 211
Spit Junction NSW 2088
9978 4000 fax 9978 4132
council@mosman.nsw.gov.au

mosman.nsw.gov.au

